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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
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603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544 

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov 

June 7, 2018 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to 
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc. 
(Vendor# 155358-B001 ), 77 Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH 03060, to continue developing and 
assisting Recovery Community Centers (RCCs) to ensure they meet standards required of RCCs by 
increasing the price limitation by $713,431 from $5,360,391 to $6,073,822 and by extending the 
completion date from June 30, 2019 to October 31, 2019, effective July 1, 2019 upon the date of 
Governor and Executive Council approval. 23.60% General Funds, 40.33% Other Funds and 36.07% 
Federal Funds. 

This agreement was originally approved by Governor and Council on June 1, 2016, (Item #13) 
and amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20), on July 11, 2018 (Item # 15}, and on September 20, 2018 
(Item #22). 

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State 
Fiscal Year 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating 
budgets, with authority adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if 
needed and justified. 

05-95-491510-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS, 
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS 

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 
Code Budget Amount Budget 

Contracts for 
2016 102-500734 Social Svc 49158501 $2,820 0 $2,820 

Contracts for 
2017 102-500734 Social Svc 49158501 $813,180 $0 $813,180 

Subtotal $816,000 $0 $816,000 
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05-95-491510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS, CLINICAL 
SERVICES 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Code Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Budget Amount Budget 

Contracts for 
2016 102-500734 Social Svc 49156501 $3,180 $0 $3,180 

Contracts for 
2017 102-500734 Social Svc 49156501 $796,820 $0 $796,820 

Subtotal $800,000 $0 $800,000 

05-95-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR 
COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds) 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budget 

Contracts for 
2018 102-500734 Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000 

Contracts for 
2019 102-500734 Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000 

Contract for 
2020 102-500734 Social Svs 92058501 $0 $233,333 $233,333 

Subtotal $1,400,000 $233,333 $1,633,333 

05-95-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL 
SVCS,CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds CFDA 93.959 FAIN: TI010035 and 34% 
General Funds) 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budget 

Contracts for 
2018 102-500734 Social Svc 92056501 $904,098 $0 $904,098 

Contracts for 
2019 102-500734 Social Svc 92057501 $800,000 $0 $800,000 

Contracts for 
2019 102-500734 Social Svc 92056505 $140,293 $0 $140,293 

Contracts for 
2020 102,500734 Social Svc 92057501 $0 $313,431 $313,431 

Subtotal $1,844,391 $313,431 $2,157,822 
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05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT OF, HHS: MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE, OFFICE OF MEDICAID AND 
BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT (100% General Funds) 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budget 

2019 101-500729 Medical Providers 47000254 $500,000 $0 $500,000 

2020 101-500729 Medical Providers 47000254 $0 $166,667 $166,667 

Subtotal $500,000 $166,667 $666,667 

TOTAL $5,360,391 $731,431 $6,073,822 

EXPLANATION 

This request is sole source because the last amendment increased funding by more than 10% 
of the total contract price limitation. 

The purpose of this request is to have the vendor continue serving as the Peer Recovery 
Support Services Facilitating Organization (PRSS FO). The vendor supports the ongoing development 
of RCCs. 

This amendment will support maintenance and expansion of recovery support services for 
people with substance use disorder at twelve (12) RCCs throughout the state. The funds will enable 
centers to provide a minimum of 26,000 RCC-generated services to individuals in recovery by 
expanding center-based programming. 

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to renew 
the contract for up to four (4) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory 
performance of service, parties' written authorizations and approval from the Governor and Executive 
Council. The Department exercised two (2) of the four (4) years of renewal available through 
Amendment #1. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for four (4) months of the 
remaining two (2) years available. 

Upon Governor and Executive Council approval of this request, the Department will have one 
(1) year and eight (8) months of renewal option available for this contract contingent upon availability of 
funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorizations and approval from the 
Governor and Executive Council. 

The Contractor will continue to support the development and expansion of critical referral 
partnerships and relationships between substance use disorder service providers, including treatment 
agencies, corrections and drug courts, and homeless serving organizations. Funds in this agreement 
will be used to assess and enhance the level of accreditation readiness of each of the RCCs. The 
Contractor will continue providing program management and oversight. Additionally, the Contractor will 
implement a quality improvement process in collaboration with the Department and other PRSS 
organizations and implement culturally appropriate processes and outcome data collection and 
analysis. 

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of 
the agreement: 

• Operational status of Recovery Community Centers; 

• Each RCC meets CAPRSS standards; 
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• Engaging individuals with "lived experience" in completing requirements to provide Peer 
Recovery Support Services, including completing the "Recovery Coach" training and becoming 
a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) under the Board of Licensing for Alcohol and 
Other Drug Use Professionals; 

• Having the mechanisms and protocols in place to collect client information, including process 
and outcome data; and 

• Providing services and supports to a minimum of 26,000 individuals in recovery. 

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department's overall 
strategy to address the disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negatively impacted, with 
fewer individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to a community-based PRSS, 
many of them may require additional intensive treatment services. Others may continue in their active 
addiction, leading to negative medical, legal and child welfare consequences for those persons, their 
families and society, incurring much higher costs to the Department and state. 

Area served: Statewide. 

Source of Funds: 36.07% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human 
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.959 FAIN TI010035 
and 40.33% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission Funds and 23.60J/o General Funds. 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

ctfully subm~{A). . 

rs 

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families 
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence. 
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State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #4 to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services Contract 

This 4th Amendment to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services contract (hereinafter referred to as 
"Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human 
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc., (hereinafter 
referred to as "the Contractor"}, a nonprofit with a place of business at 45 High Street, Nashua, NH. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council 
on June 1, 2016 (Item #13}, and as amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20}, July 11, 2018 (Item #15}, and 
September 20, 2018 (Item #22}, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms 
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and 

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment 
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, the State may 
modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties 
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and 
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and 

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this 
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: 

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1. 7, Completion Date, to read: 

October 31, 2019. 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: 

$6,073,822. 

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1. 9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read: 

Nathan D. White, Director. 

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.1 0, State Agency Telephone Number, to read: 

603-271-9631. 

5. Delete Exhibit A, Amendment #3 Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A 
Amendment #4, Scope of Services. 

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, to add Section 3.1, to read: 

3.1 Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual 
expenditures in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-
5 Amendment #4. 

7. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4. 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 
16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 

Amendment #4 
Paqe 1 of 3 
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Name: Katja Fox 
Title: Director 

Date 

Harbor Homes, Inc. ~/ 

Name:~ 
Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature: 

State of JtlfJ lk1s:hiru , County of ih/lrbG:'.;J on tfh t.T. rf )p<.. , before the 
undersigned offic r, personally appeared the pe on identified directly above, or sat1sfactonly proven to 
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the 
capacity indicated above. 

~~J 
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace 

-f<AP-EbJ ±<\DT&:L-~CooaO..DLNfflo Q 
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace 

My Commission Expires: __ j+-\ ..... 5~\~'-d...,.,C ...... \""'2_3...____ 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 
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KAREN RIDDEL . 
Notary Public-New Hampsh•re 

My Commission Expires 
September 05, 2023 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and 
execution. 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

tjsjZo\Cj 
Date Name: L·h ~ th. jtSl, 

Title: 3~ f4#:sY M:J 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of 
the State of New Hampshire atthe Meeting on: (date of meeting) · 

Date 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 
16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Name: 
Title: 

Amendment #4 
Page 3 of 3 
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Exhibit A Amendment #4 

Scope of Serv1ces 

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance 
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to 
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) 
days of the contract effective date. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New 
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an 
impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to 
modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this 
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. 

1.3. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean 
consecutive calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days. 

1.4. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to business days shall mean 
Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holid~ys. 

1.5. The Contractor shall conduct an assessment of Recovery Community 
Centers (RCCs) to determine the level of readiness for each RCC to become 
accredited according to the standards set forth by the Council on 
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS). 

1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide each RCC with 
assistance to meet accreditation standards set forth by the CAPRSS. 

1. 7. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Recovery Support Services 
(PRSS) technical assistance assets to assess the capacity of each RCC 
relative to the core and optional standards defined by the Council of 
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS). 

1.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and RCCs to determine 
culturally appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis. 

1.9. The Contractor shall provide program management and oversight as well as 
implement a quality improvement process. 

2. Scope of Services 

2.1. The Contractor shall complete an accreditation readiness scan of all known 
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs), statewide. The Contractor shall: 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 

2.1.1. Determine each RCC's ability to achieve Council of Accreditation 
of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) accreditation. 

2.1.2. 

2.1.3. 

Determine each RCC's ability to open a Recovery Center. 

Determine each RCC's capacity to provide Peer Recovery 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials: a 
16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 Page 1 of 10 Date: ff<{[/1 
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PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 

Support Serv1ces (PRSS). 

2.1.4. Determine each RCC's commitment to becoming a Medicaid 
provider, upon approval from the Center for Medicaid and 
Medicare Services (CMS) of the establishment of a 'Recovery 
Community Center' provider type under the New Hampshire 
Medicaid program. 

2.1.5. Provide a written determination of RCC readiness to the 
Department within 5 business days of completing the final RCC 
readiness scan. 

2.2. The Contractor shall enter into an agreement with a minimum of twelve (12) 
RCC's by June 30, 2020, in at least six (6) different Public Health Regions 
as approved by the Department, in order to increase and expand capacity 
for PRSS within each of the selected twelve (12) RCCs. The Contractor 
shall: 

2.2.1. Ensure that priority is given to Public Health Regions that do not 
have an RCC Provide a copy of each executed RCC agreement 
to the Department within five (5) days of agreement execution. 

2.3. The Contractor shall assess each RCC for accreditation readiness in 
accordance with the standards set forth by the CAPRSS. The Contractor 
shall: 

2.3.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates the 
RCC's capacity to provide PRSS services and current operational 
standards. 

2.3.2. Develop a written plan with each RCC that includes, but is not 
limited to: 

2.3.3. 

2.3.2.1. Timeframes to meeting CAPRSS accreditation 
standards. 

2.3.2.2. Goals that must be attained by each RCC in order to 
meet CAPRSS accreditation standards. 

2.3.2.3. Technical assistance needed for each RCC in order 
to meet CAPRSS goals, with time frames. 

Ensure training and technical assistance is provided to each 
RCC, as needed. 

2.4. The Contractor shall provide assistance to each RCC to ensure that they 
meet accreditation standards set forth by CAPRSS. The Contractor shall 

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 contractor lnitials:e &, 
16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 Page 2 of 10 Date: 
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Exhibit A Amendment #4 

ensure ass1stance 1nciudes, but 1s not hm1ted to: 

2.4.1. Technical assistance, as needed. 

2.4.2. 

2.4.3. 

Organizational coaching. 

Capacity development consultation. 

2.4.4. Administrative support functions, as needed. 

2.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Center for Excellence to develop 
and provide training as well as technical assistance to RCCs in order to: 

2.5.1. 

2.5.2. 

2.5.3. 

2.5.4. 

2.5.5. 

2.5.6. 

2.5.7. 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 

16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 

Provide technical assistance to RCCs to enroll in Medicaid upon 
the establishment of a "Peer Recovery Program" provider type by 
the New Hampshire Medicaid Program based on Federal Center 
for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) and other Federal 
and State requirements, which include: 

2.5.1.1. 42 CFR, Subpart B 

2.5.1.2. 

2.5.1.3. 

42 CFR, Subpart E 

45 CFR, 164.512(d) 

Ensure personnel providing Peer Recovery Coaching in Section 
2.5.3 below in RCCs are Certified Recovery Support Workers 
(CRSW) and meet the CAPRSS recovery coaching standards. 

Assist RCCs to expand capacity to include Peer Recovery 
Coaching and Telephone Recovery Support Services. 

Assist RCCs with expanding capacity to include back office 
support functions. 

Ensure personnel providing therapeutic services and center­
based programming services in Section 2.5.6 below are certified 
and/or trained in the services being provided. 

Assist RCCs to expand capacity to provide therapeutic services 
and center-based programming services and events that support 
recovery and generate social connections, peer supports and 
peer mentoring such as but not limited to: 

2.5.6.1. Therapeutic yoga services, 

2.5.6.2. Art programs and 

2.5.6.3. Music programs run by peers. 

Assist RCCs in establishing Recovery Centers and developing a 
plan to. sustain them. 

2.5.7.1. Submit the sustainability plans for each RCC to }9~ 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials:~ 
Page 3 of 10 Date: (g,( l.f { f ') 
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Department approval w1thm 18o days from the 
effective date of this amendment that may include 
agreements with collaborating partners including but 
not limited to: 

2.5.7.1.1. 

2.5.7.1.2. 

2.5.7.1.3. 

2.5.7.1.4. 

Substance Use Disorder Treatment 

Criminal Justice and law enforcement 

Homeless services 

Safe Station partner entities 

2.6. The Contractor shall utilize logistical support provided by the Center for 
Excellence to facilitate a Community of Practice that allows RCC 
administrators and leaders to establish and strengthen collegiality, 
cooperation, collaboration and informal mentoring among RCCs. The 
Contractor shall: 

2.6.1. 

2.6.2. 

2.6.3. 

2.6.4. 

Organize regular on-going RCC regional meetings with RCC 
administrators and leaders. 

Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCCs, statewide. 

Ensure that RCC engages in its local Regional Public Health 
Network (RPHN) to participate in continuum of care development 
work. 

Ensure that RCC collaborates on projects related to delivery of 
substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services 
with its local Integrated Delivery Network 

2.7. The Contractor shall assess the ability of each RCC to open and sustain a 
Recovery Center. The Contractor shall: 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 

2. 7.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates each 
RCC's readiness to open and sustain a Recovery Center, that 
includes, but is not limited to: 

2.7.1.1. The current organizational structure of the RCC's 
Recovery Center or the RCC's readiness to open a 
Recovery Center, as appropriate. 

2. 7 .1.2. The number of people that can be served by the 
RCC's Recovery Center. 

2. 7 .1.3. The RCCs ability to provide services specific to 
addressing local community needs including but not 
limited to: 

2.7.1.3.1. Including interim support services to 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials: ~ 
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' • New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 

2.7.1.3.2. 

2.7.1.3.3. 

2.7.1.3.4. 

2.7.1.3.5. 

keep an 1nd1v1dual engaged wh1le an 
individual is on a treatment wait-lists 

Community and volunteer 
trainings/workshops such as but not 
limited to vocational training and financial 
planning. 

Assisting individuals to access 
Transportation 

Employment assistance 

Connections to housing and other basic 
needs related to an individual's stability 
and health and wellbeing to participate in 
services 

2.7.1.4. The RCCs financial viability to support a Recovery 
Center. 

2.7.2. Work with each RCC to develop a written plan to open a 
Recovery Center. 

2.7.3. Assist RCCs to secure funding from other public and private 
sources to ensure ongoing sustainability of services. 

2.8. The Contractor shall assess current established RCCs for adequate staffing 
or the need for additional staffing to increase and expand RCC services and 
assist the RCC with obtaining staff. 

2.9. The Contractor shall provide recovery-oriented training and expertise to the 
RCCs to support the statewide Recovery Friendly Workplace initiative as 
defined by the State of New Hampshire at: 
https://www.recoveryfriendlvworkplace.com 

2.1 0. The Contractor shall demonstrate collaboration with community partners to 
support referrals and other activities for an individual to access services that 
meet all their recovery needs, including but not limited to: 

2.1 0.1. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Centers 

2.1 0.2. Recovery-housing programs 

2.1 0.3. Medication Assisted Treatment programs. 

2.11. The Contractor shall assist RCCs with performing back office functions that 

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 

16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 Page 5 of 10 
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Exhibit A Amendment #4 

may 1nciude, but are not hm1ted to: 

2.11.1. Human resource functions including but not limited to: 

2.11.1.1. Aiding in developing staff recruitment and retention 
plans 

2.11.1.2. Aiding in development of volunteer engagement and 
retention plans 

2.11.2. Financial functions such as accounting, bookkeeping and payroll. 

2.11.3. Billing functions. 

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure billing services are available to each RCC until 
such time RCCs can perform billing functions on their own. Billing functions 
shall include, but are not limited to: 

2.12.1. Submitting PRSS client services covered by Medicaid to the 
appropriate.managed care organization (MCO). 

2.12.2. Disbursing payments received from MCOs to the appropriate 
RCC. 

2.12.3. Accepting RCC invoices for operational costs. 

2.12.4. Paying RCCs for operational costs on a cost reimbursement 
basis. 

2.12.5. Submitting RCC operational cost invoices to the Department for 
reimbursement. 

2.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with the NH Center for Excellence to: 

2.13.1. Identify data evaluation criteria. 

2.13.2. Implement an evaluation process in each RCC. 

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure technical assistance is available to each RCC 
in order to collect, analyze and utilize data, for the evaluation process in 
Section 2.1 0.2., which shall include but is not limited to: 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 

2.14.1. Demographics, which include but are not limited to: 

2.14.1.1. Gender 

2.14.1.2. Age 

2.14.1.3. Ethnicity 

2.14.1.4. Primary drug of choice 
2.14.2. SAMHSA National Outcome Measures 

(http://wwwdasis.samhsa.gov/dasis2/noms/noms attch1.pdf), 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor lnitials:_fr__ 
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Exhibit A Amendment #4 

which mclude: 

2.14.2.1. Abstinence 

2.14.2.2. Crime and Criminal Justice 

2.14.2.3. Employment/Education 

2.14.2.4. Stability in Housing 

2.14.2.5. Social Connectedness 
2.14.3. Referral Source 

2.14.4. Client Financial Information 

2.14.5. Healthcare Coverage Information 

2.14.6. Substance Use Disorder treatment history 

2.14. 7. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occurring Disorder recovery 
needs 

2.14.8. Participation in Community Services 

2.14.9. Recovery capital 

2.15. The Contractor will work with the Department to identify the next cohort of 
RCCs to prepare them for CAPRSS accreditation. 

3. Reporting Requirements 

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan for each state fiscal year by July 15 
of that year. This work plan shall be subject to review and approval by the 
Department. 

3.2. Report on readiness for all considered RCC, that includes but is not limited 
to: 

3.2.1. Progress on the annual work plan. 

3.2.2. Accreditation readiness. 

3.2.3. Recovery center capacity 

3.2.4. Capacity to provider PRSS 

3.2.5. Commitment to enrolling in Medicaid, upon approval from the 
Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) of the 
establishment of a 'Recovery Community Center' provider type 
under the New Hampshire Medicaid program. 

3.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that include but are not limited 

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials: rJ t 
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o: 

3.3.1. 

3.3.2. 

3.3.3. 

3.3.4. 

3.3.5. 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 

Progress on the annual work plan. 

Progress on each RCC's work plan components. 

Information on RCC trainings conducted, including but not limited 
to, type of training provided and number of attendees. 

Information regarding RCC meetings that occurred, as described 
in Section 2.6, including but not limited to, venue, number of 
attendees and methods used to advertise meetings. 

PRSS provided by each RCC, including number of individuals 
served 

3.3.6. Back office support provided, as described in Section 2.8. 

3.4. The Contractor shall submit a final report to the Department that includes, 
but is not limited to: 

Harbor Homes, Inc. 

3.4.1. 

3.4.2. 

3.4.3. 

3.4.4. 

3.4.5. 

3.4.6. 

Information on each of the twelve (12) RCCs including the 
number of individuals served during the three (3) months prior to 
entering into agreements with the Contractor in comparison to 
the number of individuals served by the RCC from July 1st to June 
3Qth of each subsequent year. 

How many and what type of trainings were provided over the term 
of the contract. 

The number of RCCs that are accredited by the CAPRSS and 
those that meet CAPRSS standards. 

The number and location of each Recovery Center that opened 
as a result of contracted services. 

The type of PRSS services delivered by each RCC, including the 
number of individuals served by each. 

Information regarding clients served, which shall include but not 
be limited to: 

3.4.6.1. Analysis of client data referenced in 2.11 by individual 
RCC. 

3.4.6.2. Analysis of aggregated client data 
3.4.7. Back Office functions performed for each RCCs, which may 

include but is not limited to: 

3.4.7.1. Human Resources. 

3.4.7.2. Financial. 

3.4.7.3. Client billing to other funding sources not in thi(i / 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials: L(_ 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 

con rae. 
3.4.8. All contractor work that has started and any progress toward 

CAPRSS accreditation for the next cohort of RCCs identified to 
the Department. 

4. Deliverables 

4.1. The Contractor shall provide copies of the executed agreements described 
in Section 2.2, to the Department within five (5) business days of fully 
executing the documents. Each agreement and renewal are subject to BOAS 
review and approval. 

4.2. The Contractor shall complete an assessment, as described in Section 2.3.1, 
for each of the RCCs, within ninety (90) days of the contract effective date. 

4.2.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through 
Amendment; 

4.2.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. 

4.2.1.2. The assessment shall be completed within ninety (90) 
days of Department approval, per Section 4.1. 

4.2.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to perform 
assessments on RCCs which were completed as a 
component of the original contract. 

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a copy of each accreditation plan described in 
Section 2.3.2., within one hundred-twenty (120) days of the contract effective 
date. 

4.3.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through 
Amendment; 

4.3.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. 

4.3.1.2. The accreditation plan shall be provided within one 
hundred-twenty (120) days of Department approval, 
per Section 4.1. 

4.3.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide plans 
for RCCs which were completed as a component of 
the original contract. 

4.4. The Contractor shall provide a written Recovery Center assessment, as 
described in Section 2.7, for each RCC, within one hundred-eighty (180) 
days of the contract effective date. 

4.4.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through 

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials: ~ 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

Exhibit A Amendment #4 

Amendment; 

4.4.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. 

4.4.1.2. The assessment shall be provided within one 
hundred-eighty ( 180) Department approval, per 
Section 4.1. 

4.4.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide 
assessments on RCCs which were completed as a 
component of the original contract. 

4.5. The Contractor shall provide the billing process and payment timeframes for 
providing the services in Section 2.9, within one hundred-twenty (120) days 
of the contract effective date and shall provide information on any changes 
made to the process and/or timeframes within thirty (30) days of making 
those changes. 

4.6. The Contractor shall have provided a minimum of 26,000 RCO-generated 
services for ihe period of July through October 2019, shall be provided to 
community members including, but not limited to: 

4.6.1. Individual recovery coaching 

4.6.2. Telephone recovery support services 

4.6.3. 

4.6.4. 

4.6.5. 

4.6.6. 

Therapeutic services 

Center-based programming 

Crisis management and systems navigation, and 

Other trainings and supports. 

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials:~ 
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Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Bidder/Program Name: Harbor Homes, Inc. 

Budget Request for: PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 
(Name of RFP) 

Budget Period: SFY 2020 (July 1, 2019- October 31, 2019) 

Total Program Cost 
Direct Indirect Total 

Line Item Incremental Fixed 
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 101,396.04 $ - $ 101,396.04 
2. Employee Benefits $ 19,427.44 $ - $ 19,427.44 
3. Consultants $ 1,875.45 $ - $ 1,875.45 
4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -

Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ 1,811.88 $ - $ 1,811.88 

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ - I 

Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ 1,970.81 $ - $ 1,970.81 

6. Travel $ 4,132.35 $ - $ 4,132.35 
7. Occupancy $ 2,860.86 $ - $ 2,860.86 
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -

Telephone $ 1,004.48 $ - $ 1,004.48 
Postaqe $ 76.29 $ - $ 76.29 
Subscr~tions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $ -
Insurance $ 1,335.07 $ - $ 1,335.07 
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -

9. Software $ - $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -
11. Staff Education and Traini~g $ 11,125.55 $ - $ 11,125.55 
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 566,414.80 $ - $ 566,414.80 
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -

Harbor Homes, Inc. 

TOTAL $ 713,431.00 $ - $ 713,431.00 
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0% 

Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4 Cootrnot"'' lo;tlal' fr-
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State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFICATE 

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is 

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 15, 1980. I further certify 

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this 

office is concerned. 

Business ID: 62778 

Certificate Number: 0004516965 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed 

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, 

this 17th day of May A.D. 2019. 

~~ 
William M. Gardner 

Secretary of State 



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 

I, , do hereby certify that: 
cted Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory) 

1. I am a duly elected Officer of lk r lxx= /fo fl7 ~- ::k:LJ<._ ' 
• (AQenC:iNam€0 

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Agency duly held on -5/3;/;1 
~{Date) 

RESOLVED: That the -.-..~ft~'f'eS==--=-t..:;...J'c/.......,~..s....'tl~f___,--f..__C"--e=·~o-"'--·----­
(Title of Contract Signatory) 

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to 
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, 
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. 

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of 

the~ day o1 J,wte . 20L$ 
(Date Co ct Signed) 

4. fekr Pelle her 
(Name of Contract Signatory) 

is the duly elected _ _,_fJ.---.n ........ z:_<;.......,,d<..L.-L.--e~'/l,_,_/----+'-(--'C>==-Oo£_,0........c,__ 
1Title of Contract Signatory) 

of the Agency. 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

County of Y,//s.k,l- ..... )~ 
7 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 

11 ) ) . 
By JJ}i(./ /tfo-wv, 'cA . 

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) 

{!\lOT ARY SEAL) 

Comf!11Ssion Expires: 
WIWAM C. MARTIN 

Jultloe of the Peace - New Hnpahl,. 
My Commllllon Expll'll November 4, 2020 

tf'f\ day of )ur.e t! ,20_1_, 

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace) 



ACORD
8 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MMIDD/YYYY) 

~ 11/30/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~:~~cT Kimberly Gutekunst 
Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc. 

rlJgNJo. Extl: 603-882-2766 I FAX 
11 Concord Street (Ate Nol: 

Nashua NH 03064 it'D~~ss: kgutekunst@eatonberube.com 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : Hanover Insurance 
INSURED HARHO INSURER B : Philadelphia Insurance Companies 
Harbor Homes, Inc 

INSURER c : Eastern Alliance Insurance Group 77 Northeastern Boulevard 
Nashua NH 03062 INSURER D : Selective Insurance Group 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER·1724279025 REVISION NUMBER· 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE ~~~; .~~ ~~~hl~~) ~~~~~~~) LIMITS LTR POLICY NUMBER 

D X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y S2288207 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 - 0 CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 

- PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 1,000,000 

MED EXP (Any one person) $20,000 -
X Abuse PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000 -
~'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000 

POLICY D .\'~& 0 LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000 

OTHER: $ 

D AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 306871 
-

7/1/2018 7/1/2019 if:~~~~d~~tfiNGLE LIMIT $ 1,000,000 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
- OWNED X SCHEDULED 

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

x HIRED 7 NON-OWNED rp~?~;,~J.;';,gAMAGE $ 
- AUTOS ONLY 1-- AUTOS ONLY 

$ 

D X UMBRELLA LIAB _M OCCUR 
306873 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000 -

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $10,000,000 

DED I I RETENTION$ $ 

c WORKERS COMPENSATION 010000111752 11/26/2018 11/26/2019 X I ~f~TUTE I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

YIN 
ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE D E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA 
(Mandatory In NH) EL DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000 
If yes, describe under 

$ 1,000,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 
A Professional Liability 

I 
L1VA966006 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 Professional "Gap" $1,000,000 

8 Management Liability PHSD1258460 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 D&O $1,000,000 
D Crime 52288207 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 Employee Dishonesty $510,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
Additional Named Insureds: 
Harbor Homes, Inc.- FlO# 020351932 
Harbor Homes II, Inc. 
Harbor Homes Ill, Inc. 
Healthy at Homes, Inc. -FlO# 043364080 
Milford Regional Counseling Service, Inc. -FlO# 222512360 
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIOS Task Force -FlO# 020447280 
Welcoming Light, Inc. -FlO# 020481648 
See Attached ... 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

DHHS, State of NH 
129 Pleasant Street 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Concord NH 03301 

171-.t!..(~ 
I 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All nghts reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO ------------------------------------
LOC#: ____________ ___ 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE 
AGENCY NAMED INSURED 

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc. Harbor Homes, Inc 
77 Northeastern Boulevard 

POLICY NUMBER Nashua NH 03062 

CARRIER I NAICCODE 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 

HH Ownership, Inc. 
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859 
Boulder Point, LLC- Map 213/Lot 5.3, Boulder Point Drive, Plymouth, NH 03264 

Page of 

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



77 Northeastern Blvd 
Nashua, NH 03062 
www.harborhomes.org 

••• HARBOR 
HOMES.INC. 

A Beacon for the Homeless for Over 30 Years 

Mission Statement 

Phone: 603-882-3616 
603-881-8436 

Fax: 603-595-7 414 

----

To create and provide quality residential am/ supportive services for persons (ami their families) challenged by mental 
illness and homelessness. 

A member of the 

Partnership tor Successful living 
A collaboration of six affiliated not-for-profit organizations providing southern New Hampshire's most vulnerable 
community members with access to housing, health care, education, employment and supportive services. 
www .nhpartnership.org 

Harbor Homes • Healthy at Home • Keystone HcJ!I • lv'lilforcl Regior1ol Counseling Services 
• Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force • Welcoming Ligllt 
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MELANSON 
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Harbor Homes, Inc. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

102 Perimeter Road 
r-.Jashua, hiH 03063 
(603)882-1111 
me!ansonhe<:th.com 

Additional Offices: 

Andover. MA 
Greenfield, MA 
Manchester. NH 
Ellsworth, ME 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harbor 
Homes, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of· 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an op1n10n on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Healthy 
at Home, Inc., whose statements reflect total assets constituting 1% of consolidated 
total assets at June 30, 2018, and total revenues constituting 5% of consolidated 
total revenues for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other 
auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it 
relates to the amounts included for Healthy at Home, Inc., is based solely on the 
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the 
consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the 
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc.'s fiscal year 2017 financial state­
ments, including the fiscal year 2017 financial statements of the entities included in 
these consolidated financial statements (except for Healthy at Home, Inc. which was 
audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those 
audited financial statements), and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on those 
audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative 
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which 
it has been derived. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The Consolidating Statement of Financial Position and the 
Consolidating Statement of Activities are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
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and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report 
dated December 20, 2018 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Harbor Homes Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

December 20, 2018 

3 



HARBOR HOMES, INC. 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
June 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2017) 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable, net 
Patient receivables, net 
Promises to give 
Investments 
Inventory 
Other assets 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Property and equipment, net 
Deferred compensation plan assets 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities: 
Lines of credit 
Current portion of capital leases payable 
Current portion of mortgages payable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 
Other liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long-Term Liabilities: 
Security deposits 
Deferred compensation plan liabilities 
Mortgages payable, tax credits 
Mortgages payable, net of current portion 
Mortgages payable, deferred 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Unrestricted Net Assets 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2018 2017 

$ 480,242 $ 754,353 
1,096,661 614,739 
2,060,419 2,784,965 
1,301,048 1,079,605 

8,000 
192,731 493,543 
123,078 67,277 

71 '155 101,770 
5,325,334 5,904,252 

30,968,341 30,353,542 
16,800 

30,985,141 30,353,542 

$ 36,310,475 $ 36,257,794 

$ 1,285,423 $ 1,094,935 
18,304 

496,608 450,736 
865,390 1,289,475 

1,742,169 1,464,378 
341,071 33,017 
12,077 5,582 

4,742,738 4,356,427 

68,918 67,636 
16,800 

158,237 79,280 
15,783,030 16,245,171 
8,571,209 7,618,496 

24,598,194 24,010,583 

29,340,932 28,367,010 

6,851,238 7,561,606 
118,305 329,178 

6,969,543 7,890,784 

$ 36,310,475 $ 36,257,794 



HARBOR HOMES, INC. 

Consolidated Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30,2018 

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2017) 

Temporarily 
Unrestricted Restricted 
Net Assets Net Assets 

Public Support and Revenue: 
Public Support: 

State and local grants $ 11,380,392 $ $ 
Federal grants 7,496,411 80,300 
Contributions 73,663 613,018 
Other grants 217,794 451,324 
Fundraising events, net 20,857 28,097 
Net assets released from restriction 1,383,612 (1 ,383,612) 

Total Public Support 20,572,729 (210,873) 

Revenue: 
Patient services revenues (other), net 5,686,860 
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 3,664,163 
Department of Housing and 
Urban Develorment programs 3,429,882 

Veterans Administration programs 2,213,701 
Contracted services 1,039,097 
Rent and service charges, net 867,249 
Outside rent 555,551 
Fees for services 344,456 
Miscellaneous 177,075 
Investment income (loss) 40,632 

Total Revenue 18,018,666 
Total Public Support and Revenue 38,591,395 (210,873) 

Expenses: 
Program 33,423,301 
Administration 3,754,447 
Fundraising 667,731 

Total Expenses 37,845,479 

Change in net assets before depreciation 745,916 (210,873) 

Depreciation (1,456,284) 

Change in net assets (710,368) (210,873) 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7,561,606 329,178 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 6,851,238 $ 118,305 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2018 2017 
Total Total 

11,380,392 $ 7,395,645 
7,576,711 8,074,192 

686,681 1,044,621 
669,118 217,600 
48,954 33,283 

20,361,856 16,765,341 

5,686,860 5,512,169 
3,664,163 2,430,161 

3,429,882 3,420,327 
2,213,701 2,160,799 
1,039,097 1,044,751 

867,249 825,519 
555,551 432,905 
344,456 318,808 
177,075 27,768 
40,632 26,437 

18,018,666 16,199,644 
38,380,522 32,964,985 

33,423,301 27,777,021 
3,754,447 3,176,798 

667,731 670,846 
37,845,479 31,624,665 

535,043 1,340,320 

(1,456,284) (1 ,354,446) 

(921 ,241) (14, 126) 

7,890,784 7,904,910 

6,969,543 $ 7,890,784 



Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Client rental assistance 
Employee benefits 
Contracted services 
Occupancy 
Payroll taxes 
Client insurance assistance 
Operational supplies 
Grants and donations 
Interest expense 
Office expenses 
Other client assistance 
Retirement contributions 
Information technology 
Client food and nutrition services 
Travel 
Insurance 
Professional fees 
Miscellaneous 
Legal fees 
Accounting fees 
Conferences, conventions, and meetings 
Advertising and promotion 
Client counseling and support services 
Staff expenses 
Membership dues 
Client medical assistance 

Total Expenses 

Depreciation 

Total Functional Expenses 

HARBOR HOMES, INC. 

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2017) 

Program Administration Fundraising 

$ 14,520,100 $ 2,272,110 $ 435,102 
6,475,207 
1,822,234 291,863 43,725 
1,930,543 67,920 5,586 
1,753,278 176,775 4,022 
1,157,347 171,856 34,646 

923,931 
799,811 6,456 219 
518,300 39,641 71,553 
804,073 126,025 2,768 
472,217 73,943 38,674 
460,267 50 
324,433 122,669 6,605 
253,023 47,632 3,505 
243,474 519 
218,521 16,835 1,194 
152,556 10,724 228 
119,833 51,595 6,426 
137,963 66,459 1,393 
29,722 81,685 226 

1,040 105,769 
86,759 12,227 1,181 
83,847 4,576 9,979 
60,218 367 
33,117 4,518 699 
20,772 2,233 
20,715 

33,423,301 3,754,447 667,731 

1,337,587 114,639 4,058 

$ 34,760,888 $ 3,869,086 $ 671,789 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

6 

2018 2017 
Total Total 

$ 17,227,312 $ 14,123,846 
6,475,207 5,793,879 
2,157,822 1,516,722 
2,004,049 2,134,126 
1,934,075 1,733,130 
1,363,849 1,059,527 

923,931 459,578 
806,486 354,235 
629,494 752,534 
932,866 739,534 
584,834 349,044 
460,317 123,926 
453,707 323,890 
304,160 602,080 
243,993 217,641 
236,550 221,188 
163,508 251,962 
177,854 163,910 
205,815 127,572 
111,633 122.421 
106,809 115,000 
100,167 151,668 
98,402 24,842 
60,585 106,044 
38,334 10,830 
23,005 30,190 
20,715 15,346 

37,845,479 31,624,665 

1,456,284 1,354,446 

$ 39,301,763 $ 32,979,111 



HARBOR HOMES, INC. 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2017) 

2018 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Change in net assets $ (921 ,241) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 
net cash from operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 1,456,284 
(Increase) Decrease In: 
Accounts receivable 724,546 
Patient receivables (221,443) 
Promises to give 8,000 
Inventory (55,801) 
Other assets 30,615 

Increase (Decrease) In: 
Accounts payable (424,085) 
Accrued expenses 277,791 
Deferred revenue 308,054 
Other liabilities 6,495 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,189,215 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
Security deposits 1,282 
Purchase of fixed assets (2,071 ,083) 
Sale of investments 300,812 

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1 ,768,989) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities: 
Borrowings from lines of credit, net 190,488 
Payments on capital leases (18,304) 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,007,713 
Payments on long-term borrowings (471,269) 
Proceeds from tax credits 100,000 
Payments on tax credits (21,043) 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 787,585 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 207,811 

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 1,369,092 

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year $ 1,576,903 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 

Interest paid $ 932,866 

Non-cash financing activities $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2017 

$ (14,126) 

1,354,446 

(1 ,304,307) 
(242,996) 

(8,000) 
(67,277) 
76,667 

792,902 
381,422 

5,739 
(257,701) 
716,769 

25,993 
(640,938) 
(340,897) 
(955,842) 

807,868 
(43,127) 
200,000 

(422,991) 

(21,043) 
520,707 

281,634 

1,087,458 

$ 1,369,092 

$ 660,327 

$ 4,950,000 



HARBOR HOMES, INC. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Organization: 

The consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. include the 
following related entities. All inter-entity transactions have been eliminated. 
Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated entities are hereinafter referred to 
as the "Organization". 

Harbor Homes, Inc. - Creates and provides quality residential and 
supportive services for persons (and their families) challenged by mental 
illness and/or homelessness in the State of New Hampshire. Programs 
include mainstream housing, permanent housing, transitional housing, and 
emergency shelter, as well as comprehensive support services that 
include behavioral healthcare, peer support programs, job training, a paid 
employment program, and social and educational activities. Harbor 
Homes, Inc. also runs a health care clinic that is a Federally Qualified 
Health Center (FQHC) offering primary medical services to the homeless 
and/or low-income individuals. 

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC - A single-member, New Hampshire 
Limited Liability Company, created to develop and manage a new 
permanent supportive housing facility in Plymouth, New Hampshire 
(Boulder Point, LLC) for homeless veterans. Harbor Homes, Inc. is the 
sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC. 

Boulder Point, LLC - A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company, 
whose purpose is to acquire, own, develop, construct and/or rehabilitate, 
manage, and operate a new veterans housing project in Plymouth, New 
Hampshire. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a 0.01% investor member 
and the manager member. 

Harbor Homes II, Inc., Harbor Homes Ill, Inc., and HH Ownership, Inc. 
-Provides residential services to the chronically mentally ill. 

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - Provides recovery support 
services which are evidence-based, gender-specific, and culturally 
competent, including residential, transitional housing, outpatient, intensive 
outpatient, family-based substance abuse services, pregnant and 
parenting women and children, and offender re-entry services initiative. 

Healthy at Home, Inc. - Provides home healthcare services to residents 
of Nashua and surrounding communities and strives to enhance the lives 
of people with illness or injury through a cooperative relationship with the 
community, professional medical service providers, and associations that 
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serve people in need of healthcare. Homecare, rehabilitative, and private 
duty nursing services are provided in the individual's home setting. 

Welcoming Light, Inc. - Provides residential services to the elderly and 
disabled and offers training for substance abuse and mental health issues 
and training for nonprofit agencies in New Hampshire. 

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. - Provides 
educational case management, mental health and alternative therapy 
assistance, housing assistance, food and nutritional guidance, substance 
abuse counseling, and other related support services to people in the 
Southern New Hampshire region infected with the HIV/Aids virus. 

Milford Regional Counseling, Inc. - Operates a regional counseling 
center serving the Greater Souhegan Valley area and provides 
counseling, guidance, and consultation to individuals, groups, children, 
adults, and families. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies: 

Comparative Financial Information 

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized 
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information 
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with 
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the 
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the 
summarized information was derived. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three 
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for 
long-term purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable, Net 

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for 
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is 
based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a 
review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when 
deemed uncollectable. 
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Patient Receivables, Net 

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the 
Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center. Additions to the 
allowance for doubtful accounts result from the provision for bad debts. 
Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubt­
ful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based 
upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections, 
business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid health 
care coverage, and other indicators. 

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have 
third-party coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment 
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the 
Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance 
for doubtful collections and a provision for doubtful collections, if necessary. 
For receivables associated with self-pay patients, the Organization records a 
significant provision for doubtful collections in the period of service on the 
basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable to 
pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The 
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected afi.er all 
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the 
allowance for doubtful collections. 

Inventory 

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is stated at the lower 
of cost or net realizable value determined by the first-in, first-out method. 

Investments 

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily 
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair 
values in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains 
and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying 
Consolidated Statement of Activities. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if 
purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation 
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years, or in the case of capitalized leased 
assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or 
the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and 
related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included in 
the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs 
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that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are 
expensed. 

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset 
may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to 
result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an 
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair 
value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal year 
2018. 

Net Assets 

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence 
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes 
therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general 
operations. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor 
restrictions that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or the 
passage of time. Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted 
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the 
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a 
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets 
and reported in the Consolidated Statement of Activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets- Net assets whose use is limited by 
donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of time nor 
can be fulfilled or otherwise removed. The restrictions stipulate that resources 
be maintained permanently, but permit expending of the income generated 
in accordance with donor stipulations. 

Revenue and Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments 
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the 
applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures 
are incurred, respectively. 

Patient Services Revenues, Net 

Patient services revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable 
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered. 
Self-pay revenue is recorded at published charges with charitable allowances 
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deducted to arrive at net self-pay revenue. All other patient services revenue 
is recorded at published charges with contractual allowances deducted to 
arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject to revisions 
under the provisions of reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for such 
revisions are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Included in third-party 
receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments. 

Charity Care 

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its 
charity care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established 
rates. Since the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts deter­
mined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are reported as deductions 
from revenue. 

Accounting for Contributions 

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as 
increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is 
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by 
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes arc reported as 
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets, 
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with 
payments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the 
year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted 
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support 
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions. 
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they 
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are 
substantially met. 

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions 

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash 
or investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an 
asset at its estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of 
the asset and its estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization 
policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses 
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If 
the use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one 
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional 
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term 
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and 
as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed. 

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial 
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of 
time and services in the Organization's program operations and in its fund-
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raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not 
meet the criteria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if (a) the 
services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have 
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and 
are provided by individuals possessing those skills. 

Grant Revenue 

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost­
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for 
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde­
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant 
Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the 
disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of 
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's manage­
ment believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially 
affect the financial position of the Organization. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa­
rized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The 
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural 
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have 
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. 

Administration expenses include those costs that are not directly identifiable 
with any specific program, but which provide for the overall support and 
direction of the Organization. 

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in 
contributions received in future years. Additionally, advertising costs are 
expensed as incurred. 

Change in Net Assets Before Depreciation 

Due to the significance of depreciation expense that is included in the 
Organization's change in net assets, the change in net assets before 
depreciation has been provided in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. 

Income Taxes 

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the 
exception of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have 
been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from 
federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501 (a) as 
organizations described in IRC Section 501 (c)(3), qualify for charitable 
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contribution deductions, and have been determined not to be private 
foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990), 
is required to be filed with the IRS for each entity. In addition, net income that 
is derived from business activities that are unrelated to an entity's exempt 
purpose is subject to income tax. In fiscal year 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. and 
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc. were subject to unrelated business 
income tax and filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return 
(Form 990-T) with the IRS. 

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a single-member, New Hampshire Limited 
Liability Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor 
Homes Plymouth, LLC has elected to be treated as a corporation. 

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company and has 
elected to be treated as a partnership. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump­
tions that affeci the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates and those differences could 
be material. 

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk 

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu­
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed 
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these 
accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited 
due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the 
outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies and entities 
supportive of the Organization's mission. Investments are monitored regularly 
by the Organization. Although the fair values of investments are subject to 
fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Organization believes that its 
investment strategies are prudent for the long-term welfare of the 
Organization. 

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures 

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial 
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most 
advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market condi­
tions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly 
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to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or 
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unob­
servable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data 
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs 
are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assump­
tions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on 
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as 
follows: 

Level 1 -Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These 
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are 
not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the 
asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs. 

Level 3- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liabiiity. In these situations, 
inputs are developed using the best information available in the 
circumstances. 

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs 
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. 
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities 
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example, 
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions). 

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial 
statements are: 

• Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment 
assets and unconditional contributions receivable. 

• Recurring measurement of investments - Note 4. 

• Recurring measurement of lines of credit- Note 9. 

• Recurring measurement of mortgages payable - Notes 1 0 - 12. 

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables, 
inventory, other assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, deferred 
revenue, and other liabilities, approximate fair value due to the short-term 
nature of the items. 
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Reclassifications 

Certain accounts in the prior year comparative totals have been reclassified 
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year 

consolidated financial statements. 

3. Restricted Cash: 

Restricted cash at June 30, 2018 consists of escrow and reserve accounts 
which are held for various purposes, and are comprised of the following: 

Construction escrows $ 471,769 
Reserve for replacements 547,792 • 

Residual receipt deposits 13,062 • 

Security deposits 64,038 

Total s 1,096,661 

'Required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

4. Investments: 

Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018: 

Fair 
Value Level 1 Level3 

Equities $ 19,426 $ 19,426 $ 
Other investments 173,305 173,305 

Total $ 192,731 $ 19.426 $ 173,305 
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5. 

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2017 

Additions 
Reductions 
Transfers in to Level3 

Ending Balance, June 30, 2018 

Accounts Receivable, Net: 

Fair Value 
Measurements 

Using Significant 
Unobservable Inputs 

Level3 
Other nvestments 

$ 161 ,946 

11,359 

$ 173,305 

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 consist of the following: 

Receivable Allowance Net 

Grants $ 1,497,960 $ $ 1,497,960 

Residents 59,701 (39,280) 20,421 

Other 284,876 284,876 

Medicaid 246,632 246,632 

Pledges 8,000 8,000 

Security deposits 2,530 2,530 

Total $ 2,099,699 $ (39,280) $ 2,060,419 

6. Patient Receivables, Net: 

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health 
Care Cente r~ consists of the following at June 30, 2018: 

Receivable Allowance Net 

Medicaid $ 811 ,024 $ (58,810) $ 752,214 

Medicare 235,566 (85,358) 150,208 

Other 767 453 {368,827) 398,626 

Total $ 1,814,043 $ {512,995) $ 1,301 ,048 
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7. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation: 

A summary of the major components of property and equipment as of 

June 30, 2018 is presented below: 

Land $ 4,338,288 

Land improvements 36,394 

Buildings 27,785,977 

Building improvements 7,031 ,206 

Software 840,669 
Vehicles 404,192 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 725,786 
Dental equipment 150,405 
Medical equipment 58,022 
Construction in progress 1,292,454 

Subtotal 42,663,393 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (11 ,695,052} 

Total $ 30,968,341 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $1,456,284. 

8. Accrued Expenses: 

Accrued expenses at June 30, 2018 include the following: 

Mortgage interest $ 84,503 

Payroll and related taxes 827,156 
Compensated absences 784,710 

Other 45,800 

Total s 1,742,169 

9. Lines of Credit: 

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had the following lines of credit avai lable: 

Harbor Homes, Inc. - $1 ,000,000 of credit available from TO Bank, N. A. 
due October 31 , 2018, secured by all business assets. The Organization is 
required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to TO Bank, N. 

A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2018, the 
credit line had an outstanding balance of $261 ,746 at an interest rate of 
6.00%. 
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Harbor Homes, Inc. - $500,000 line of credit available from TD Bank, 
N. A. due October 31 , 2018, secured by all business assets. The 
Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest 
payments to TD Bank, N. A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted 
daily. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding balance of 
$440,462 at an interest rate of 6.00%. 

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - $750,000 line of credit 
available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on demand, and 
secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a 
minimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal 
Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.00% at June 30, 2018) to Merrimack County 
Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding 
balance of $348,779. 

Healthy at Home, Inc. - $250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A., 
due October 31 , 2018, secured by all business assets. The interest rate is 
the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1% (6.00% at June 30, 2018). 
The outstanding balance on the line of credit was $234,436 at June 30, 
2018. 

Lines of credit are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2. 

10. Mortgages Payable, Tax Credits: 

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages payable by Harbor 
Homes, Inc. to the Community Development Finance Authority through the 
Community Development Investment Program, payable through the sale of 
tax credits to donor organizations, maturing in 2020, secured by real property 
located at 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH. This amount is amortized over 
ten years at zero percent interest. The amount due at June 30, 2018 is 
$58,237. 

Mortgages payable, tax credits also includes $100,000 of Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) to Boulder Point, LLC. 

Mortgages payable, tax credits are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as 
Level2. 
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11. Mortgages Payable: 

Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the following: 

Principal Payment Payment Interest 
Ba!ance Amoont Fr!QU!!Jg; Rate Maturity Propeay/Security 

$ 3,653.055 s 19,635 Monthly 4.00% 09/15/42 615 Amherst Street In Nashua. NH 
3,375,000 Interest only 4.00% 02128/19 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in Nashua, NH 

1,146.876 7,879 Monthly 6.77% 12/05133 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH 

1,125,000 Interest only 6.00% 11/22/18 75-77 Northeastern Boolevard in Nashua, NH 

1,118,886 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05133 335 Somerville Street In Manchester, NH 
1,041,850 7,768 Monthly 7.05% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street In Nashua. NH 

631,152 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street In Nashua. NH 
602.012 5,324 Monthly 4.38% 08/12/30 45 Hl!jh Street In Nashua, NH 
584,714 3,996 Monthly 4.75% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH 
443,434 2,692 Monthly 4.75% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street In Nashua. NH 
374,102 5 276 Monthly 9.25% 12101126 Aids Street in Nashua. NH 
348,728 5,387 Monthly 4.75% 03129121 14 Maple Street on Nashua, NH 
272.543 2,077 Monthly 4.83% 06129135 189 Kinsley Streec In Nasllua, NH 
256.339 3,369 Monthly 9.28% 01/01/28 ChestJ'Ail Streec In Nashua, NH 
243,747 1,425 Monthly 4.75% 04106142 45 High Street In Nashua, NH 
214,679 1,731 Monthly 7.00% 09/28136 7 T rinily SIJeet on Claremont, NH 
192.497 3,184 Monthly 9.25% 05/01125 North Main Street In Nashua, NH 
154.223 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 04/05/22 Mobile van 
150,933 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 03/05/22 615 Amherst Street In Nashua. NH 
109,834 1,144 Monthly 4.64% 1 1/10/29 24 Mulberry Street In Nashua, NH 
98,762 2,385 Monthly 9.25% 08/01122 3 Winter Street In Nashua. NH 
90.208 779 Monthly 4.32% 04/11/37 4 New Haven Drive, Unit 202 in Nashua, NH 
55,000 Interest only 3.08% 10/31/19 Boulder Point Drive In Plymouth, NH 
45,227 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35 59 Faelory Street in Nashua. NH 
20.058 1,552 Monthly 4.50% 07/13119 15 Union Street In Molford, NH 

$ 16,348,859 Subtotal 

(69,221 ) Less debt issuance costs 

(496.608) Less amount due withn one year 

$ 15,783,030 Mortgages payable, net o1 cufT8flt portion 

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned 
long-term debt. 

Year Amount 

2019 $ 496,608 
2020 504,104 
2021 531 ,444 
2022 543,121 
2023 501,920 
Thereafter 13,771,662 

Total $ 16,348,859 

Mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2. 
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12. Mortgages Payable, Deferred: 

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding at June 30, 2018 total­
ing $8,571,209. These loans are interest free, and are not required to be 
repaid unless the Organization is in default with the terms of the loan 

agreements or, for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that 
program. 

Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

City of Manchester: 
Somerville Street property $ 300 000 

Total City of Manchester 300,000 

City of Nashua: 
Factory Street property 580,000 
Spring Street property 491,000 
Strawberry Bank condominiums 80,000 
High Street fire system 65,000 

T otat Coty of Nashua 1,216,000 

Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
Strawberry Bank condominiums 436,400 

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 436,400 

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB): 
Boulder Point property 952,713 
Factory Street property 400,000 
Somerville Street property 400,000 
Spring Street property 398,747 
Amherst Street property 385,000 

Total FHLB 2,536,460 

NHHFA: 
Amherst Street property 1,500,000 
Factory Street property 1,000,000 
Spnng Street property 550,000 
Charles Street property 32,349 
Somerville Street property 1,000.000 

Total NHHFA 4,082.349 

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred $ 8.571.209 

Deferred mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as 
Level2. 
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13. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets: 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at 
June 30, 2018: 

Purpose Amount 

Special events $ 40,224 
Housing 20,439 
Client services 39,216 
Clinic 2,656 
Dental 10,000 
Miscellaneous 5,770 

Total $ 118,305 

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the 
restricted purpose or by the passage of time. 

14. Patient Services Revenue (FQHC), Net: 

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services 
provided through its FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third­
party payor, and managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual 
rates for services rendered. For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify 
for charity care, the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of its 
standard rates for services provided or on the basis of discounted rates if 
negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity care services are 
computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and family size. 
On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the 
Organization's uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the 
services provided. Thus, the Organization records a provision for bad debts 
related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided. 

The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient 
is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies, 
which define charity services as those costs for which no payment is antici­
pated. The Organization uses federally established poverty guidelines to 
assess the level of discount provided to the patient. The Organization is 
required to provide a full discount to patients with annual incomes at or below 
1 00% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If the patient is 
unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All patients 
are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on house­
hold size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients 
with incomes over 200% of federal poverty guidelines. 
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15. 

Patient services revenue (FQHC), net of prOVISIOn for bad debts and 
contractual allowances and discounts, consists of the following: 

2018 2017 
Charitable Net Palient Net Patient 

Gtoss Contractual Care Se<Viee SeMee 

Cha!lJ!S Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue 

Medicaid $ 1,788,985 $ (283.487) $ s 1,505,498 $ 1,470.902 

Medicare 1,649,191 (624,839) 1,024,352 284,040 
Third-party 1,597.970 (528,963) 1,069,007 560,456 
Sliding fee/free care 443,680 (440,720) 2,960 18,900 

Se~-pay 427 971 (124,171} 303,800 301,645 

Sublotal $ 5,907,797 $ 11,437,289} $ (564,891! 3,905.617 2,635,943 

Provision for bad debts !241.454} (205,782} 

T04al $ M641163 s 2,430,161 

Client Rental Assistance: 

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the payment of rents on behalf 
of the consumer. Rent expense totaling approximately $6.5 million is comprised 
of leases held in the Organization's name and the responsibility of the Organ­
ization, leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance. 

16. Plymouth NH Veterans Housing Project: 

The Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project is a planned permanent 
supportive housing development of twenty-five one-bedroom apartments for 
homeless veterans, and five two-bedroom apartments for low-income families 
located on Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, New Hampshire. The New 
Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has awarded Harbor 
Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the project. Harbor Homes, Inc. 
is serving as the developer of the $7 million project and will receive a 
developer fee, net of expenses in the amount of $472,000. When completed, 
the 29,000 square foot apartment building will not only offer affordable, 
permanent supportive housing for in-need veterans, but staff from Harbor 
Homes, Inc. and White River Junction VA Medical Center will also provide 
essential supportive services and case management on-site. 

17. Deferred Compensation Plan: 

In fiscal year 2018. the Organization offered a 401 (k) retirement plan. Upon 
meeting the eligibility criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their 
wages to the 401(k) plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the 
employee contribution based on years of service. Total matching 
contributions paid by the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2018 were 
$454,960. 
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18. 

The Organization maintains a deferred compensation plan for certain 
directors (the "SA Plan"). The deferred compensation liability under the SA 
Plan was $16,800 as of June 30, 2018 and was recorded as a long-term 
liability. This liability is offset by a corresponding long-term asset in the same 
amount. 

Concentration of Risk : 

The Organization received revenue as follows: 

Federal grants $ 30% 
State, local, and other agencies 20% 
Patient services revenues (other), net 15% 
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 10% 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 9% 
Department of Veterans Affairs 6% 
All other support and revenue 10% 

Total $ 100% 

19. Contingencies: 

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, 
state, and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is 
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory 
actions unknown or unasserted at this time. Government activity continues to 
increase with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible 
violations by healthcare providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regula­
tions, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as 
well as significant repayments for patient service previously billed. Manage­
ment is not aware of any material incidents of noncompliance; however, the 
possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if any, are 
not presently determinable. 

20. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information: 

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-
18, State of Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash. The amendments in 
this update require that the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explain 
the change during the fiscal year of restricted cash as part of the total of cash 
and cash equivalents. 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, 
and restricted cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
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Position to the same such amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted Cash 

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash 
shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

21 . Change in Accounting Principle: 

$ 480,242 
1,096,661 

$ 1,576,903 

Effective July 1, 2017, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2015-11 , 
Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which 
simplifies the subsequent measurement of inventory by replacing the lower of 
cost or market test with a lower of cost or net realizable value test. Net 
realizable value is defined as estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and 
transportation. Prior to fiscal year 2018, the Organization reported inventory 
at the lower of cost or market. This guidance is applied prospectively as 
determined by the standard. There is no prior year or current year effect to 
the financial statements as a result of this change. 

22. Subsequent Events: 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 20, 2018, which 
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

On August 29, 2019, Harbor Homes, Inc. signed a $400,000 short-term note 
with a local bank. Interest on the note is required at 2.5% above the bank's 
base rate for six months. The note is secured by two properties. 

In October of 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. sold two properties. The proceeds 
were used to pay down the short-term note in the amount of $319,000. 

Subsequent to year end, and upon completion of the Plymouth NH Veterans 
Housing project, additional Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding 
of approximately $2.6 million will be provided to Boulder Point, LLC. 

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has 
awarded Harbor Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the Plymouth 
NH Veterans Housing project which will be received in fiscal years 2019 and 
2020 and will consist of mortgages payable totaling $560,000 to the 
Community Development Investment Program. 
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Cheryle Pacapelli 

Profile 

Fifteen +years of nonprofit and program management experience; including advocacy, community 
organizing, education, and management at the local, state and federal level, for the development 
and implementation of peer to peer Recovery Support Services. Serves as Co-Chair of the 
Recovery Task Force. Developed and implemented: programs. trainings, activities, and community 
eventS for sustaining program capacity, building coalitions and establishing best practice in.Hiatives. 
Advanced Computer Proficiency: Windows XP Prole$sional Microsoft OffiCe Suite, Giftworks;·iMAC 

Experience 
2/17 - Present 
Project Director 

. Harbor Homes Nashua, NH 

• This is an administrative position supporting the Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS) 
Facililatiilg Org~~niutions (FO) contract to subcontract with Recovery .Community Orgllnizations . 
(RCOs) in New Hampshire. 

• Review existing work completed by BOAS and NH Center for Excellence to ~ign a more 
fonnal readiness scan "of all known RCOs statewide 

• Analyze dala and communicate with RCOs to aetennine willingness, ability and capacity to 
achieve Council on Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) accreditation, 
provide Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS), open/opetate a Recovery Center and adhere to 
CMS regulations during the readiness ·scan 

• Develop a fonnal p!":)"..urement process thai is. fair and transparent to ide!liify 8t least five RCOs to 
participate in the first yearofFO giant 

• Prioritize those RCOs most likely to participate in subsequent years 
• Within five days of procurement process completion, provide BOAS with a written detennination 

ofRCO readiness · 
• Work wjth1NH Center for Excellence to engage the first "Community of Practice" meeting to ·· 

assist with the completion of readiness scan 
• Upon BOAS approval, BJTange one on one visits with selected RCOs, including Board of 

Directors, staff, volunteers, etc. to shadow day to day activities (CAPRSS also present) 
• Monitors subcontractors and assists with development of required policies and procedures 
• Assists subcontractors with the process of applyiJig for and obtaining Medicaid billing status 
• Communicate regularly with subcontractors to review progress . 
• Monitors the quality of all subcontractors and their. progress, and completes required documents 

and reports . 
• Assists in the oversigltt and facilitation of training for all subcootractors 
• Manages the employment process, with staff scheduling, and in the provision of routine 

assessment of staff perfonnance 
• Utilizes computer application(s) or. applicable technology for administrative tasks 
• Manages services and.related budgetary concerns 
• Oversee HHI business processes and accounting related to subcontracts 

7/15-2117 New Futures, Inc. Concord, NH 
Community Engagement Director · . 

• Advocate for policies and linandng that suppof1 a stati!'Mde system of community based recovery 
supports, to ensure that all people in NH with SUD are able to access recovery supports; 

• Educate the public and policymakers regarding the nature and effectiveness of reco-.ery 
supports; 

• Work with the newty created continuum of~ facilitators in each public health regioO to ensure 
that individual reco-.ery supports and family supJl9Tts are included in each region's 
comprehensive substance misuse continuum of care; 

.· 



Cheryle Pacapelli 
• Wo!X with providers in designated Integrated Delivel)' Netwoll<s under the 1115 Demonstration 

Wahler program to ensure that re<XNery supports are an Integral part of innovative projects 
funded through the wahter; 

• Provide technical assistance to communities end organizations interested in developing and 
delivering re<XNery supports; 

• Partner with New Futures Poi'ICy Director and the NH ProvidefS Association to provide technical 
assistance on enrollment and regulatory requirements to organizations asld individuals interested 
in biiUng third party payers. including Medicaid, for peer and non-peer recovery supports: 

• Oversee expansion of fallllly supports lhrough DHHS System of Care grant; 
• Facilitate oonnections between SUD treatment providers, healhcare providers, drug courts, 

corrections tacnities and other institutions whose cJlents or patients are in need of recovery 
supports wfth reaNefY community organizations; and, 

• Otherwise support lhe development of a statewide system of recovery supports as a full, 
accessible component of the SUD oontinuum of care through advocacy on policy, technical 
assistance, relationship devetopmen~ education, and oollaboration. 

05/01.- Present Stepping Stone House Meriden, CT 
Co-Owner 

•. Operate 5 Recovery Houses with 52 male transitional living beds . . 
• Certified by Department of Mental Heaflh a!ld Addiction Services to provide housing and case 

management seMc:es. 
• Coordinate with Access to Reawery ana Recovery Support Program to secure housing and 

basic need support for clients · · 
• Provide case management for clients, life skils, resunes, job search 
• Administer progress notes and a re<XNery plan for each individual. 

8114 - 7/15 HOPE for NH Recovery Concord, NH 
Executive Director 

• Statewide Coordination of Reawery Movement 
• Public Educatioil, Awareness and Advocacy 
• Dethter a variety of peer-based reawery support services; assist in start-up of Recovery, 

Community Centers . 
• Community Outreach and Resource Developmimi 
• Collaborate wilh the Govemo(s Commission for Afoollol and other Drug Prevention, Trestment 

and Recovery 

12/11 -10/12 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery . Hartford, CT 
Director Recovery·services 

• Recovery Coach Academy Management (RCA) 
o Administered promotion, marl<eting and sales of RCA; handling of logistics, RCA manual 

sales, data tracl<ing, reawery coach support 
o Coordinated five CT Trainings held per year- and 20 +out of slate held per year over 

1,000 Reawery Coaches trained 
o Trained 100 +trainers to bring RCA across.the United Slates. 
o Maintained website with RCA updates, and all training registrations online 
o· Generated $200,000 in gross revenues 

• Recovery Technicai.Assistance Group Management 
o Promotion, marketing and sales of CCAR technical assistance products, including 

tralnlngs, technical assistance and paid speaking engagements. 
o Developed, implemented, and managed CCAR's web-based shopping site: 

www.shoprecovery.com for national sales of all CCAR products, RCA trainings, 



Cheryle Pacapelli 
Recovery Housing Trainings, RCA manuals. Increasing CCAR revenue by 45% in 
the first year. 

o Originated national sales and logistics of CCAR's Technical Assistance Group. Managed 
implementation and collal:loration with contract sites. Besti)f'8ctice programming 
includes: Telephone Recovery Support, Volunteer Management and Vocational 
Employment Services. Increased organizational revenue by 45 %during my tenure. 

• Annual Recovery Walks! Coordination 
o Designed and implemented the event; met target numbers; increased public awareness 

for addiction recovery. . . 
o Collaborated witt\ multiple Slate agencies and servioe providers.for provdng resources 

and services to participants. 
o Over 2,000 lri attendance and revenue of $14,000 . 

. • Annuai.Vol~nteer Recognition Dinner Coordination 
o Plan and iinplement the event volunteers recognized. 
o Develop sponsorship for Volunteer Recognition Dinner, create invitations, and program. 
o 300 Volunteers recognized for over 15,000 hOurs of volunteer service. 

· • Data tracking and Analysis 
o Ovei'SBV!' all tracking databases for bi-weekly reports, training and event engaged in 

quality improvement 
o Generated reports for Executive Director, funders and Board of Directors 

12/06-12/11 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford, CT 

Director of Operations 
• R~ry Community Center Management . 

• 

• 

• 

·o Oversaw the operations at three Recovery Community Centers with efficiency; ensur'ed 
adherence to prescribed structure, encouraged rlf!!W programs. 

o Held 375 events with..over 14,000 in attendance 
o Hosted 38 different recovery focused trainings, with over 1, 700 participants 
o Implementation of Access to Recovery Services in Recovery Community Centers 

Direct Supervision of five Full Ttme Staff . 
o Volunteer Manager, Program Manager, Three Recovery Community Center Managers 
o ·Administered Annual performance reviews 

Program Oversight-Telephone Recovery Support and Recovery Housing Program 
o Increased. number of people called from 22 in 2005. to 1,g45 in 2011 . 
o CCAR volunteers made over 125,000 telephone calls resulting in 36,000 

conversations with about 4,500 people in recovery. 
o . Originated and managed CCAR's Recovery Housing Program: 

www.findrecoveryhousing.com. Built service to its current over 200 recovery 
houses listed in 19 states status. Revenue Is being generated from owners listing 
Recovery Houses. 

lnfomnation TechnOlogy 
o Designed and developed tracking systems for generating outcome-based reports and 

evaluating services which resulted in Increased funding and national attention. 
o Managed aU databases, maintained equipment, and assisted steff with technology. 

needs. and training. 

10/04- 12/06 ~T. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford, CT 
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Cheryle Pacapelli 
Project Manager - Recovery Houalng 

• Developed and maintained an inventoty of Recovery Houses in CT 
• PIO'Jided community education on recove1Y housing, NJM BY issues 
• Mar11eted and delivered training "So. you want to open a Recovery House" 
• Es1ablished Recovery Housing Coalition of CT, developed statewide standanls for Recovery 

Houses. 

Albertus Magnus 

Bachelors Degree- Bualneae Management 
•. CUm Laude, Tal Pi Phi National Honor Society 

Co-Chair Recovery Task Force 

Training 

?enif1Cations:. CCAR Recovery Coach Academy Trainer 

CCAR Ethics for Recovery Support WOIIter Trainer 
Pastoral Counseling • 

New Haven, CT 

Mental Health and Addiction Services: OMHAS Successfully Housing Persons with Sub~tance Use 
Issues · · 
safe TALK Suicide Alertness for Everyone • 
Human Resource Development Understanding Sexual Harassment . . .. 



Career Focus 

Past 
Accomplishments 

Experience . . 

' 

'•I .. '• .. ~):..;, . . .. 

Ana Pancine 

I 
Finance Professional with extensive experience in audit requirements. ~udget and 
forecasting , operational and variance analysis, financial reporting and full cycle of 
month-end closing. ProfiCient on time manage~nt to ensure accurate land timely 

reporting, as well as. skillful with a wide variety of software applicationsf including 
SAP, SAGE, MIP and custom accounting software. · 

• 

• Prepared!Assisted -on iocal hospitals contract with Agency to receiJe 
maximu~ reimbursement for new project. . I 

• Created several finance/accounting policy and procedures to ensure Federal 
guidelines are being mf!l. _ I 

• Achieved revenue objective by Implementing cost-cutting measures. 
• ·Assessed accounting system structures arid converte<l acquired cclmpany's 

acoounting system to SAGE and SAP. • I 
• Reviewed posting and documents for correct entry, fTI8thematical accuracy 

and proper coding and eliminated all errors showing on lnetrics ana financial 
reports. - I · 

• Developed several financial reports for the organization to ensure financial 

tia!lsparency. . I 
• Uncovered $500,000 process errors with development of multiple source . 

analytical auditing tools. - · I 
• Maintz!:'l an error free audit with no management letters_or oomments for five 

years. · . . . I . 
• Completed several implementation chanoes within the financial debartment 

- Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH Novembe;·200~- P)lesent 

Financial Control~r . 

• Budget development for 92 cost centers and B affiliated agencies With annual . 
expenses and revenue over $22m · I 

• Supervise and Manage Business/Finance. Office team composed by 15 staff 
members, performing dutie's such as: AIR, AlP, Staff Accountant, Senior Staff 

Acoountan~ Credentialing, MedlcareJMedicaid/PrlvateiSelf-pay Billi(lg. 
• Prepare operational and variance analysis _for financiaf·presentation1 based on 

organization, State and Federal guideline. I 
• Internal and external reports for several State & Federal projects. 
• Prepare complex financial statements, intemaVannuaf reports for planning and 

_oversight oi each program within organization · I 
• Prepare and review for accuracy all profit and loss, general ledger, trial 

balance reports for all 92 cost centers on a monthly basis I 
• Knowledge of planning techniques, test and sampling methods involved in 

conducting audits. I 
• Extensive experience with Financial Statements audits, reviews, compilations 

and audits for Governmental organizations {A-133). I 
• Managed annual external audit resulting in no findings and no management 

comments on A-133 audits. · · I 

• Provide support to VP of Finance on all special projects, as well as. current 
back up for this position. . · · 

• Maintaine<faccu·rate accounts including caSh·, inventory. prepaid, fixed assets. 
acCounts payable, atcsued expenSes and fine of credit transactions\ 

• Provide oversighVapproval for all general ledger entnes, reVenue r~nition, 
purchase orders approvals, as well as {Ill day to day accounting I 
concerns/issues. . · . 

I . 

Rcfa-cnccs A,·~ileble upon request 



• Prepare all budgets lor Development Department to be submitted for 
competitive State. Federal and local grant applications 

• Provide support to all program managers to ensure program compliances and 
financial requirements are met. 

• Review all financial requirements and financial accuracy lor new and renewed 
contracts · 

• Prepare, review and update all Finance/Accounting policies and procedure to 
ensure compliance wilh new Federal regulations. 

• Chair of the Greater Nashua Continuum Care (GNCOC), as well as, Chair of 
the GNCOC Board of Directors, composed by representatives of the Federal. 

· State, and City Governments, housing program directors, local hospitals, 
social services agencies, financial institutions, private sector and religious 
'instilutions. 

Hewlett-Packard Various locations August 2001 - November 2007 

Business Analyst February 2004 - November 2007 
• Accountable for all metric reports for the PER Event team contracts in a 

monthly basis. · 
• Responsible for revenue recognition for two districts, as well as. latin America 

and Canada. 1 • 

• Accountable to update, present and distribute all reports related to the . 
department, which included financial reports, risk reports, contract metric 
reports. 

• Provide quality reports for upper management to review tne progress of the 
team. .. . . 

• Responsible for all the billings for Latin America and 'prepared currency 
translation reporting. 

• Manage ten cost centers with annual expenses of S9m and revenue of $18m, 
forecast on a quarterly basis, generate expense and revenue accn.oals, and 
establish budgetary guidelines lor team members. 

• Variance reporting monthly for +1-1 % of forecasted to report to seniof 
.management 

• Compile, reconcile, and obtain approval from customer for account metrics on 
a monthly basis. 

• Maintain global reporting of 200 employees with specific emphasis on 
geographic alignment. individual line counts, and Olganizational charts for 
account utilization and resource mapping 

• Approve time card for temporary employees, main contact for temporary 
agencies and responsible for hiring/releasing of temporary employe~s. 

• Main contact for all customers and service providers located in the Latin 
America territory. 

• Provided Financial Support for account closing. 

Quality Controller/ System Support Adm June 2003 - ·February 2004 
• Main contact between administrators and system support to priofitize technical 

errors. 
• Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting. 
• ResPonsible for weekly and monthly geography reports. 
• Maintain all employee related spreadsheets updated. 
• Manage quartty review reports to ensure policies and procedures are being 

followed .. 
• Mentoring new hires in their assigned positions. 
• . Communicating with manager for tools necessary fOl team. 
• Categorize and notify managers of any performance issues. 
• 'Provide support for team members with problem solving. 

' References A•ail•ble upon r<'qUCst 



Skills 

Educ:.Jtion 

.... ·'"· . 

Per Event Administrator August 2001 -June 2003 
• Responsible for billing revenue. 
• Maintenance of contracts, including service changes and billing. 
• General office fiJing and organization. 
• Data Entty. 
• Assisting customer needs. 
• Solving any customer issues. 
• Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean 

territory. 
• Assistant and service provided for all customer located In the Latin 

America/Caribbean/Europe territory ' 

• Windows 
• SIFT - Financial 

Database 
• Microsoft Orftce 
• Fundware/F9 · 

Hesser College 

• PEARS/CHAMPfiNFM 
• NCAS/SAP 
• SAGE- MIP 
• Fluent in Portuguese 
• ProfiCient in Spanish 

• Bachelor of Science, Business Administration -<:Oncentration in· Finance- Oct 
·. 2005 

• Trained Medical Interpreter- Portuguese & Spanish 
• Trained Transliltor - Portuguese 
• Skilled USCIS Interpreter 
Southern N;; University 
• MBA in Finance- graduation on May. 201 7 

Rrfercnccs A,·ailablc upon request : ' 



Patricia A. Robitaille, CPA 

• •­
PROFILE 

• 12 yean experience in Public Accounting 
• Manlgement upericnee 
• Divenilied industry eotposure 
• Counselor and mentor 

PROFESSIONAL EXPBRIENCE 

• Training experience 
• Knowledge of multiple computer programs 
• Excellent client npport 
• Tax prepua!ion experience 

·Jan. 2009-Pre.cnt Vice Pn:sident of F/ntUJet: Hubor Hom.,, Inc. and. Affiliates 

Jan. 2007- Oct 2008 Audit M•n"'IU Ernst Young LLP, Manchester, NH 
• Manage!!· audits of private corporations with revenues up to $200 rnillion 

• Aniated as ~ of sudits for public corporations with revenues up to $400 million 

• Reviewed and assiated prepar11tion of financial statements, 10Q quut::ly filingo and lOK annual 
.6Jingo 

• Analyzed and reviewed internal control under Section 404 of the Satbancs Oxley Acr 

• Prcpued m,anagement comments in conjunction with materiAl weslu!eu or lignificant. 
deficiencies 

Jun. 1997-Jan. 'JJX17 Audit Supi:rvisor Meluuon Heath & Company, P.C., Nashua, NH 

• Supervise/train various teams for comm~cia~ not-for-profit, and m~cipi.l audits and agreed 
upon procedures 

• Audit aervices include balance sheet reconciliation including inventory control · 

• Prepuation and pttJcntation of financial statcmcnc. 

• Preparation of mtnagement comment letters for intemal quUity improvement 

• Aniat clients with all upecll of accounting 

• Preparation of budgets tnd culi forecuting 

• Coo suiting services to clients including muimiution of profits 

• E.xt....ive corporate tax preparation experience 

1993-1997 Hammu Hardware Compmy, Nashua, NH 
• Management of a five·poraon staff 

• Overoaw accounu receivable, accounts payable and genctalledga- reconciliation 

• Rcsponoible for inventoty management, preparation Cor year-end audit and collabootion with 
external auditoro 

• ~monthly internal financ:W statements 

• Respontible for payroll including quartcrties and yeu-cnd reporting 



EDUCATION 

1988-1991 Rivict College. Nuh~a, NH-Bachelor of Science, Accounting 

OTHBR ACHIBVEMENTS 

Iiccnstd Cc:nillcd Public Accountsnt in the State ofN.., Hampahite 
Mcmbu of th~ New Hunpahile Society of Cctlificd Public Aceounmnts 
Mcm~r of the Amuiaan Inatil\lte of Certified PubUc Accountants 

SOFJ'WARR EXPERIENCE 

E.xcd, Word, Powcrpoinc, Pto-Px Tax software, Pro-Fx Trial baltnce software, Quicltbooka, 

Peacbtrce,.T· Value, various auditing soft-ftrc prognma 



. ' PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW 
4S High Street 

Nashua, NH 03060 
Telephone: (603) 882·3616 
Fax: (603) S9S-7414 
E-mai 1: p.kelloher@harborhomes.org 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

2006-Pmeat Presldcat & CEO, Soutbtro NH lDV Tu k For« 
lOOl·Piueat Presldeat & CEO,.GNCA,bc:. Nashua, NB 
1997-Preaeat Presldeat & CEO, Healthy At Home, be., Nubua, NH 
1995-Pmeot Presldcat & CEO, MUford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., .MII~ord, NH 
199S-Pnteat Pret!deat.& CEO, Welcomlag Llgbt,Iae., Nashua; NH 
J 981-Preseot Presldeat & CEO, Harbor Homea, lac:., Nubu, NH 

Cumntly employed as chief executlvo off._. for nonprofit eorpor&lion (and affiliates) providin&· 
. ruidential, supported employment, and-social club SCNices. for per$0ns with long·term mental !II ness 
and/or homeless. Respo!IS_ib,\p, for initiation, development, and oversight of 33 program' comprising a 
$10,000,000 opeiating·bui!,~t; proposal development resulting in more than $3,000,000 in grants annually; 
oversight of 330 management and direct care professionals. 

1003-2006 Couultaat 
Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and mental health 
organi2ations 

1980 • 1981 Real Eltate Broker, LcVaus R....tty, Cambridge, MA 
Suoc:essf\11 sales and property m1111agement speciali3L 

1979 • 1980 Cllalcal Coonlloator, Task Orleatecl Commuoltlea, Waltham, MA 
Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 mentally iiU mentally 
retarded clients. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a 11111-time staff of 20 residential coordinators.· 
Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs. Provided cmergenoy 
consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff deal ina with crisis management in six group homes and one 
sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities lncludod ~ome flnanclal management, quality 
assurance, and other accountabilitY to state authori~ies. 

1978 • 1979 Faculty, Middlesex CommWIIty Collece, Bedford, MA 
l.nstnlctor for an introductory group p$)1Chothorapy course offered through the Social Work Department. 

1977 • 1979 Seafor Social Worker/Aulstaat Director, Musachusctu Tuberculosis Trutmeat Center D, a ualt of 
Mlddtues Cciuaty ~ll.•PI.f!l. Waltham, MA · · 
Functioned is second in'ThWl'mancl and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members, 

· and Implemented a six-month residential proaram for Individuals affi'icced with recurring tubereulosis and 
aleoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, reiiJULtion train ina. · 

lt76 SOd.al Worker, Massacbutettslnttllate of Tecbaoloey, Out-Palleat P1ychlatry, Cambrldce, MA 
Employed In full-time summer position providina out patient counseling to Individuals and groups of the 

· MIT community .. 

1971 • 1976 Procram Couaaelor/Supcrvlaor, Mau achusetb lu dtute ofTecbaoloey, MIT/Welluley Collqe 
Upward Bouad Procnua. Cambrldce and Wellesley, MA 
Major mponsibilities consisted of psycho·educallonal counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision 
oftutorlna staff, teaching. conducting evaluative research for PtOgr&m policy development. 



t 
i:DUCATiONAL EXPERIENCE 

1975- 1977 Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA 
Cambridge-Somerville Community Mental Health Program, MSW 

1971· 1975 Clark University, Worcester, MA' Received Bachelor of Art.s Degree in Psychology 

lJCENSES AND .CERTIFICATIONS 

19.79 . Licensed Real Estate Broker- Massachusetts 

1989 Ac.demy of Certified Social Workers-NASW 

1990 . Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker- Massachusetts 

State of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker, MA UCSW 

PLACEMENTS 

1976 • 1977 . Cam~ridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA 
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients. . . 

1975-1976 Massaehusoits Institute of Technology, Social Service Department, Cambridge, MA 
Similar to above. · 

FIELD SUPERVISION 

1983. 1984 
1983'-1984 
1990 - ·1991 

1978 ·1979 

AWARDS 

· Antioch/New England O~uat.e Sclhool, Department of-Professional Psychology, Keene, NH 
Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH · 
Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nuhua, NH 
Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program. Bedford, MA 

• Valedictorian Award received at high school graduation; 
• Nationallnstilute ofMtntal Health T,.inooship in Social Work 
• University of New Hampshi~ Community Development 2003 Community Leader of tho Year 
• NAMI NH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Chango '• 
• Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007 

MEMBERSffiPS 
Former Chair, Governor's State lntc,.gcncy Council on HomclcssncssiNew Hampshire Policy Academy 
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care 
National Association of Social Workers 
Board Mombu, Greater Nashua Housing & Development Foundation, Inc. 
Former Member, Rotary Club, Nashua, NH 

. . 



Harbor Homes, Inc. 

Key Personnel 

Name Job Tille Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from 
this Contract this Contract 

Peter Kelleher President and CEO $338 146 0% $0 

Patricia Robitaille Chief Financial Officer $150 000 0% so 
Ana Pancine Chief Revenue Officer SIIS,OOO 0% $0 

Chervlc Pacapelli Proiect Mana~tcr $92 000 90% $82 800 



JdTrty A. Mcycn 
Conuai~oncr 

K.8tja S. fox 
Dirc«OI' 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSRJRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DMSION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCQHOL SERVICES 

lOS PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-6738 1-800-804-0909 

Fax: 603-271-6105 TDD Atoess: J-800-73S-2964 

August 24, 2018 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, 
to enter into a retroactive and sole source amendment to an agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc. 
(Vendor# 155358-B001), 77 Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH 03060, to increase the number of 
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs) and ensure they meet the standards required of a Recovery 
Community Center, to increase the price limitation by $500,000 from $4,860,391 to arid amount not to 
exceed $5,360,391, effective retroactive to July 1, 2018, upon Governor and Executive Council 
approval with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2019. This agreement was originally 
approved by Governor and Council on June 1, 2016, (Item #13) and amended on June 7, 2017 (Item 
#20) and on July 11, 2018 (Item# 15). 21.29% General Funds, 41 .34% Other Funds and 37.37% 
Federal Funds. 

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State F_iscal Years, 2018 
and 2019 with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office 
without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified. 

05-95-491510-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS, 
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS 

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 
Code Budaet Amount Budaet 

Contracts for 
2016 102-500734 -Social Svc 49158501 $2 820 0 $2,820 

Contracts for 
2017 102-500734 Social Svc 49158501 $813 180 $0 $813 180 

Subtotal $816 000 $0 $816000 



His Exeeltency, Governor Christopt'..er T. Sununu 
anc, the Honorabte CounCil • 

Page2 

05-95-491510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS, 
CLINICAL SERVICES 

SFY Class/ !=lass Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Code Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Budaet Amount Budaet 
Contracts for 

2016 102-500734 Social Svc 49156501 $3180 $0 $3180 
Contracts for 

2017 102-500734 Social Svc 49156501 $796 820 $0 $796 820 

Subtotal $800000 $0 $800000· 

05-95-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, 
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budget 
Contracts for 

2018 102-500734 Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700 000 
Contracts for 

2019 102-500734 Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700000 

Subtotal $1,400,000 $0 $1 400000 

05-95-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL 
SVCS,CLINICAL SERVICES 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budaet Amount Budaet 
Contracts for 

2018 102-500734 Social Svc 92056501 $904 098 $0 $904 098 
Contracts for 

2019 102-500734 Social Svc 92057501 $800,000 $0 $800000 
Contracts for 

2019 102-500734 Social Svc 92056505 $140 293 $0 $140,293 

Subtotal $1844 391 $0 $1 844 391 

05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT OF, HHS: MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE, OFFICE OF MEDICAID AND 
BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT 

SFY Class/ Class Title · Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budaet Amount Budaet 
Contracts for 

2019 102-500731 Social Svc 47000254 $0 $500000 $500 000 

TOTAL $4 860391 $500000 $5,360,391 



His Excellency, Governot ChtistophM T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 
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EXPLANATION 

This request is retroactive because the Department is committed to ensuring continued access 
to peer recovery support services through recovery community centers. The time necessary to review 
contract scope changes exceeded the deadline to get these contracts on the agenda for the July 
Governor and Council meetings although the work and costs associated with implementation at the 
centers remained ongoing during that time. This ensured that there were no delays in critical recovery 
support services for individuals statewide. 

This request is sole source because a new scope of worl< is being added that was not included 
in the orginal Request for Proposals. Harbor Homes, Inc. is currently under contract to provide services 
as the Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization (PRSS FO) to support the 
development of Recovery Community Centers (RCCs). If approved. this amendment will add funding 
for Harbor Homes to support maintenance and expansion of recovery support services for people with 
substance use disorder a1 eleven (11) RCCs throughout the state. These funds will enable these 
centers to provide a minimum of 70,000 RCC-generated services to individuals in recovery through 
expanding center-based programming and developing critical referral partnerships and relationships 
with other substance use disorder service providers, including treatment agencies, corrections and drug 
courts. and homeless serving organizations. 

Funds in this agreement will be used to assess and enh<!nce the level of accreditation readiness 
of each of the RCCs and to provide program management and oversight. Additionally, the vendor will 
implement a quality improvement process in collaboration with the Department and other PRSS 
organizations and implement culturally appropriate processes and outcome data collection and 
analysis. 

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the 
agreement: 

• Operating Recovery Community Organizations; 

• Each RCC meets CAPRSS accreditation standards; 

• Engaging individuals with "lived experience• in completing requirements to provide Peer 
Recovery Support Services, including completing the "Recovery Coach' training and 
becoming a Certified Recovery Support Worl<er (CRSW) under the Board of licensing 
for Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professionals; 

• Having the mechanisms and protocols in place to collect client information, including 
process and outcome data; 

· • Providing Peer Recovery Support Services 

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the Department's 
overall strategy to address ihe disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negatively impacted, 
with fewer individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to a community-based PRSS, 
many of them may require additional intensive treatment services. Others may continue in their active 
addiction, leading to negative medical, legal and child welfare consequences for )hose persons, their 
families and society, incurring much higher costs to the Department and state. 

Area served: Statewide. ( 

Source of Funds: 37.37% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human 
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.959 FAIN TI010035 
and 41 .34% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission Funds and 21 .29% General Funds. 
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~.Sf?< 
Direc r 

Approved by: 
J 

'1ll.t Dtporl.mtl\l o( HeollA ond Humu Su~cu· MtMi.oll i•ID join comna.wulia ond (amilu:. 
in proui.dil\g opportUAitia (or clli#n.l lO ocMeuc health oltd indtpendt.nce. 



· New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating OrganlzaUon Services 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #3 to the 

PRSS Facilitating Organization Services Contract 

This 3"' Amendment to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services contract (hereinafter referred to as 
"Amendment #3") dated this 14111 day of August, 2018, is by and between the State of New H.ampshire, 
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department"} and 
Harbor Homes, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as '1he Contractor'), a corporation with a place of business 
at 45 High Stree~ Nashua, NH. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council 
on June 1, 2016 (Item #13}, as amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20} and amended on July 11, 2018 
(Item #15} the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the tenns and conditions 
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain suins specified; and · 

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment 
schedules and tenns and conditions of the contract; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18· the State may modify the scope 
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval 
from the Governor and Executive Council; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase th~ price limi\iition, and modify the scope of services to 
support continued delivery of these s.ervices; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions 
'contained in the Contract and set forth herein. the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: · 

1. Form P-37, General Provision, Block 1.6, Account Number, to add: 

05-095-047-4 70010-79480000-101 -500729 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: $5,360,391. 

3. Delete Exhibit A, Amendment #2 in its entirety·and replace with Exhibit A. Amendment #3. 

4. Delete Exhibit B-4, Amendment #2 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-4, Amendment #3. 

HB!t>Or Homeo. InC. 
1&-0HH$-BDAS-GCF·RFA-02 

Amendmen11J3 
Page 1 ol3 



New H!)mpshlre Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Org~~lzatlon Services •• 

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor ana Executive Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health ana Human Services 

Name:J<8t)8ToX 
Tille: Director 

Aellnov.1edgement of Contraeto(s signature: 

• 

State of JJw ±k..lt.. . County of lt.11< L4 .b. on •/2.2./z.. tr , before the undersigned off~eer, 
persona.try appeared the person identified dired~ above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is 

signed above. and acknowledged. that s/he executed this document in the eap~city indicated above. • 

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace 

H.-Homes. Inc. 
16-0HHS.BOAs-GCF-RFA-02 

wrt I l AM c MMTlH 
Juetloe of the P.- . Nw Ha; ........ 

My Com~on E ....... Nowmber 4, 2020 

Amondment f J 
Page2ol 3 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form , substance, and execution. 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Date { 1 Name: 
Title: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendmenl was approved by the Gov mor and Executive Council of the State 
of New Hampshire arthe Meeting on: (date of mEM!ting) 

Date 

HI-Homes, lne. 
1&.0HHS-8DA$.GCF-RFA.()2 

.· 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Name: 
Title: 

Amenclmont 13 
Page 3ol3 



New Hampshire Department of ftealth and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization ServiCes 

Ex.hlblt A Amendment #3 

Scope of Services 

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

1.1 . The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the l.anguage 
assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English 
proficiency to ensure. meaningful access to their programs and/or services 
within ten (10). days of the contract effective date. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the 
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have 
an impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right 
to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this 
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. 

1.3. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean 
consecutive calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as busines.s days. 

1.4, For the purposes of this contract, any reference to business days shall 
mean Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holidays. 

1 ,5. The Contractor shall conduct an assessment of Recovery Community 
Centers (RCCs) to determine the level of readiness for each RCC to 
become accredited according to the standards set forth by the Council on 
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS). 

1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide each RCC 
with assistance to meet accreditation standards set forth by the CAPRSS. 

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Recovery Support 
Services (PRSS) technical assistance assets to assess the capacity of 
each RCC relative to the core and optional standards defined by the 
Council of Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS). 

1.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and RCCs to determine 
culturally appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis. 

1.9. The Contractor shall provide program management and oversight as well 
as implement a quality improvement process. 

2. Scope of Services 

2.1. The Contractor shall complete an accreditation readiness scan of all known 
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs), statewide. The Contractor shall: 

Hatt>ot Homes, snc. 

2.1.1 . Determine each RCC's ability to achieve Council of 
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) 
accreditation. 

2.1.2. 

2.1 .3. 

Determine each RCC's ability to open a Recovery Center. 

Determine each RCC's capacity to provide Peer Recovery 
Support Services (PRSS). · 

contractor rniuars:a . 

1&-0HHS.SOAS·GCF·RFA-02 

Exhibit A Amendment 13 

Page I of 10 Oate:~ 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

Exhibit A ·Amendment 113 

2.1.4. Determine each RCC's co.mm(¥nent to becoming a Medicaid 
provider, upon approval from the Center for Medicaid and 
Medicare Services (CMS) of the establishment of a ' Recovery 
Community Center' provider type under the New Hampshire 
Medicaid pro_gram. 

2.1.5. Provide a written determination of RCC readiness to the 
Department within 5 business days of completing the final RCC 
readiness scan. 

2.2.· The Contra~or shall enter into an agreement with a minimum of eleven 
(11) RCC's by June 30, 2019, in at le'ast five (5) different Public Health 
Regions as approved by the Department, in order to Increase. and expand 
capacity for PRSS within each of the selected eleven .(11) 'Rc.cs. The 
Contractor shall: 

2.2.1. Ensure that priority is given to Public Health Regions that do not 
have an RCC Provide a copy of each executed RCC agreement 
to the O:Partment within• five (5) days of agreement execution. 

2.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with .PRSS technical assistance assets, 
including, but not limited to, CAPRSS, to assess each RCC for 
accreditation readiness in accordance with the standards set forth by the 
CAPRSS. The Contractor shall: 

2.3.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates the 
RCC's capacity to provide PRSS services and , current 

• • 
operational standards. . . 

2.3.2. Develop a written plan with each RCC that includes, but is not 
limited to: . · 

2.3 2.1. Timeframes to meeting CAPRSS accreditation 
standards. 

2.3.2.2. Goals that m'ust be attained by each RCC in ·order to 
meet CAPRSS accreditation standards. 

2.3.2.3 Technical assistance needed for each RCC in order 
to meet CAPRSS goals, time frame and technical 
assistance accreditation requirements. 

2.3.3. Ensure training and technical assistance is provided to each 
RGC, as needed. 

2.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide assistance to 
each RCC to ensure that ,they meet accreditation standards set forth by 
CAPRSS. The Contractor shall ensure assistance includes, but is not 
limited to: 

2.4.1. Personnel with the expertise necessary to deliver high quality 
training. · · ··,CYV 

..... bit A Ame<1dmont 13 Cordi actor lrltials:JCLl__ 

~~· 2 or 10 • oete: !/Ja/.tr -Hemet. tnc. 

1&-0HH$-BDAS-GCF·RFA-02 



New Hampshire Department of Hea.lth and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

Exhibit A Amendment #3 

2.4.2. Technical assistance, as needed. 

2.4.3. Organizational coaching. 

2.4.4. Capacity development consultation. 

2.4.5. Administrative support functions, as needed. 

'2.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Center for Excellence to develop 
and provide·training as well as technical assistance to RCCs in order to: 

Harbot Hoi'T'te$, Inc. 

2.5.1. Assist RCCs to attain accreditation. 

2.5.2. Provide technical ·assistance to RCCs to enroll in Medicaid upon 
the establishment of a ·Peer Recovery Program" provider type 
by the ,New Hampshire Medicaid Program based on Federal 
Center for Medicaid and . Medicare Services (CMS) and other 
Federal and ·state requirements, which include: 

2.5.2.1. 42 CFR, Subpart B ( http:/fwww.ecfr.gov/cgi· 
bin/retrieveECFR?qp-&SID=2a147022bdOe989f2effO 
2f0ba401830&mc=true&n=pt42.4.455&r=PART&ty=H 
TML#sp42.4.455.b ). . 

.. . . . "" 
2.5.2 2. 42 CFR, Subpart E ( http:/lwww.ecfr.gov/cgi­

bin/retrieveECFR?gp=&SID=2a147022bdOe989f2effO 
2f0ba401830&mc-true&n=sp42.4.455.e&r=SUBPAR 
T&ty=HTML ). . 

2.5.2.3. 45 CFR, 164.512(d) ( http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text· ~ 
idx?SID=07d0a50id28ee03b2b09dfd7a2be33d2&mc 
=true&node=se45.1 .164 1512&rqn=div8 ). 

2.5.3. Ensure personnel providing .P.RSS in Section 2.5.~ below in 
RCCs are Certified Recovery Support Wor!(ers (CRSW) and 
meet the CAPRSS recovery coaching standards. 

2.5.4. Assist RCCs to expand capacity to include Peer Recovery 
Coaching and Telephone RecoverY. Support Services. 

2.5.5. Assist RCCs with expanding capacity to include back office 
support functions. 

2.5.6. Ensure personnel providing therapeutic services. and center­
based programming services in Section 2.5. 7 below ·are certified 
and/or trained in the services being provided. ' 

2.5.7. Assfst RCCs to expand capacity to provide therapeutic services 
and center·ba?ed programming services and events that 
support recovery and generate social connections, peer 
supports a~q peer mentoring such as but not limited to: 

2.5. 7 .1. Therapeutic yoga sel"o(ices, 

Cxllibit A Arnt-ndment 1'3 Contractor Initials:~ 
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2.5.7.2. · Art programs and 

2.5.7.3. Music programs run by peers. 

2.5.8. Assist RCCs in establishing Recovery.Centers and developing a 
plan to sustain them. 

2.5.8.1. Submit the sustainability plans for each RCC to the 
Department approval. within 180 days from the 
effective date of this amendment that may. include 
agreements with collaborating partners including but 
not limited to: 

2.5.8.1.1. Substance Use Disorder Treatment 
Incarceration and law enforcement · 

2.5.8.1 .2. · Homeless services 

2.5.8.1.3. Safe Station partner entities 

2.6. The Contractor shall utilize logistical support provided by the Center for 
Excellence to facilitate a Com'muni!Y of . Practice that allows RCC 
administrators and leaders to establish and· strengthen collegiality, 
cooperation, collaboration and informal mentoring among RCCs. The 
Contractor shall: 

2.7. 

2.6.1. Organize regular on-going RCC regional meetings with RCC 
administrators and leaders. 

2.6.2. Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCCs, statewide. 

2.6.3. Ensure that RCC engages i.ri its local Regional Public Health 
Network (RPHN) to participate in continuum of care 
development work. 

2.6.4. Ensure th~t RCC collaborates on pr.ojects related to delivery of 
substance ·use disorder treatment and recovery support services 
will) its tocal lntegrated Delivery Network 

The Contractor shall assess the ability of each RCC to open and sustain a 
Recovery Center. The Contractor shall: 

2.7.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates 
each RCC's readiness to open and sustain a Recovery Center, 
tha t includes, but is not limited to: 

2.7.1. 1. The current organizational structure of the RCC's 
Recovery Center or the RCC's read iness to open a 

. . Recovery Center, as appropriate. 

2. 7.1.2. Tt:e number of people that can be served by the 
RCC's Recovery Center. · 

Harbor Homes. lne. Conlractorllitlals~ 
Oate:~ 
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2. 7.1.3. The RCCs ability to provide services specific to 
addressing local·coriimunity needs including but not 
limited to: 

2.7.1.3.1. 

2.7.1.3.2. 

2.7.1.3.3. 

2. 7.1.3.4. 

2.7.1 .3.5. 

Including interim support services to 
keep an individual engaged while an 
individual is on a treatment wait-lists 

Community and volunteer 
trainings/workshops such as but not 
limited to vocational training and 
financial planning. 

Assisting individuals to access 
Transportation 

Employment assistance 

Connections to housing and other basic 
needs related ·to an individual's stability 
and health and wellbeing to participate 
in services 

2. 7.1.4. The RCCs financial viability to support a Recovery 
Center. 

2.7.2. Work with each RCC to develop a written plan to open a 
Recovery Center. · 

2. 7.3. The Contractor shall produce a training services plan based on 
each RCCs needs for the Department to review within 30 days 
of contract execution. The training plan must: 

2. 7 .3.1. Ensure training and technical assistance is available 
to Recovery Center staff, which may include but is not 
limited to: 

.2. 7.3.1.1. Customer service training. 

2. 7.3.1.2. Peer Recovery Coaching Services. 

2. 7.3.1.3. Telephone Recovery Support Services. 
2. 7.4. Assist RCCs to secure funding from other public and private 

sources to ensure ongoing sustainability of services. 

2.8. The Contractor shall a>sess current established RCCs for adequate 
staffing or the need for additional staffing .to increase and expand RCC 
services and assist the RCC with obtaining staff. 

2.9. The Contractor shall provide recovery-oriented training and expertise to the 

Hatbor Homes, Inc. 
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RCCs to support the statewid~ Recovery Friendly Workplace initiative as 
d.efined by the State · of New Hampshire .at: 
tittps ;/lwww.recoveryfri~ndlyworkplace .com 

2.10. The Contractor shall demonstrate collaboration with community _partners to 
support referrals and other activities for an individual to access services 
that meet all their recovery needs, including but not limited to: 
2.10.1. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Centers-
2.1 0.2. Recovery-housing programs 

2.10.3. Medication Assisted Treatment programs. 

2.11. The Contractor shall assist RCCs with performing back office functions that 
may include, but are not limited to: 

2.11 .1. Human resource functions including but not limited to: 
2.11 .1.1. Aiding in developing staff recruitment and retention 

plans 

~ . 1 1.1.2 . Aiding in development of volunteer engagement and 
retention plans 

2.11 .2. Financial functions such as accounting, bookkeeping and 
payroll. 

2.11 .3. Billing functions. 

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure billing services are available to each RCC until 
such time RCCs CCin perform billing functions on their own. Billing 
functions shall include, but are not limited to: 

2.12.1. Submitting PRSS client services covered by Medicaid to the 
appropriate managed care organization (MCO). ' 

2.12.2. Disbursing payments received from MCOs to the appropriate 
RCC. 

2.12.3. Accepting RCC invoi~s for operational costs. 
2.12.4. Paying RCCs for operational costs on a cost reimbursement 

basis. 

2. ~ 2.5. Submitting RCC operational cost invoices to the Department for 
reimbursement. 

2.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with the NH Center for Excellence to: 
2.13.1. Identify d<;~ta evaluation criteria. 

2.13.2. Implement an ~valuation process in each RCC. 
2.14. The Contractor shall ensure technical assistance is ayailable to each RCC 

- Homes,lnc. 
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in order to collect. analyze a':ld utilize data, for the evaluation process in. 
Section 2.10.2 .. w~ich shall include but is not limited to: · 

2.14.1. Demographics, which include but are not limited to: 

2.14.1.1. Gender 

2.14.2. 

2.14.3 . 

2.14.4. 

2 .14.5. 

2 .14.6 . 

2.14.1.2 Age 

2.14.1 .3. Ethnicity 

2.14.1.4 Primary. drug of choice . 
SAMHSA National Outcome 
(hltp://wwwdasis.samhsa.gov/dasis2/nomslnoms 
which include· 

2.14.2.1. Abstinence 

2.14.2.2. Crime and Criminal Justice 

2.14.2.3. Employment/Education 

2.14.2.4. Stability in Housing 

2.14.2.5. Soci~l Connectedness 
Referral Source 

Client Financial Information 

He'\l ~hcare Coverage Information 

Substance Use Disorder treatment history 

Measures 
attch1.Dd0, 

2.14.7. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occurring Disorder recovery 
needs 

2.14.8. . Participation in Community Services 

2.14.9. Recovery capital 

2.15. The Contractor will work with the Department to identify the next cohort of 
RCCs to prepare them for CAPRSS accreditation. . . 

3. Reporting Requirements 

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan for each state fiscal year by July 
111 of that year. This work plan shall be subject to review and approval by 
the Department. 

3.2. Report on readiness for all considered RCC, that includes but is not limited 
to: 

3.2.1. Progress on lhe annual work plan. 

3.2.2 . Accreditation readiness 

3.2.3. Recovery center capacity 

Hlrbo< Homes, loc. 

18-0KKS.BOAS.GCF·RFA.Q2 . ,. 

Exnibit A. AtneritSment 1:3 

• Page7ofl0 

Conttoctorlflltlllt:a__ 

0111: ¢4W 



New H1mpshlre Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS F1cllltatlng Organization Services 

.. 

Exhibit A Amendment #3 

3.2.4. Capacity to provider PRSS 

3.2.5. Commitment to enrolling in Medicaid, upon. approval from the 
Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) of the 
establishment of a 'Recovery Community Center' provider type 
under the New Hampshire Medicaid program. · 

3.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that Include but are not 
limited to: • · 

3.3.1. Progress on the annual work plan. 

3.3.2. Progress on each RCC's work plan componef!ts. 

3.3.3. Information on RCC trainings conducted, including but not 
limited to, type of training provided and number of attendees: 

3.3.4. Information · regarding RCC meetings that occurred, as 
described in Section 2.6, including but not limited to, venue, 
number of attendees and methods used to advertise meetings. 

3.3.5. PRSS provided by each RCC, including. number of Individuals 
s.erved 

3.3.6. Back office support provided, as described in Section 2.8. 

3.4. The Contractor shall submit a final report to the Departm!lnt that includes, 
but is not limited to'· 

3.4 .1. Information on each of the eleven (11) RCCs including the 
number of indivtduals served during the three (3) months prior to 
entering into agreements with the Contractor in comparison to 
the number of individuals served by the RCG from April 111 to 
June 301" of each subsequent year. 

3.4.2. How many and what type of trainings were provided over the 
term of the contract. . . 

3.4.3. The number of RCCs ihat are.atcredited by the CAP~SS. 
3.4.4. The number and location of each Recovery Center that opened 

as a result of con:ri:lcted services. 

3.4.5. The type of PRSS services delivered by each RCC, including 
the number 'or individuals served by each. 

3.4 .6. Information n~garding clients served, which shall incl ude but not 
be limited to· 

3.4 .7. 

3.4.6 .1. Analys s of c;lient data referenced in 2 .11 by Individual 
RCC. 

3.4.6 2 Anaty~is of aggregated client data 
Back Ofhce funci1ons performed for ·each RCCs, which may 

Hamor Homea. Inc. 'E»:MJ.I/\ tvne""ment #3 ConttectOf' lnltlala:.i!K__ 
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include but is not limited to: 

3.4.7.1. 

3.4.7.2. 

Human Resources. . . 
Financial. .. 

.. 

3.4.7.3. Client billing to other funding sources not in this 
contract. 

3.4.8. All contractor work .that has started and any progres.s toward 
CAPRSS accreditation for the next cohort of RCCs identified to. 
the Department. 

4. Dellverables 

4.1. The Contractor shall _provide copies of the executed agreements described 
in Section 2.2. to the Department within fiv~ '(5} business days of fully 
executing the documen:s Each agreement and renewal are subject to 
BOAS review and approval. 

4.2. The Contractor shall complete an assessment, as described in Section 
2.3.1, for each of the RCCs, within ninety (90) days cif the contract effective 
date. 

4.2.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through 
Amendment; 

4.2.1. 1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. 

4 2.1.2. The assessment shall be completed within ninety (90) 
days ol Department approval, per Section 4. 1. 

4.2.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to perform 
assessments on _RCCs which were completed as a 
component of the· original contract. 

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a copy of each accreditation plan described in 
Section 2.3.2., within one hundred-twenty (1 20} days of the contract 
effective date. 

Hatl>o< ~OS. Inc. 

4.3.1. Should additional RCCs be adde_d to the Agreement, through 
Amend01enl; 

4_.3. 1. 1. This deliverable requirement shall apply io the newly 
addecl, additional RCCs. 

4.3.1.2. The accreditation plan shall be provided within one 
hur.dred-twenty (120} days of· Department approval. 
per Section 4.1. 

4.3.1.3. ThP. Contractor shall not be required to provide plans 
ior ~CCs which were completed .as a comp~>n'e[lt of 
tr.e original contract. 
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4.4. The Contractor shall provide a written Recovery Center assessment, as 
described in Section 2.7, for each RCC, within one hundred-eighty (180) 
days or the contract effective date. 

4.4.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement. through 
Amendment; 

4.4. 1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. 

4.4.1.2. The assessment shall be provided within one 
hundred-eigl:lty (180) Department approval, per 
Section 4. 1. 

4.4. 1 .3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide 
asses!;ments on RCCs which were completed as a 
component of the original contract. 

4.5. The Contractor shall provide the billing process and payment timeframes 
for providing the se'rvices in Section 2.9, within one hundred-twenty (120) 
days of the contract effective date and shall provide information on any 
changes made to the process andlor timeframes within thirty (30) days of 
making those changes. 

4.6. The Contractor. shall have provided a minimum of 70,000 RCO-generated 
services sha.ll tie provided to community members including, but not limited 
to: · 

4.6.1. Individual recovery coaching 

4.6.2. Telephone ·recovery support services 

4.6.3. Therapeutic services 

4.6.4. Center-based programming 

4.6.5. Crisis management and systems navigation, and 
• 

4.6.6. Other trainings and supports . .. 

Hlttor Homes. Inc:. 
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· STATEOFNEWHAMPSBIRE ~ \ s 
PEP ARTM.Ei'I'T OF HEAL TJl AND HUMAN SERVICES j ~~rf(' ~ ~ 

DMSION FOR BEBA VI ORAL TIEALTB f\ Wl?~ 
BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES &tvry\\'\ ~ 

lOS PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH OJJOl 
603-211~738 1-~ 

Fu: 61U-l11~105 TDD Ac<US: 1·800-735-29€4 

June 29, 2018 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable .Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services. to enter into a retroactiVe and sole source amendment to an agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc. {Vendor# 155358·8001), 77 Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH 03060, by making changes to the scope of worl<, payment schedules and temns and conditions of .the contract; Increasing the price limitation by $244,391 from $4,616,000 to and ' amount not to exceed $4,860,391. This wiU amend an existing contract to increase the number of Recovery Community Centers (RCCs) and ensure they 

~t the standards required of a Recovery Community Center, to be effective retroactive to June 30, 2018, upon Governor and Executive Council approval with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2019. This agreem,ent was originally approved by Governor and Council on June 1, 2016. (Item #13) and amended on June 7, 2017 (ltem ·#20). 13.19% General Funds, 45.59% Other Funds and 41.22% Federal Fund~. 

Funds to support this request are available In the following accounts in State Fiscal Years, 2018 and 2019 with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget OffiCe without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council. if needed and justified. 

Sta~ 
Current Modified 

Increased Revised 
Fiscal Class/Account Class Title 

Budget (Decreased) Modified Year Amount Budget 

Contracts for Prog 
2016 • 102-500734 Svcs $6.000 $0 $6,000 

Contracts for Prog 
2017 102·500734 Svcs $1 ,610,000 $0 $1 ,610,000 

Contracts for Prog 
2018 102-500734 Svcs $1 ,500,000 $104,098 $1 ,604,098 

Contracts for Prog 
2019 102-500734 Svcs $1,500,000 $140,293 $1 ,640,293 

Total $4,616,,000 $244,391 . $4,860,391 
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05-95-491Sj·0-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. SVCS, 
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS 

SFY Claaa/Account Class Title Activity/Job .Current Increased/ Revised 
Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 
Code Budget Amount Budget 

Contracts for 
2016 102-500734 Social Svc . 49158501 $2.,820 0 $2,820 

Contracts for 
2017 102-500734 Social Svc 491 58501 $813,180 $0 $813,180 

Subtotal $816,000 $0 $816,000 

0$.95...(91510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HH$: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS, 
CUNICAL SERVICES .. 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Code Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Budget Amount Budget 

Contracts for 
2016 102-500734 SOdaiSvc 49156501 $3,180 $0 $3,180 

Contracts for 
2017 ' 102-500734 SociaiSvc 49156501 $796,820 $0 $796,8~ 

Subtotal $800,000 $ 0 $800,000 

05-95-920510-33820000 i:tEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEAt:TH, BUREAU OF DRUG .AND ALCOHOL SVCS, 
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS . 

SFY• Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modlfled 

Code Budget Amount · Budget 

Contracts for 
2018 102-500734 Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000 

Conttacts for 
2019 102-500734 SodaiSvc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000 

Subtotal $1,400,000 $0 $1,400,000 
. 
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05·95·920Sf0-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL 
SVCS,CLINICAL SERVICES 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased Revised 
Account Number Modified I Modified 

Code Budget (De<:reas Budget 
ed) 
Amount 

Contracts for 
2018 102·500734 Social Svc 92056501 $800,000 $104,098 $904,098 

Contracts for 
2019 102-500734 Social Svc 92056501 $800,000 $0 $JIOO,OOO 

Contracts for 
Social 

2019 102-500734 Services 92056505 $0 $14P,293 $140,293 
' 

Subtotal. $1,600,000 $244,391 $1;844,391 
~ 

TOTAL $4,616,000 $244,391 $4,860,391 

EXPLANATION 

This request is retroactive because the contract with Harbor Homes, Inc. is being submitted 
after the release of an audit report to allow for Council review the audit findings prior to entering into an 
Agreement. The ~partment has added contra~ monitoring language to the agreement. 

This request Is aole source as Harbor Homes, Inc. Is currently under eontract to provide 
services as the Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization (PRSS FO) to support the 
development of Recovery Community Centers (RCCs). If approved, this amendment will add funding 
for Harbor Homes to support an RCC in ·the Claremont region and at least one additional RCC. 

FUnds in this agreement will be used to assess and enhance the level of accreditation readiness 
of each of the RCCs and to provide program management and oversight. A"dditionally. the vendor will 
Implement a quarrty improvement process in ·collaboration with the Department and other Peer 
Recovery Support Services (PRSSs) and implement culturally appropriate processes and outcome data 
oollection and analysis. 

tn response to HOpe for New Hampshire Recovery's decision to no longer provide recovery 
services in the Claremont region, a community decision was made to establish a new peer recovery 
center in order to continue providing this valuable resource. Community partners developed a proposal 
tor the development and implementation of a more comprehensive recovery community center and . 
requested funds be made avallable through the PRSS FO to su~ntract with Claremont TLC Family 
Resource Center and to support and ensure that the RCC meels appropr\ate standards for a Recovery 
Community Organization, rfiCOvery center and peer recovery support services. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the corrtrary, no services shall . be 
provided after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services 
provided after June 30, 2019. · 
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The following perfoiTTlance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the 
agreement: 

• Operating Recovery Community Organizations; 

•· Each RCC meets CAPRSS accreditation standards; 

• Engaging individuals with 'lived experience· in completing requirements to provide Peer 
Recovery Support SeNices, including completing the "Recovery Coach" training and 
becoming a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) under the Board of Ucensing 
for Alcohol and Other Diug Use Professionals; 

·• Having the mechanisms and protocols in place to collect client information, Including 
process and ootco·me data; 

· • Providing Peer Recovery Support SeNices 

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the Departnient's 
overall strategy to address the. disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negatively impacted, 
with fewer Individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to a community-based PRSS, 
many of them l")'lay require additional intensive treajment services. Others may continue in their active 
addiction, leading. to negative mecfteal, legal and child welfare consequences for those persons, their 
families and society, incurring much higher costs to the Department and state. 

Area seNed: Statewide. 

Source of Funds: 41.22% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human 
SeNices, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Cf.DA #93.959 FAIN TI010035 
and 45.59% Other FundS from the Governor's Commission FundS and 13.19'Yo General Funds. 

Respectfully submitted, 

<).:::'~ S!:, 
Katja S. Fox 

Approved by«~' 1 
' dJJ A "'A y:c:~y::r4 

Commissioner 

Tht /Jq)o.ttm4nt of Htolth o.rad Hut'Nln &t"ica' Mi&alon it w joil\ oommun.~Uu 01\d {omilia 
in prouidU... opportunit~ /or citi.zttU to ocJUtue Malth ~ ind.cpe11~. 
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State of New ,Hampshire 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #2 to the 

PRSS Facllita\ing Organization Services Contract 

This 2"" Amendment to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services contract (hereinafter referred to as 

'Amendment #21 dated this 24th day of April, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, 

Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State• or "Depattmenr) and 

Harbor Homes, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business 

at 45 High Street, Nasliua, NH. 

WHEREAS, pursuant· to an agreement (the •contract') approved by the Governor and Executive Council 

on June 1, 2016 (Item #13), as amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20) the Contractor agreed to perform 

certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended· and in 

consideration of certain sums specified; and 

WHEREAS, the Stale and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment 

·schedules and terms ll!ld conditions of the contract; aild 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 the State may mod~y the scope 

of work and the payment schedule of the 'contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval 

from the Governor and Executive Council; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation. and modify the scope of services to 

support continued delivery of these services; and · 

NON THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions 
. ....; . . 

contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: 

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: 

~.860,39t 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1 ,9, Contra.cting Officer for State Agency, to read: 

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., DirectOI' of Contracts and Procurement 

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1. 10. State Agency Telephone Number, to read: 

60~271-9330. 

4. Delete Exhibit B-4, Amendment '#1 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit 8-4, Amendment #2. 

5. Delete Exhibit A, Amendment #1 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment 12. 

6. Add Exhibit A-1, Contract Compliance 

7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements 

Hort>o<H...,.. 
IS.OHHS flt\O.S{XF-RfAo02 

Arnt ndmtnt 11'2 
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New Hampshire Department pf Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services 

This amendmllflt ahal be effecli'ie upon 11M! date of Governor and Executive Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the par1ies have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Servlces 

Adulowledgement of Contrecto(s signature: 
/ 

State of M.,.., H..,J.- , County of y,'((, J., ..., ci... on '7/u/ )#'/" . before the ~dersigned officer, 

personaly appeared the person ldentir~ed direcaYabove, or satisfaetoriy ptQ.en 10 be the person ...tlo$e name Is 

signed above. end ecknov.4edged that sJhe executed this document in 11M! capacity Indicated above. 

Slgnatu-a of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace 

f4rllor Homes 
18-0tiHS-BOAS-<>CF.fiFA·02 --··2 Pogo2on 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Facilitating Organtzatlon Services · 

The preceding Amendmen\, having been reviewed by this offiCe, Is approved as to form, substance. and execution. 

OFFia: OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Date IF I 

I hereby certify that lhe foregoing Amendment was approved by the or and Executive Council of the State 

of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dele of meeting) 

Date · 

--16-0HHS-BOAS-GCF·RFA.02 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Ari\Oncllntnt 11'2 
Poge3ol3 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcea 
PRSS Facilitating Organlutlon Services 

Exhibit A Amendment #2 

Scope of Services 

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

1.1 . The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language 
assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English 
proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services 
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees that. to the extent future legislative action by the 
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have 
an Impact· on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right 
to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this 
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. 

1.3. For the pui'J?OseS ·of this contract, any reference to days shall mean 
consecutive calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days. 

1.4. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to business days shall 
mean Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holidays. 

1.5. The Contractor shall . conduct an assessment of Recovery Community 
Centers (RCCs) to determine the level of readiness for each RCC to 
become accredited according to the standards set forth by the Council on 
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support .Services (CAPRSS). 

1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide each RCC 
with assistance to meet accreditation standards set fonh by the CAPRSS. 

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Recovery Support 
Services (PRSS) technical assistance assets to as5ess the capacity of 
each RCC relative to the core and optional standards defined by ttie 
Council of Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support ~rvtces (CAPRSS). · 

1.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and RCCs to determine 
dllturally appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis: 

. . 
1.9. The Contractor shall provide program management and oversight as well 

as Implement a quality improvement process. 

2. Scope of Services 

2.1. The Contractor shall complete an accreditation readiness scan of all known 
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs), statewide. The Contractor shall: 

2.1.1. Determine each RCC's ability to achieve Council of 
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) 
accreditation. 

2.1.2. Determine each RCC's ability to open a Recovery Center. 

2.1.3. Determine each RCC's capacity to provide Peer Recovery 
Support Services (PRSS). 



New H•mpshlre Department of Health and Human Services 
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Exhibit A Amendment 12 

2.1.4. Determine each RCC's commitment to becoming a Medicaid 

provider, upon approval from the Center for Medicaid and 
Medicare Services (CMS) of the establishment of a 'Recovery 

Community Center' provider type under the New Hampshire 

Medicaid program. 

2.1 .5. Provide a written determination of RCC readiness to the 

Department within 5 business days of completing the final RCC 
readiness scan. 

2.2. The Contractor shall enter into contract with a minimum of eleven (11) 

RCC's by June 30, 2019, in at least fiVe (5) different Public Hea~h Regions 

(See Appendix D - Regional Public Health Networks}, as approved by the 
Department, in order to· Increase capacity for PRSS within each of the 

selected eleven (11) RCCs. The Contractor shall: 

2.2.1 . Ensure that priority is gill'lln to Public Health Regions that do not 
have an RCC (See Appendix 0 - Regional Public Health 
Network). 

2.2.2. Provide a copy of each executed RCC contract to the 

· Department within five (5} days of contract execution. 

2.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with PRSS technical assistance assets, 
·including, but · not limited to, CAPRSS, to assess each RCC for 

accreditation readiness in accordance with the standards set forth by the 
CAPRSS. The Contractor shall: · ' 

2.3.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that Indicates the 

RCC's capacity to provide PRSS services and current 
operational standards. 

2.3.2. Develop a written plan with each. RCC that includes, but is not 
limited to: 

2.3.2.1. Timeframes to meeting CAPRSS accreditation 
standards. 

2.3.2.2. Goals that must be attained by each RCC In order to 
meet CAPRSS aCcreditation standards. 

2.3.2.3. Technical assistance needed for each RCC in order 
to meet CAPRSS goals, time frame and techniCal 
asslstance accreditation requirements. 

2.3.3. Ensure training and technical assistance Is provided to each 
RCC, as needed. 

2.4. · The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide assistance to 
each RCC to ensure that they meet accreditation standards set forth by 

CAPRSS. The Contractor shall ensure assistance includes, but is not 
limited to: · · 

Ha--s.lnc. ~~-...ff!L 
, · Oo~:~· 
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2.4.1. 

2.4.2. 

2.4.3. 

2.4.4. 

2.4.5. 

Exhibit A Amendment #2 

Personnel with the expertise necessary to deliver high quality 
training. 

Technical assistance, as needed. 

Organizational coaching. 

Capacity development consultation. 

Administrative support functions. as needed. 

I 

2.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Center for Excellence to develop 
and provide training as well as technical ~sslstance to RCCs In order to: 

2.5.1. Assist RCCs to attain accreditation. 

2.5.2. Provide technical assistance to RCCs. to enroll In Medicaid upon 
the establishment of a "Peer Recovery Program· provider type 
by the New Hampshire Medicaid Pragram based on Fede~l 
Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) and other 
Federal and State requirements, which.include: 

2.5.2 .. 1. 42 CFR, Subpart 6 ( http:/lwww,ecfr.gov/ooi­
blnlretrleveECER?qp::&SID::2a147022bdOe989f2effO 

. · 2f0ba401830&mc=true&n=pt42.4.455&r-PART&tv=H 
TML#sp42.4.455.b ). 

2.5.2.2. 42 CFR. Subpart E ( http://www.ecfr.gov/ool­
binlretrieyeECER?gp=&SID=2a147022bdOe989f21rlf0 
2f0ba401830&mc=true&n=sp42.4.455.e&r=SUBPAR 
T&tv=HTML ). 

2.5.2.3. 45 CER. 164.512(d) ( http://www.ectr,govicoi-binltext· 
jdx?SID==07d0a507d28ee03b2b09dfd7a2be33d2&mc 
==1rue&node=se45.1.164 1512&rnn==dlv8 ). 

2.5.3. Ensure personnel providing PRSS In ~CCs are Certified 
Recovery Support Workers ·(CRSW) and meet the CAPRSS 
recovery coaching standards. · 

2.5.4. Assist RCCs to expand capacity to include Peer Recovery 
Coaching and Telephone Recovery Support Services. 

. . 
2.5.5. Assist RCCs with expanding capaci1y to Include back office 

support functions. 

2.5.6. Assist RCCs In establishing Recovery Centers and developing a 
plan to sustain them. 

2.6. The Contractor shall utilize logistical support provided by the Center for 
Excellence to facilitate a Community of Practice that allows RCC 
administrators and leaders to establish and strengthen collegiality, 

--• • Inc. 
~kA .... ..-ootiZ 
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cooperation, collaboration and Informal mentoring among RC<;:s. The 

Contractor shall: 

2.6.1. · Organize regular oniJolng RCC regional meetings with RCC 

administrators and leaders. 

2.6.2. Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCCs, statewide. 

2.6.3. Ensure that each subcontracted RCC engages In Its local 

Regional Public Health Network (RPHN) to participate in 

continuum of care develOpment worll. 

2.7. The Contractor shall assess the ability of each RCC to open and sustain a . 

Recovery Center. The Contractor shall: 

2.7.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates 

each RCC's neadiness'to open and sustain a Recovery Center, 

that Includes, but is not limited to: 

2.7.1.1 . The current organizational structure of the RCC's 

Recovery Center or the RCC's readiness io open a 

Recovery Center, as ·appropriate.' · 

2.7 .1.2. The number of people that can be served by the 

RCC's Recovery Center. 

2. 7 .1.3. The RCCs financla.l viability to support a Recovery 

Center. 

2.7.2. Work with each RCC to develop a written plan to open a 

Recovery Center. 

2. 7.3. Ensure training and technical assistance Is available to 

Recovery Center staff, which may include but is not limited to: 

2.7 .3.1. Customer seNice training. 

2.7 .3.2. Peer Recovery Coaching Services. 

2.7.3.3. Telephone Recovery Support Services. 

2.7 .4. Assist RCCs to secure funding from other public and private 

sources to ensure ongoing sustainabllity of services. 

2.8. The Contractor shall assist RCCs with performing back office functions that 

may Include, but are not limited to: 

--... Inc. 

2.8 .1-. Human resource functions. 

2.8.2. Financial functions . such as accounting, bookkeeping and 

payroll. 

2 .8.3. Billing functions. 
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2.9 . The Contractor shall ensure billing services are available to each RCC until 
such time RCCs can perform bilfing functions on their own. Billing 
fundions shall include, but are not limited to: · 

2.9.1. Submitting PRSS client services covered by Medicaid to the 
appropriate managed care organization (MCO). 

2.9.2 . Disbursing payments received from MCOs to the appropriate 
RCC. 

2.9.3. Accepting RCC invoices for operational costs. 

2.9.4. Paying RCCs for operational costs on a oost reimbursement 
basis. 

2.9.5. Submitting RCC operational oost invoices to the Department for 
reimbursement. 

2.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the NH Center for Excellence to: 

2 .1 0.1 . Identify data evaluation criteria. 

2 .10.2. Implement an evaluation process in each RCC. 

2.11. The Contractor shall ensure technical assistance is available to each RCC 
in order to co!lect, analyze and utilize data, .for the evaluaUon process in. 
Section 2.10.2., which shall include but is not limited to: 

2.11.1. Demographics, which indude but are not limited to: 

2.11 .1.1. Gender 

2.11.1.2 . Age 

2.11 .1.3. Ethnicity 

2.11 .1.4. Primary drug of choice 

·2.11.2. SAMHSA National Outoome Measures 
(http://wwwdasis.samhsa.aov/dasis2/nomslnoms attchl .pdf). 
which indude: 

2.11.3. 

,2.11.4. 

2.11.5. 

2.11.6. 

Hoottor Homn. Inc. 

2.11 .2.1. Abstinence 

2.11 .2.2 . Crime and Criminal Justice 

2.11 .2.3. EmploymenVEducation 

2.11.2.4. Stability in Housing 

2.11.2.5. Social CoMectedness 
Referral Source 

a lent Financial Information 

Healthcare Coverage Information 

Substance Use Disorder treatment history 

El<hiblt A AIM"'*'> ont f2 
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2.11. 7. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occurring Disorder recovery 
needs 

2.11.8. Participation in Community Services. 

2.11.9. Recovery capital 

2.12. The Contractor will work wfth the Department to Identify the next cohort of 
· RCCs to prepare them for CAPRSS accreditation. 

3. Reporting R~qulrements 

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan for each state fiscal year by July 
151 of that year. This work plan shall be subject to review and approval by 
the Department. 

3.2. Report on readiness for all considered RCC. that includes but is not limited 
to: 

32.1. 

32.2. 

32.3. 

3.2.4. 

Progress' on the annual work plan. 

Accreditation readiness. 

Recovery center capacity 

Capadty to provider PRSS 

3.2.5. Commitment to enrolling In Medicaid, upon ·approval from the 
Center for Medicaid and Medi.care Services (CMS} of the 
establishment of a 'Recovery Community Center' provider type 
under the New Hampshire Medicaid program. 

3.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that include but are not 
limited to: 

3.3.1. 

. 3.3:2. 

3.3.3. 

3.3.4. 

Progress on the annual work plan. 

Progress on each RCC's work plan components . 

Information on. RCC trainings conducted, including but not 
limited to. type of training provided and number of attendees. 

Information regarding RCC ·meetings that occurred, as 
described In Section 2.6, including but not limiiad to, venue, 
number of attendees and methods used to advertise meetings . 

. ,: ., : 3.3:5. Back office support provided, as described in Section 2.8. 

3:4~'~e Contractor shall submit a final report to the Departn1eni that includes, 
but Is not limited to: · · •· · 

Herber Homes, Inc. 

3.4.1. Information on each of the eleven (11} RCCs Including 'the 
number of Individuals served during the three (3) months prior to 
subcontracting wfth the Contractor in comparison to the number 

Exhlbtl A Amendm1Mtt2 
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of individuals served by the RCC from April 1'1 to June 30th of 
each subsequent year. 

3.4.2. How many and what type of trainings were provided over the 
term of the contract. 

3.4.3. The number of RCCs that are accredited by the CAPRSS. 

3.4 . .4. The number and location of each Reoovery Center that opened 
as a result of contracted services. 

3.4.5. The type of PRSS services delivered by each RCC. 

3.4.6. Information regarding clients served, which shall include but not 
be·limited to: 

3 .4.6.1. Analysis of client data referenced in 2.11 by individual 
RCC. 

3.4.6.2. Analysis of aggregated client data 

3.4.7. Back Office functions performed for each RCCs, which may 
include but is not limited to: 

'3.4.8. 

3.4.7.1 . Human Resources. 

3.4.7.2. Financial. 

3.4.7 .3. Client billing to other funding sources not in this 
contract. 

All oontrector work that has started and any progress toward 
CAPRSS accreditation for the next oohort of RCCs identified to 
the Department. 

4. DeliVerables 

4.1. The Contractor shall provide copies of the executed contrecrs described in 
Section 2.2, to the Department within five (5) business days of fully · 
executing the documents. Each sub-contract and renewal are subject to 
BOAS review and approval. 

4.2. · The Contractor shall complete an assessment, as described in Section 
· . 2.3.1 , for each of the RCCs. within ninety (90) days of the contract effective 

date: · 

Harbot Homes. Inc. 

4.2.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement. through 
Amendme~t; 

Paoe 1 ot a 
~~rs£JL 
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4.2.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. 

42.1.2. The assessment shall be completed within ninety (90) 
days of Department approval, per Section 4.1. 

4.2.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to perform 
assessments on RCCs which were completed as a 
component of the original contract. 

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a copy of each accreditation plan described in 
Section 2.3.2., within one hundred-twenty (120) days of the contract 
effective date. 

4.3.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through 
Amendment; 

4.3. f.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. . · ..... · 

4.3.1.2. The accreditation plan· shall be provided within one · 
hundred-twenty (120) days of Department approval, 
per Section 4.1. 

4.3.1 .3. The Contr.actor shall not be required to provide plans 
for RCCs which were completed as a component of 
the original contract. 

4.4. The Contractor shall provide. a written Recovery Center assessment, as. 
descl'ibed in Section 2.7; for each RCC, within one nundred-eighty {180) 
days of the contract effective date. 

4.4.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through 
Amendment; · 

4.4.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly 
added, additional RCCs. 

4.4.1.2. The assessment shall be provided within one 
hundred-eighty (180) Department approval, per 
Section 4.1. 

4.4.1.3. The Contractor shall not b.e required to provide 
assesSments on RCCs Ylhlch were completed as a 
component of the original contract. 

4.5. The Contractor shall provide the billing process and payment timeframes 
for providing the services in Section 2.9, within one hundred:twenty (120) 
days of the contract effective date and shall provide Information on any 
changes made to the process and/or timeframes within thirty (30) days of 
making those changes. · 

Hart>or Komes, Inc.. Exhibit A Nrw!ndment 12 
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Contrac't Compliance 

1. Audits . 

1.1. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department 
within thirty (30) days of the date of final audit findings. T-he Contractor 
shall ensure the COI'rective action plan addresses all audit findings and 
includes, at a minimum: 

HJI'bot Homet,lnc. 

1.1 .1. The specific actlon(s) to be taken to correct each· deficiency 
identified by the Department; 

1.1.2. The specific action(s) to· be taken to prevent any future 
reoccurrence(s) of eacli deficiency; 

1 :1.3. The specifiC action steps and timeline for implementing the 
·actions identified In Section 1, Audits; 

' 
1.1.4. A written plan for monitoring ·actions to ensure the aCtions 

identified in Section 1, Audits are effective; and . 

1.1.5. The frequency and method for reporting progress on . 
i.mplementatlon and effectiveness of the corrective action 
plan to the Department. 

E>l>lt>l A· I Contract Compllarce 
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DHHS Information Security Requirements 

' 
A. Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 

unauthorized acqulslllon, unau1horlzed access. or any similar term referring to 

situations where persons other than authorized users and tor an other than 

authorized purpose have access or potential access to personallY Identifiable 

information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 

Information, ·Breach" sha~ have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 

164.402 of Trtle 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. "Computer security Incident' ·shall have the same meaning "Compuler Security 

Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800.01, Computer Security Incident 

Handting Guide, National lnslilu1e of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 

of Commerce. 

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential lnlorniatlon 

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, . public 

· assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance 

Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 

Personally Identifiable Information. 

Gonfidentfal lnf9rmation also includes any and an information owned or managed by 
the State of NH~'created, received from or on behalf of lhe Department of Heanh and 

Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 

services • of which colection , disclosure, protection. and disposition is governed by 

stele or federal laW ()( regulation. This information includes, but Is not fimUed to 

Protected Heallh Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial 

Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), 

Payment Card Industry (PC!), and or other sensitive and confidential Information. 

4. ' End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 

business as90Ciate, suboontraclor, other doYmstream user, etc.) that receives 

DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of1 g96 and the 

regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or i'nplied security policy, 

which Includes attempts (e~her failed or successful) to gain unau1hortzed access to a 

system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 

a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes to system herdware, 

fll'lllware, 'or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 

consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss 

or misplacement of hardcopy dOcuments, and misrou11ng of physical or electronic 

V4. Lul._,d ... 04.0U018 &.hll>i11< 
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modWication or destruction. 

7. "Open \/Vireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is 
not_ designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information 
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and 
approved. by means of the State. to transmit) will be considered an open 

· network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI , PFI, 
PHI or confidential OHHS data. 

e. 'Personal Information" (or 'PI") means Information which can be·used to distinguish 
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal 
information as defined in New Hamps~ire RSA 359-C.:19, biometric records, ·etc., 
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked 
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of b irth, mother's malden 
name, etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health Information• (or ' PHI") hes the seme meaning as provided In the 
definition of 'Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 
100.10~ . 

11. ·security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards fOr the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments 
thereto. 

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information• means Protected Health Information that Is 
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unaUthorized Individuals and is 
developed or endorsed by a standards ·developing organization that is accredited by 
the American National Standards Institute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure' of Confidential information. 

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information 
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 
including but not limited to all its directors, offiCers, employees and agents, must not 
use, disclose. maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation 
of the Privacy and Security Rule. · · 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential lnfonmatlon In response to a 

V4. lAst update 04.04.2018 · E>chi>IIK 
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A • 
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a, 
subpoena. etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 
consent or object to the disclosure. · 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to bEi bound by additional 
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 

· pursuant to the Privacy and Securty Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 
additional restrictions and must . not disclose PHI In violation of such addttional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End . 
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained Linder this Contract may not .be used for 
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. · 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 
of DHHS for .the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance wtth ·the terms of this 
Contract. 

It · METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 
Confidential Data between applications. the Contractor attests tihe applications have 
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in, cyber security and that said 
application's encryption capabillties ensure secure transmission vi!! the internet. 

2. Computer Disks .and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 
or. portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 
data . • 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ. email to transmit Confidential Data if 
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email address.es of 
persons authorized to receive such Information. 

· 4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services, also known as 'File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file · 
hosting services, such . as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 
Confidential Data. · 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual. 

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and passwo'rd-pr6tected : · 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private networl< (VPN) when. 
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remoie User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to 
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private netwOrl< (VPN) must be 
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be 
·transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User w~l 
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of 
'information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confi(!ential Data will 
be coded for 24-hour auto-<lelellon cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 
hours). 

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all 
data must be enaypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 
Contract. After such time. the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the dala and any 
derivative in whatever form il may exist, unless. otherwise required by law or permitted 
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not ·store, transfer or process data collected in 
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the Un~ed 
Slates. This physical location requirement shaU also apply In the Implementation of 
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup 
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security · mooitorlng · capabilftles are in 
place to detect· potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End _ 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agre·es to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

. ' 
5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a 

FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 
ragulations regarding the privacy and security. All serve111 and devices must have 
currently-supported and hardened operating systems •. the latest ·antl·vlmt, anti· 
hacker, anti·spam, antJ..spyware, and antknalware utilities. The environment, as a 
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-deteCtion and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation wHh the State's 
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 
infrastructure. 

B. OiSPQsHion . 

1. If the Contractor win maintain any Confidential InformatiOn on Its systems (or Its 
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 
securely disposing of such data upon request or .contract termination; and will 
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster 
recovery operatiOns. When no longer In use, electronic .media containing State of 
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable vta a secure wipe program 
in accordance with industry-accepted sta~dards for secure deletion and medja 
sanitization, or· otherwise physically destroying the media (for ellample, 
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication ·600-88, Rev 1. Guidelines 
for Media Sanitization, National Institute .of Standards and Technology, .U. S. 
Uepartmimt of Commerce. The·· contractor will do.cument and certify in writing at 
lime of the. data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department 
upon request. The written certWication will Include all details necessary to 
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable, 
regulatory and professional standards fcir retentiOn requlrem.ents will be jointly 
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2.' Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the ,termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 
secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data 
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor egrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 
derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 
confidential information collected. processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery 
of contracted services. 

:Z.. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 
confidential information throughout the Information lifacycle, where applicable, (from 
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destnuction) regsrdlass of the 
media used to store the data (i.e., tapa, disk, paper, etc.). 
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. 3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 
contractor systems that collect, transmit. or store Department confidential information 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to 
detect potential security events that can impact State or NH systems 1111d/or· 
Department ~nfKiential lnformation for contractor pf9vlded systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular sec~ty awareness and education for Its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information. 

6. If the Contractof will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 
prilgram of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
expectations, end monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notlficatlon requirements. 

7. The Contractor will work wHh the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and aulhorizatlon policies 
and procedures. systems access forms. and computer use agreements as part of 

. obtaining and rnaintalnlng access to any Department system( e). Agreements wnr be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sulH:onlractors prior to 
system access being authorized. ' . 

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to o45 
CFR 160.103, the Contractor Will execute a HIPAA Business Assoc181e Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compMance with the 
agreement. 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department 'at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 

·eontractor to mon~or for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the Rfe of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually. or an· altemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the· Contractor changes. · 

10. The Contractor win not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data olfshora or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office 
leedershlp member within the Department 

11. Data Security Breach Liablily. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent fut~Ke breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
Th!l State shall recover from the Contractor aD costs of response and recovery from 
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the breach. including but not fimlted to: credit monitoring services, maning costs and 

costs associated w!lh website and telephone caU center services necessary due to 
the breach. 

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 

privacy end security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects 

maintain the privacy and security ot PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less 

than ·the level and scope of requirements appicable to federa.l agencies, including, 

but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (~ U.S.C. § 552a), OHHS 

Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b) .. HIPM Privacy and Security Rules (45 

C.F.R. Parts fso and 1~4) that govem protections for Individually identifiable hea~h 

information and as applicable under State law. ' 

13. Contract<x ~·~e'es to establish and maintain appropriate administra1ive, technical, and 

pliyslcal safeguards to protect the confidentiality of tha Confidential Data and to 

prevent unauthorized use or access to - · The safeguards rrust provide a level and 
· scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 

established by the State of. New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. 

Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/lwww.nh.gov/doi\Nendorlindex.hlm 

for the Department ot Information Technology policies. guidelines, slandards, and 

procurement lnforr:nation relating to vendors . 

. 14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident 

response process. The Contractor will notify 'the Stale's ·Privacy Offioe·r, and 

additional' emaH addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two 

(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of. its occurrence. This includes a 

confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach 

which affects or includes any· Stale of New Hampshire systems that connec1 to the 

Stale of New Hampshire netwOfk. 

15, Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 

Contract to only thOse authoriZed End Users. who need such OHHS Data . to 

perform their offiCial duties In connection with purposes Identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contrac!Of must ensure that aU End Users: . 

a. comply ~ such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above, 

Implemented to protect Confidential Information thai is furnished by DHHS 

under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this Information at an times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pl. or 

PFI are encrypted and pasSWQrd-protected. 

d. send emalls containing Confidential lnformallon only if encrvot~ and being 

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons auth04'ized to 

receive sUch information. 
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e. limn disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. ConOdenlial Information received under this Contract and Individually 

ldentiOable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area. that Is 

physlcally and technologically Se<:\lre from access by unauthorized peC$0ns 

during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 

biometric Identifiers. etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any 

derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and In all cases, 

such data must be encrypted at all times when In translt. at rest. or when 

stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. In all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 

disclosed uslng appropriate safeguards, as determined 'by. a risk-based 

assessment of the circumstances Involved. 

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be 

shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information seQJra. 

This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through 

a third party application. 

Contractor Is responSlble for oversight and cornpUance of thelr End Users. DHHS 

reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compliance with this 

Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, 

and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confldenti<!l Data 

Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information· Security Office and 

Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours oflhe 

time that the Contrllctor learns of their occurrence. ' 

' 
The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In 

accordance with the agency's .documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 

procedures and In accordance wflh 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and 

no!YA\hstandfng, Contractors oomplfance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 

Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor wih: 

1. Identify Incidents: 

2. Determine II personally identltlable Information is involved In Incidents: 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37: 

4. Identify and convene a oore response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 

and determine rfsll-based responses to Incidents: and 
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5 . . Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, idenUfY appropriate 
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 

. measures. 

·. 
Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reportad, as 
applicable, In aocordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. · 

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT 

A. DHHS co'ntact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues: 

DHHSinlormat!onSecurityOffiCe@dhhs.nh.gov 

8. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues: 

OHHSPrtvacyOiflcer@dhhs.nh.gov 

C. OHHS contact for Information Security Issues: 

OHHSinlonnaUonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 

D. DHHS contact. for Breach notifications: 

DHHSinformationSecurityOiflce@dhlis.nh.gov 

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gpv 
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Gt_t-C., 1\fP~W&} 

DEPARTMENT OF H EALTH AND HUMAN SEKVICES 41-l ~ 
DIVISION FOR BEHAVJORALHEALTH 

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES 

10~ PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-6138 1·800-80~·0909 

F•" 603·27!;6105 TOO Acces.s: 1-800-735·2964 

· May 10, 2017 

Hls Excellency, ·Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services 
to exercise·a renewal option for two (2) years. out of a possible four (4) years; with Harbor Homes, Inc. 
(Vendor # 155358-8001 ), 45 High Street. Nashua NH, 03060, by increasing the. price limitation by 
$3;116,000 from $1,500,000 to an amount not to exceed $4,616,000 and extending the completion 
date from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2019. This will amend an existing contract to facilitate the 
development and networking of peer recovery support services available in multiple Regional Public 
Health Regions in order to significantly reduce alcohol and drug misuse and its social. behavioral and 
health consequences statewide. to be effective upon Govemor and Execut•ve Council approval. This 
agreement was originarty approved by Governor and Council on June 1, 2016, !tern #13. 10 % 
General Funds, 42% Federal Funds, 48% Other Funds 

.• 
State 

Class/ 
Current Increased Revised 

Fiscal 
Account Class Title Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Year Budget Amount Budget 

2016 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs ~.000 $0 $6,000 

2017 102·500734 Contracts for Social Svs $1.494,000 $116,000 $1,610,000 

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs $0 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs $0 $1 ,500,000 $1,500,000 

Total $1,500,000 . $3,116,000 $4,616,000 

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2017 
and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 and State Fiscal Year 2019, upon the 
availability and continued appropriation of. funds in the future operating budgets, with the ability to 
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified 
Without further approval fror'n the Governor and Executive Council. 
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05-95491510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 
HHS: DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR 
COMMISSION FUNDS 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budget 
2016 102-500734 Contracts for 49158501 $2,820 0 $2,820 

Social Svc 
2017 102-500734 Contracts for 49158503 $697,180 $116,000 $813,180 

Social Svc 
Subtotal $700.000 $116,000 $816,000 

' OS-95491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL 
~~~ . . 

SFY Class/ Class Title Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budg_et 
2016 102-500734 Contracts for 49156501 $3,180 ·o $3,180 

Social Svc 
2017 102-500734 Contracts for 49156501 $790,820 0 $796,820 

Social Svc 
Subtotal $800,000 $0 $800000 

OS-95-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 
HHS: DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR 
COMMISSION FUNDS . 

SFY Class/ Class Title' Ac1ivity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number , Modified (Decreased ) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budget · 
2018 102-500734 Contracts for TBD 0 $700,000 $700,000 

Social Svc 
2019 102-500734 Contracts for TBD 0 $700,000. $700,000 

Social Svc 
Subtotal so $1,400,000 $1,400 000 
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05-95-920510-3384 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 
HHS: DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL 
SERVICES 

SFY Class/ Class Tille Activity/Job Current Increased/ Revised 
Account Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Code Budget Amount Budaet 
2018 102-500734 Contracts for TBD 0 $800,000 5800,000 

Social Svc 
2019 102-500734 Conlracts for TBD 0 $800,000 $800,000 

Social Svc 
Subtotal $.0 $1,600000 $1600.000 
TOTAL $1,500,000 $3,116,000 $4,616,000 

EXPLANATION 

Funds in this amendment will be used lo support ongoing efforts of the Contractor 
(Fac~italing Organization) to develop the infrastructure for Recovery Community Organizations 
(RCOs) across the state and lo support their becoming acaedited to provide peer recovery 
support seiVices. Funding will specifically' be utilized for program operalions and to conlinue 
training and lechnical assistance made available to the (7) RCOs that came on line in Slate Fiscal 

·. Year 2017 and to likewise ma.ke resources available to bring an additional 3 RCOs on fine in State 
Fiscal Year 2018. 

List of Current Recovery Community Or11aniz<~tions supported by this contract: . 

White Horae Addi ction Center, Inc. 
68 Route Route 168 PO Sox 487, Center 
ossipee, NH 03814 

Granite Pathways. Inc. - Safe Harbor 
Recovery Center 
865 Islington Street Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Goodwin C~unity Heal~h . SOS Recovery 
Coo:.:unity 
311 Route 108, Somersworth, NH 0)862 

Keene Serenity Center 
36 Carpenter St., Keene , NH 03431 

Revive Recovery Center 
41 sagamore Park Road, Hudson NH 03051 

Greater Tilton are& Family Resource 
Center 
291 Main Street Suite 3 
Tilton, NH 03~76 

North Country Sereniey Center 
33 Hain Street 
Littleton. NH 03561 

· Recovery Support Services provided are a cost-effective means of providing ongoing 
support to individuals in the early stages of recovery from su!>stanoe use disorders (SUD). Many of 
the individuals seiVed will have ~cently completed a SUD lreatm.ent program. 

The objective_of these programs are to: 
• Support the operations of a recovery community organization; 

• To perform back off~<:e functions (Finance. billing', personnel) for subcontracted 
RCOs as needed; 

• Increase capacity for providing Peer Recovery Support Services; 
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• Assist the subcontracted Recovery Community Organizations in becoming in 
accordance with the standards set forth by the Council on Accreditation of Peer 
Reeovery Support Services (CAPRSS); 

• Ensure personnel providing Peer Recovery Support Services in Recovery 
Community Organizations are Certif~ed Recovery Support Workers (CRWs) and 
meet the recovery coaching standards set by the Council on Accreditation of Peer 
Recovery Support Services; 

• To develop a mechanism to collect. analyze and utilize data. 
The vendor will provide technical assistance to subcontracted RCOs to support their 

enrolling as providers in the state's Medicaid program and with other third party payers. 
Progress will be measured by the Recovery Community Organizations meeting certain 

milestones. including: 
• · Operating a Recovery Community Organization (RCO); 

• The RCO meeting CAPRSS accreditation standards; 

• Engaging individu.als with "lived eXPerience· in completing requirem~nts to provide 
peer recovery · supports services, include completing the "Recovery Coach' 
currictJium training and becoming a Certified Recover Support Worker (CRSW) 
under the Bo(!rd of Alcohol and Drug Use Professional Practice; 

• Having mechanisms and protocols in place to collect client information (including 
process and outcome data); 

• Providing peer recovery support services. 

We expect the RCOs to serve a significant number of people. However, since peer 
recovery support services (PRSS) .have not previously been widely available and . because the 
RCOs are in the early stages of development. the number of people accessing PRSS through the 
RCOS supported by this contract cannot yet be determined. As data collection systems come 01')­
line, the vendor will be reporting on the numbers served within each of the RCOs. 

Recovery Community Organizations will be expected to leverage additional public and 
private funding resources· thereby sustaining and increasing capacity for the Peer Recovery 
Support Services beyond the resources made available in this contract. 

As stated in Exhibit A - Amendment #1 , notwithstanding any other provision of the 
Contract to the contrary. no services shall continue after June 30, ·2017. and the Department shall 
not be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an 
appropriation for these services has been received from the stale legislature and funds 
encumbered for the SFY 2016-2019 biennia. 

. . 
Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request the Department's 

overall strategy to address the misuse of alcohol and drugs will be negatively impacted, including 
fewer individuals maintaining recovery with many of them cycling back into needing .more intensive 
and costly treatment services. 

Area Served: Statewide. 

. Source of Funds: 42% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and 
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.959 
FAIN TI010035 and 48% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Onig 
Abuse Prevention, intervention and Treatment and 10% General Funds. 
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In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

Respectfully su.bmilled, 

'lL.~ '9:> ~ 
Kalja S. Fox . t-')( 
Director 

Approved by: ~JJ: 1. ~v.,y­
. J1J:;:\ Meyers 

Commissioner 

, . 

TM Dtporttn.enl of Ht~Uh ond Hu"lO" S.rttictt' MUiitJtt i1 to join conamu1titi«1 ortd {omilt«t 
in. prouidi-"1 opportu.nilift for c.iliuviO tuh~uc Mol.lh ond inthptndtfl.Cf. 
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New Hampshire Oepartmtnl of Hetllh and Human Strvlees 
Petr Rtcovtl)' Support Strvlees FaeiUtallng Organ!Jallon (PRSS FO) 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services· 

Amendment #1 to the 
Peer Recovery Support Services 

Facf!itatlng Organfution (PRSS FO) 

This '1st Amendment to the Peer Recovery Support· Servi~s Facilitating Organization 
(PRSS FO) contract (hereinafter referred to as ·Amendment #1.) dated this 24"' day of 
April, 2017, Is by and be'-en the State of New Hampshire, Oepartmec:'t of Health and 
Human Services (hereinal'ter referred to as· the "State• or "Department") al')d Hatbor 
Homes, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractorj, a nonprofit company With a 
place of business at 45 High Street. Nashua, NH 03060'. · 

WHEREAS, pursuant ~o an ·agreement ·(the "Contract"). approved by .the Governor and 
Executive Council on June 1, 2016, Item #13, the Contractor agreed to perform certain 
seivi~ bas,ed upon the terms and conditions specified 'in the Contract as amended 

.and 111 considenition of cerl\lln SUI)1S specified; and · , . 

WI-\ER):AS, the State and the Contractor h~ve agreed to make changes lo the scope·of 
wori<, J>ayment schedules and terms and conditions of the contraCt; and · 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit 
C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Siate may modify the scope of 
woe\\ and payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties: · . . . 

WHEREAS the parties agree to extend the lerm of the agreement for two (2) ad!litional 
years, increase the Price Limitation and. modify the seope of services to support_ 
continued 6elivery 61 these services, and · 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mu!ual covenants and 
oon~s contained jn the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as 

.. ron~s: · · 

1. Amend Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, Account Number, to Include 
the following: · 
05-95-92-92051 0-33820000·1 02-500734, and 
05-95-92-920510-33840000-102-500734 

. . I . 
2. Amend Fonn P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: 

Jtlne 30, :c!019 

3. Amend Form P-37, General Prollisions, Block 1.8. to in<:rease Price Limitation 'f1Y 
$3,116,000 from $1,500,000, t9 read: · · . · . 
$4,616,000 • 

IWbor Homes, I~ Amendment t1 Cc>n.;a~ lii!Ualt: ' \V 
P~ge 1 ol 4 Oati: ·~ 11 . 

'. 

' 

l . ' 
' ! 
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4. Amend Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, to read: 
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of Contiacts and Procurement. 

5. Amend Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, to read: 
271-9246 . 

6. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in its enHrety and replaoe with Exhibit A, 
Amendment #1. 

7.' Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment1, Budget Form for SFY 2017. 

8. Add Exhibit B-3, Budget Form for the Budget Period FY 2018. 

9. Add Exhlbft 8-4, Bu.dget Form for the Budget Period FY 2019. 

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council 
approvat' 

Harbor Homes, Inc. Atnendmem 11 Contractot flll'llals: rsl 
Page 2 of4 Date: '1\ ~l.\\l1 . 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties have·set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Servioes 

0 ' 

~ - I - 1·7 
· Date Katla S. Fox 

Director, Division for Behavior Health 

f )L{-1? 
.Date NAME: 

TITLE: Q~ ~ ce:D 

Ac:l<nowledgement of Contractor's signature: . . . . . . . . 

· State of IJow ~f£ Coun!)' of Ui\\0bo ou~ h on ~\ OlY~1\ .-QniJ 
before the. unders\i Offloer, personally. appeared t person idntlfied abo~. or 
satisfactorily proven to be th·e· person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged 
that slhe executed this document in the capacity indicated above. · . . . 

~r:Jf£1£ .. . - . . 
lgnature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace 

tJ.Jf,~~ Cg,JJ.~, J..J;-,_£.& f&.ce. 
Name and Titie of N9tary or' Justice of the Peace 

WIL.UAM C. NART\N 
Juellce "'tile--New' Hlmpalllra 

My Commission .. Explres: My·c;ca"o....,~NMmbor4, ~020 

Harbor Homee. Inc. Alnerid.,;;nt I 1 

P~>;r.l el4 

ConlractDr lnlijal•:- \l! , 
Oato: ~\Q, ~~)1 

·' 
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Now HI~ hi,.. Depar1ment of Health and Hum en Sel\'lcri 
I'Hr itecovtfY Support Stl\'lcea Faeflltatlng 011Jin1Ution (PRSS fO) 

' . . . The preceding Amendment. having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, end execution. 

ORNEY GENERAL 

I hE!feby cer1ify that the foregoing Amendment was appr ed by the Govemor and ·Executive Council or the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _____ _ (date of meeting} 

Date 

H•lt>or Homes, Inc. 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Name: 
TiUe: 

Am8ndment 11 

Poge 4of4 

. ContraC!or lnftlals:~ 
Date:~ 
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&t(btt A Amendment lf1 

Scope of Servjces 

1. Provisions AppUcabla·to All Services 

' 2 .. 

,. 

1.1 . The· Contractor. will submit a detailed desGrtption of the language. assistance 
services they· wiU provide to pel'$0ns with (unlted English pro~tdency to ensUJe 
meaningful access to their programs an<1/or se1111ces within t~ (10) days of the• 
contract effective date. 

1.2: 

1.3. 

The Contractor agrees thai, to the exte!'t fulunl leg~lallw action t11 the New 
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an lmpad on 
the Serkes dewlbed hentin, ·the State Agency has the right to modify SeMc:e 
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve 
c~tiance therewith. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contr,act to the contrary, no services 
shall continue after June 30, ~OH, and t~ Department shall not be liable for any 
payments ·for 5eJVices provided aller June 30, 2017, unless and .until · an 
appropriation for these ~rvlces has been receil(ed from the.state leglslatUAl end 
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 bienf\la. . . 

1.4. For the ·purposes. of this contract, any reference to days shall mean consecutive 
calendar days, unless otl)erwlse denoted 'as business days. . 

1.5. For the purposes of thiS contract, any reference' to bUsinesS days shall mean 
Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holidays. 

1.6. "(he selected Vendor must conduct an assessment o( Reco.iery Community 
Organil:ations ·(RCOs) ki determine ' the le\<eJ of. readiness · for each RCO to 
~me acaediled aa:ordlng 'to the standards set forth by the Council on 
Acaed'rtatlon of P.~ Recovery Support Se!Vice$ (CAf'RSS). 

1.7. The ~lected Vendor ~st collaborate with the Council on Acaed~tlon· of Peer 
Recovery Support SeMces (CAPRSS) to ptovlde each RCO w~h assistance to 
meet acaed~allon standards set forth by the CAPRSS. . · · · 

1.8. The selected VendOr must collaborate wnh · other PRSS technical assistance 
assets to a5sess the -capacity of each RCO relative to the core and optional 
standards deflrled by the Council. of ·Acaed~atiotl of Peer Recovery Support 

. Services (CAPRSS) .. 

1.9. ·The selected Vendor must wor~ ·wrt~~ the Department ar)d RCOs to determine 
culluraBy approprl!'te process and out~me data coUectio~ and analysis. 

· 1.10. The selected vendor must provide program management and oversight as·weu as 
Implement a qua.lity impr:ovement PI'OC4!SS. • • 

Scope of Services . 
·2.1. . The Contrllda. shall complete an accrvditation readiness scan of all known 

Recovel)' Communi!y Orvantz.allons {RCOs}. statewide. The Cont111Clor ~1111: 
2.1.1 . Determine each RCO's ability to achleve Council of Aw'edltatlon of 

Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) accredn8lion. 

Determine each RCO's ability to open a Recovery Center. 

~ A......,;,sll\01t . , Coni~Wilob~ 
Pogo10TR · ' Dolo~ 
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2.1.3. Determine eacl\ RCO's capacity to pro~~ide Peer Recovety SuppOII 
SeM:es. 

2.1.4. Determine eacll RCO's convnilment to b~ming a .Medicald provider, 
upon approval from the Cenler for Medicaid and Medicare SeMc:es 
(CMS) Of 11\e establishmenl of a 'Recovery Community Organization' 
.Provider type under 11\e New Hampshire Medicaid program. 

2.1.5. Provide a wrftten determlnauon of RCO readiness to t/le Department 
within 5 business days of coni'pleling the final RCO readiness scan. 

0 
• 

2.2 . The Conlractor shall enter into contract with a minimum of seven (7) Recovery 
C<?mmunity OrganlzaUons (RCOs) by June 30, 2017 and a minimum of ten (10):. 
RCO's by June 30, 2019, in at least fi~~e (5) different Public HeaMh Regions (See 
Appencfoi 0 - ·Regional Public Health Net_works), as approved by the · 
Department in order to Increase capacity for Peer Recovery Support Services 
(PRSS) within eacl\ of the selected ten (1 0) Recovery Community Orgaollations. 
The Cont~tor shall: · · · 

2.2 .1. · Er\sure thai priority Is given to Public Health Regions that do not heve 
an RCO (See Appendix 0- Regional Public Health Network). 

2.2.2. Provide a copy of each executed RCO contract to the Department 
within fNe '(5) days of contract execution. 

2.3. The Contractor shall ooDaborate wflh P~r Recovery Suppprt •Services {PRSS) 
tecl\ntcal assistance assets, .Including. but not tinilted to, CA~SS. to assess 
each RCO for accreditation readiness in accordance wMh the standards set fOtlh 
by the CoullCil of Accreditation of Peer Recovery Suilport Service$ (CAPRSS). 
The Contractor stlalt . 

2.3.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCO that Indicates the RCO's 
capacll)t to.provide PRSS services and current operational standards . 

. 2.3.2. Develop a wrtnen .Pian with. each RCO that Includes, IJ!rt Is not lim~ed 
to: 

2.3.2.1. Timeframes to meeting CAPRSS aoored~atlon standards. 

2.3.2.2. Goats that rmm be attained by eacl\ RCO In order to meet 
CAPRSS accreditation standards. 

2.3.2.3. Tectmlc:al <1$siltanoe needed for each RCO In order to meet 
CAPRSS gopls, time· frame and tecl\nlcal assis1anoe 
acaedaation requirements. · 

2.3.3. Ensure training and teo(lnlcai ·assistance idenlif!Bd In Section 2.3.2.3 is 
provided to eacl\ RCO, as needed. 

2.4. Ttle Contractor ·shaU. collaborate with the Council on Accreditation of . Peer 
Recovery SuPPort Services (CAPRSS) to provide asslst~oe to each RCO 10 
ensure each of ttle . rtve (5) RCOs meet acaedltation standards set forttl by 
. CAPRSS. The Contrad.or shall ensu~ asslslanoe includes, bcJ11s notlim~ed to: 
2.4.1. Pef'&Or!nel with the expertise necessary to deliver high quality training. 

Co-<1~~ · 
-.~7 
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2.4.2. Technical assistance, as needed. 
2:4.3. OrganizaUonaJ coaching. · 
2.4.4. CapacitY development consuKation. 
2.4.5. Admlnlstratlve.suppon function's, as needed. . . 

2.5. The Cqntrsctor shall collaborate with the Center for Excellence tO develqi,Bnd 
provide training 8S we• as tecllnical ~!stance to RCOs In o!der to: · 
2.5. 1. Assist RCOs to anaJn accred•ation. 

I . . 2.5.2. Provide technical asslslanoe to RCOs to enroU In Ml!!llcald upon the 
:establishment of a 'Peer Recovery Program' prollider type by the Neyl 
H<!mpshlre Medicaid Program based on Fecleral Center for Med'IGIIid 
and ~!care Servl<;es (CMS) and other Federal and State 
requ~ements, Which include: 

2.5.2. 1. 42 CFR,' S\Jbpart 8 ( hno:ttwww,ecft,qoytcgl­
. blnlretlleyeECfB?ao-&s!D=2a147022bd!le989Ref!!)2!Qba4 
01830&mc=trye&n=pt12.'!,455&f'PART&"eKIMLis1>42.1, 
455.b ). . 

2.5,2.3: 45 CFR. 164.512(d) ( hUo:liwww.eclr.aovlrof=blnl!ext­
ldx?SIP.:07doasozil28ee03h2b09dfd7a2be33d2&m2'true&' 
noc!e=se45.1.164 JS12&1!!n=cf!Y8 ) .. 

2.5.3. EJ\su(e personnel providing Peer Recovery Support services (PRSS) in 
RCOs ar~ Certlfll!d Recovery SUpport Workera (CRSW) and meet the 
CAPRSS recovery exlaching standards .. 

2.5.1. Assist RCOs to e,..P.nd capadty to include Peer Reccillery Coaching 
· and Telephotie Recovery SUpport Services. 

2.5.5. Assist RCOs with exPanding capacity to Include bac.k office sup~ 
functions. · 

2.5.6: Assist RCOs In eslablishil)g and a plan 10 austaltl Recovery Centes. 
2.6. The Conllactor &hall utilize logil>iical support provided by the Center lor 

ExcenenC:e to facilhate a Community of Practice that allows RCO administrators 
and leaders lo .establish and strengthen collegiality, cOoperation, collabOration aild Informal mentoring among RCOs. The ContractOf &halt 

--...... 

2.6.1. Organize regular Oll-OOing RCO regional meetll1gs v.ith R~O 
administrators and leaders. 

2.6.2. . Ensure meetings are widely advertised to an RCOs, statewide .. 
2.6.3. Ensure that each subcootracted ROO engages in its loCal Regional 

Public H,atth Networt. (RPHN) to participate tn continuum of care 
develOpment WOI1c. 

ExhliJ A ,Amendmera 1 1 

Pogo).,.. . 
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. 2.7. The Contractor shall assess the abiijty of ea~h RCO to open and sustain a 
RecoVery Center. The Contractor shan: · · 

2.7.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCO that indicates each RCO's 
readiness to open and sustain a Reoovery.Center, that Includes, bulls 
notllmHed to: 

2.7.1.1. The current organizational strUcture of the RCO's Recove~y 
Center or the RCO's readineSs to open a Recowry Center. 
as appropriate. · · 

2.7.1.2. The numb~ of ~ople that can be served by the· RCO's 
Recovery Center. · 

2. 7.1 .3. The RCOs frnancial viability to suppOrt a Recovery Center. 

2. 7.2.. · Wort< with each RCO to develop a wrillen plan to apen a Recove~y 
Center. · · 

· 2. 7 .3. Ensure· training and technical assistance Is available to ReC9Very 
Center staff, which may lnclljde bulls not limited to: . . 
2.7.3.1. Customer service training. 

2 .. 7 .3.2. Peer Recovery coaching Services. 

2.7.3.3. Telephone Recovery Support Service's. , 
2.7 .4. Assist RCOs .to secure funding from other public and .private: sources to 

ens_ure ongoing sustainabillty of services. 

2.8. Tile Co<\tractor shal) assist RCOs with performing -back office functions thet may 
include, but are not limned to: 

2.8.1. ' Human resource functions. 

2.8.2. Financial functions such as accounting, bookl<eeplng and payroll 

. 2.8.3. BlUing functions. 

2.9. The Contractor s!la.u·ensure billing services are available to each RCO until such 
time RCOs can perform bitting functions on their own. Billing functions shan· 
Include, but are ncitllm!ted to: 

2.9.1. 

2.9.2. 

. . 
Accepting RCO invoices for PRSS services provided to ci enls. 

. • ! 

Submitting invoices to the Department for client services thst are 
provided _by the RCO and covered by funds in this grant for 
reimbursement. 

2.9.3. , Submilling· PRSS client services covered by Medicaid to the appropriate 
·managed care.oiganization (MCO). 

2.9.4. 

2.9.5 . . 

2.9.6. 

.Disbursing payments received from MCOs to the apjlroprlate RCO. 

Accepting RCO Invoices for opecatlonal costs . . i 

Paying RCOs for opl!fational cosis on ·a cosi reiJn!lursemenl basis. 

. EJcM»>t A Nft..,dmt:nl •1 

Pqe-4ot9 

. . 

I 
I 
! . . I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 



.. . . v:.~~ ···.. ' 

-. 

_ New Hampehlre Department of Hulth and Human S.rvlcH ' 
P.RSS flcllltatlng Orvanizallon Services . 

Exl\lb!t A Amendment It 

2.9.7. Submitting RCO operational post Invoices 'to the Department for 
reimbursement. 

2.1 0. T(le Contractor shaU collaboral!' with the NH C!i!riter for Excellence to: 
2.10.1. Identify data evaluation crHeria. 

2.16.2: Implement at1 evaluation p<oce~ In each RCO. 
2.11. The Contract()( sllaU 'ensUil! tec:Mlcal assistance Is available to ea~ RCO In 

order to colloct, analyze and uUtize data, for tha evalUation process In Section 
2.10.'2., whlch.sllaU includ~ ·bulls not limited to: . · 

.. 

2. 1'1.1. Demographics, which In dude but are not limited to: 
. - 2.11.1.1. Gender 

2.11.1.2. Age 

2.11.1.3. Elhnicily 

2. 11.2. Primary drug of choice 

2.11 .3. · SAMHSA Natio<iat Outcome Measures 
(h!to·tllwiWdasls.sambsa.gov/das!s21nomsl!loms e!tcb 1. 000, wllich 

· include: · . 

2. 11.3. 1. Abstinence 

2.11 .3.2. Crime and Criminal Justice 

2.·11.3.3. Employm~I/Educetion · 

2.11 .3.4.' SlabUity In Housing 

2.11 .3.5. ·Social Connectedness 

· . 2.11.4. Rer~rrar Soyree 

2.11 .5. Client Flnanc;lallnformaOOn 

2.11.6. HeaMeare Coverage lnbrmation 
2.11.7. Substance Use Disorder treatment history 

2.11 .8. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occurnng Disorde.r recovery needs 
2.11 .9. Participation In Community Services . 
2. 11.10. Recovery capital 

2. 12. Tile Contractor wiU wol1l with the Department to identify tile next coh9rt of RCOs 
to prepa~e t~ f()( CAPRSS accreditation. · 

3. Reporting RequirementS 
3.1. ·The Contractor shall provide a worit plan for each state frscal year by July 1• 'of 

that year. This work plan shall be subject to review and approval by the Bureau. · 
3.2. Repott Oil readlneu for au considered Reo. thai Includes bUlls nollimiled to: 

3.2.1. Progress on the annul!l work plan . 

- ' 
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3.2.2. Accreditation readiness. 

3.-2.3. · RIK:Overy center cap.aclty 

3.2.4. Capacity to prov!der pRSS · 

3.2.5. Convnltment to eniolllr>gln Medicaid, upon approval from the Center for 
Medicaid and Medicare Servlces (CMS) of the establishment of a · 
'Recovery Community Organization' provider type under the New 
Hampshire MedicaiCI program. 

3.3. The Contractor shall pr<Mde qu811erty repoltS that include but are not limited to: 
3.3.1. 

~.3.2. 

3.3.3. 

3.3.4. 

3.3.5. 

Progress on the eMual work plan. 

Progress on each RCO's wOO< plan compOnents. . . 
-. Information on RCO tralnlr>gs conducted, Including but not limned to, 

type of training provided and number of attendees. . • 

Information regarding RCO meetb)gs that occurred, as'des~bed In 
Section ·2.6,1nduding but not limited to. venue. number of atten~ees 
and methods used to advertise meetings. 

· Back offiCe support provided, as desetjbed in Section 2.8. 

3.4. The Contractor .shall submh a final report to the Department that Includes, but Is 
not limit~ to: · 

3.4.1. Information on·each of the fNe (5) RCOs Including the number of · 
ind'IVidU!IIs seJVed during the three (3) months prior to subcontrading 
with the ContlliCtor In oompertson to the number of Individuals RIVed 
by the RCO from Aprf11•.eo June 30"' of each subsequent year. . . 

3.42. Hoi¥ many anjl what type of trainings ~e provided over the term of the 
conlrec.t. · · 

3.4.3. The number of RCOslhat we aca-edaed by the CAPRSS. 

3.4.4. The number and ~Dc:atlon of each Recovery Center that opened. as a 
. resuh of contracled services. · 

3.4.5. The type or PRSS services delivered by each RCO. 

3.4.6. Information regarding clients served. which shall Include but not be 
limited to: · 

3.4.6.1. Analysis of cllen1 d_ata referenced In 2.11 by iridlviduel RCO. 

3.4.6.2. Anatysls·of aggregated client data 

3.4. 7. Back Oflice functions ~rformell for each RCOs. Whlcll .m~~y lndude but 
Is nallimited to: 

3.4. 7.1. Human Resources. 

3.4.7.2. Flnanc::lal. 

3.4:7.3. Client biting to othef fundilg sources not in this contract. 

Conlnctotlli~~ 
0110~1 

·. 
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3.4.8. All 'contradet work that has started lll)d any progress tow~rd CAPRSS 
IK:(fedilation for the next oohOit of RCOs identified to the Department . . . . 

Deliverables 
4.1. The Contractor shall provide copies of the executed contracts described in Section 2.2, 

to the Department within five (5) business days of fully executing lhe documents. 
4.1.1. 

4.1.2. 

Each ~u!Kontract and renewal IS' subject to BOAS re~lew and'approval. 
Eacl) Sub-conltact·shaU Include requirements for billing BOAS tor client 
recovety support sel\llces which shall Include: 
4.1.2.1. · Client unique identifier as defined by BOAS. 

4.1.22. ·. Only those clients with incomes below 400% of the Federal 
. Poverty Lew!, who are n01 eligible for payinent for these 
~through another &OUn:e, e.g. pubfiC or private 
insurance, are eligible for payment 

4.1.2.3. AQencl~ may bill for Recovety Coaching, according to the · 

\ 
New Hampshire Medicaid rates for Peer Reco~~t~ry SuP.Port. 
l(ldividual ~ P.eer Recovery Support Group. · 

4.1.2.4. • Agencies (!lay bnl for Telephone Recovety Support, SerVices 
according to 1t1e New Hampshire Medicaid rat~ for Care 
Management (Continuous Reeovery Mori~orlng - CRM). . ' ' 

4.2. The Contractor shaH complete an assessment, as desCribed in Section 2.3.1, for each 
ol the RCOs - for a minimum of 11ve (5) assessments, within nine1y (90) days or the 
.contraCt e1leelill'8 dale. 

4.3. The Con.tractor shan provide a·copy 'of each accreditation plan :described In Sec:tlon 
2.3.2 .. within one h4ndred-twenty (120) days of the contract effective date. · 

4.4. )l1e Ccmtractor shell provide a written Recovery Center assessment, as de~Ctlbed ih · 
• Section 2.7, for each RCO, within one hundred-eighty (180) days of the contract · 

effective date. • • 

4.5 .. T~ Contractor shaU pr~ide dle bilflllg process and payment tit)1e~mes for providing 
the sel\lk:es In Sedlon 2.8, within one hundred..fwenty (120) days of the contract 
efJedlve date. · '. . • 

~- Mllestone~.and ~etlvities 

Maler. .Peraon Responsible Date o f Potential Plan to 
Milestones Completion, Barriers to · .Overcome 

and~vltlea ln daya 8fter Achievement Barriers to 
contract Achievement 

. effective dat~ 

Milestone 1 : Project Oir&Qor 60Days No major Peter. Kelleher 
Reportaithe barriers (President 
degree of anticipated, as and CEO)wil 

·' Pogo 7oU 
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readiness of .. , . 
eacii"RCO In · . · .... .-::.<·: 
the State of 
.NH(See 
Section 2.1). 0 

. 

Milesfll09.2: Project Director and 90 Days 
Initial CCAR In collaboration 
as5e$8t!letlld with CAPRSS 
eedl ·. 
subcOntracted 
RCO · . 

Milestone 3: Project Directqr ahd 120 Days 
Developing a CCAR ln c:Oilaborallon 
written plan with CAP.RSS 
for 
accreditation 

. 

. 

Milestone 4: CCAR. Harbor Homes, ~hln90days 
ProWfrng We!COtning Light; NH bUt upon 
training and Center for Excelm:e SubCOntract 
technic:al and CAPRSS. TA Ellectlve Date 
aSsistanct> to provided by CAPRSS will (and during 
RCOs be at no cost to Harbor the 

Homes or the RCOs. subclOntractlng 
process, as 
needed) 
throughout the 
funding period. 

--.Inc. 

. . 

~,is primarl~ a ove111ee this 
:Self-managecf • rrsl step or 
FOtask. One the project, 
potential barrier worldng 
is If the person closely with 
selected to fill CCAR. 
the Project • 
Director role is 
not able to start 
on time. 

Readiness/ability COiltradbr 
of RCO to enter allan provide 
into a ' TA to facllitste 
5ubconlract the conltacl 
agreement. negotiations. 

' If any of the There Is Ukely 
above to be a 
.milestones take mlnbnumset 
longer than of plan 
anticipated, this components 
mlestone may awlicabJe to 
occur. at a f!lter an RCOs that 
dale. can begin to 

occur as_a 
colleC(ive, 
p~lor to fomlal 
completion of 
the lndillidual 
plans. 

The Contractor The 
shaD begin Conlnlctor 
providing shall ulitize 
Tivtraintng from web-based 
the beginning of and ir~-person 
ihe procurement IndiVIdual and 
process. SpectRe group 
tralning!T A trainings to 
requirei:l fCK ensure 
acaedilallon -slbliity 
may be delay~ lsauea a.e -
If any of the eliminated. 
above On.sle (Within 

c-.-...... .,~ 
Dole~1 
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. rriilestones are the RCO) 
delayed. lllliningsiTA 
AddiliollaUy, wll also be 
there may be provided. 
accessibility 
tssuu that . . 
prevent some of 
the RCOs from· 
attending 
trainings. 

MMestone5: Projed Oiredonnd Wdtlin 180 
Initial CCAR days, and 
11$Sessment ongoing 
forRea~~~erv thereafter in 
Cen~ accordance 
readiness with Individual 

plans 
Milestone 6: Project. W4hin 120 NH's None - tills is l)alning Coofdillator/Admlnistr3tor .Days and implementation a barrier-RCOs billing and HHI Bad<end Staff ongoing plan of rfl!ated have no. functions thereafter MecfiC3id benefit c:ontrol CHef. 

However, we 
wtu vio~wlth 
BiState 

. . 
·. Ptftnal)' Cere . Association to 

Jl(ovide public 
pollcywoltl 
related to thi&. 

Milestone 7: Project Director, NH Wrthin 60 None None 
ln1118J Meeting 

Center for Excellence Days (prior to 
the ofRCO . 

· procurement ' Community of 
process) Practloe 
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jcansvltallt 
~ctS""pllo. 
,,.....~ ... 
0cx:ul)lnqt Con . ,.,.,... , ....... 
~"'>·-

r .... tl 

~ateetM/A~rerm,nt •co,. ,.,. ,.....,,. .• 
TOTAL U'UIKS 

&tAil ... 1 ~I\ a..d,&ft M:t.""\tltt 

"""""-·""-.... 1.011 

Budlfl 11-l.l.INndm<nt •1 
Sud,..iomllv< 

•u.soo Co..w~ ..,..strJtou funds 
l ,Dal ,SOO atO Opotf M'ct4\J\ funcb~OitlU t.eMces rtimbv/'Stftttlt 
1,500.000 

Ortcn.et and liteM~ all tnlni~l' to subcort"tf1'telt.t~ dcvtf<lp 1ftd eslfbMsh ' "b). 
c.ompltt• arJ ptOjtct dtvtlopm•nt 1nd monltotln, of t il t.ub,ontntots. Aa • s • 
tenapctaty CLO to ill s.ubs , ,.d usls.t 01"1 dt¥ifopl.n.a bc•rd of dtrteton Md 

~ otJ"&tlbi UOftl l s.tn.ct"'•· 

. : ··~ . 

To pto...tGr u shdna !O tonuaaotl on cSt't't4o.P'na rtqu'lttd polk'1t1al'd procedwre~. 
60.000 a-pplyi~ fo't ll"'tdlc~.sutus : 

140,000 

HO,OOO 

llltornal '>d< .. flltt ,_, UKio os AIR, M, lo-P'n~o KJ.IT. Flnontc ud ..., 
octaer •ccowtrt~nc aatwitfts ttattd to Ws PI"OCtafl\ •• well as ~· KtMUes 
ptrtatNna to the •cbnl~th1raUOft ot t,hts C.OMrl~ 1nd lhls ''""'· lndudlneall blck 
otra OPef'MiOI"'.II ct:lst to (0!'\Ciudt tMJ,e I C'\M11a. .. 

' 

.!1,000 20tl o f M'NY & \'n~S • •"cy tuMh\1 fill. 
Consuhan1~1•1/ ~credllatlon opeo,ns to dtvefop and a.ulst aaency to ~ett 

S.900 s~ntr acton JJif'lttet m. ·' · · 
3.000 S!OO/mlll lot olfttt >UOOI<• .,.,.._, cpon~• 
).lOCI M 1\ilttfll o($1.100 • ,-.•rlotloulttrt'll cort 
~ To CO'IIff the co•t of space b•std on the •lloution so sqv"' footap .. 
he $80/n!th lor ttltQhoM IIIPt:r\JAJ 
240 SlQ/nOh .,. ..., .,,... ..... 

C.lOO Sl1l5(trJhO>-WC~ _..,""'!~P<Ii~• .. 

lS,OOO 

l o cover tr~a.blc ~ t.ectlnlc~f u•.tsun<t IS s:Mw 1nd ' " to fund acWcltloltll 
COt'ffriCion lof 111iirt wl.h p iAl/ft.wlnldC¥tlopmV1t t.nd u,.dt., b~ 
lncludlr>t Nd\tJcn• l ~ funnlono, lito dMioplna policy""" p<O<tclur<~ ,,.,..,.,... 
l btnc:frt cuUavre for tnlnll\f C!1f'll{llon to support th.e neussary trwlnllttto all 
Jllbconotte<ton. ' 

. . 
To.ftlnd ""bcotltrtcton to proVfde all direct ure str"A(tJ/Optratione! c~ 

J.,.Oe7,SOO indudlnc flindt to P'~t ct~dt uknbt.IM~ Kt!YitJes doen 1rt coMIIcton. 

uoo.ooo 

.... 



Exhibit 8-4 Amendment #1 Budget 

I~~ for. PJ!II Ftc!t\!2"1 Orul\tu!o!'l 

.•. 



,,. ..... 
J ·' 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVlCES. 

DMSION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

ll9 PUASA.,,. S111ECT, CO~ORD,NII OlJfl 
. 60).111·,.21 I .. Go.Hl·J:WS £J.L JUl 
hs.! 61J..n'~' Too Atuu: r.-..,ls.u~ · """""..db.b.t.d.c"' 

May 5, 2016 

' Her' Excellency, Govemor Margaret Wood Hassan 
and the Honorable Executive Cooncil 

State House • 
Concoro, New Hampshire 03301 

G&C Approved 

Date._~~/;~' 6.:_/G __ 
ltl3m #._· -.:-JJt.::o3L-,...--. __ 

REQUESTED ACTION 

AuthoriZe the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Servlces 
to enter Into an agreement' with Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358·8001), 45 High Street,.Nashua 
NH, 03060, in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000, to facilitate the development and networ1dng of 
Peer RecoVery Support Services available ttvough Recovery Community Organizations in a minimum 
of five (5) Regional Public Health Regions in order. to significantly reduce alcohol and drug misuse and 
~s social. behal(ioral 'nd health consequences statevrlde, effective the· date of Govern<lf and ExecuUve 
apptoval tlirough June 30 •. 2017. 13 •14, General Funds, 40% Federal Funds, 47o/o Other Funds 

Funds to support this request are available In the fo~owlng aCCQ4Jnts. in State F,iscsl Year 2016 
and State Fiscal Year 2017, with tpe ability to adjust .encumbrencies between State Asca1· Years 
1/Yough the Budget Office If needed and justified ,without further approval by the Governor and 
EXecu\iVe CQUncil. . 

05-9S-491510-29B9.HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC; BUREAU OF DRUG 7 ALCOHOL, SVCS, GOVERNOR 
COMMISSION FUNDS 

SFY Clus/Oblect .Title Activit\' Code Amount 
2016 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svc 49158501 '$2820 
2017 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svc 49158501 $697180 

Contract Subrotll: $700 000 

05-95-491610-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVlCES,.HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, 
HHS: OIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG 7 ALCOHOL, SVCS, CLINICAL 
SERVICES . 



• Htr Excolltncy, o...., Malllatti1M>od llnnn 
....S 1M~ El<eout!YeCovncil 

Pott Z ol3 

EXPLANATION 

The purpose of thi.s request is to Initiate the creation of a statewide, geographically diverse P~r . 
Recovery Support. Services network by supporting the development of Recovery Community 
Organizations in at least five (5) .of the thirteen (13) Public Health Regions: Peer Recovery Support 

Services are part of the Department's· .overall strategy', to ~espond to .. substance .n:~lsuse issues that • · 
negatively impact New Hampshire citizens, families !'nd communities. The need ·to respond to 
substance misuse issues Is heightened by the oploid epidemic, Which caused 325 oplold deaths in 
2014 and is trending for a signiftcant increase in thai number for 2015. · 

The vendor will conduct an assessment of Recovery Community Organizations to determine the 
level of readiness tor each of them to become accredited according to the standards set forth by the 
Council on Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services and to proVide peer recovery support 
services. The vendor wiU enter into amtracts with a minimum of ftve (5) Recovery Community . 

Organizations In different Public Health Regions, In order to: 

• Increase cap<!city tor Peer Recovery Support Services within each of the selected 
Organizations. 

• Assist t~ Recoveiy Commun~y Organizations to become accredited according to the 
standards set forth by the CouncU on Accredttatlon of Peer Recovery Support Services. 

• Ensure personnel providing Peer Recovery SuJ)'poi1 Services In Recovery Co111munlty 
Organizations are Certified Recovery Support Workers and meet the recovery coaching 
standards set by the Council on.Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support SerVices. 

The vendor will provide Recovery Commun~y Organizations with technical assistance to enroll 

in Medicaid as well as provide back offtce support functions. The· vendor wilt also assist RCOs with 
establishing a plan to sustain Recov.ery Centers. 

This contract was competitively bid. Ory February s. 2016 the Departmel)t issued a Request for 

Applications from . non-profif organizations to facilbte the · development and. netwoOOng of Peer 
Recovery Support Services. The request was available on the Department's websHe from February 5, 

2016 through March 4,_. 2016. Three applications were received and evalua!ed by a team of 
Department employees with extensive knowledge of the program requirements as wen as significant 
.business and management expertise. Harbor Homes, Inc. was selected as the vendor to prOYide 
services. The bid summary Is attached. • 

The attached contract includes renewallangi,Jage for up to four additional years, based upon the 
satisfactory defivery of services, continued availability of supporting funds, and Governor and Executive 
Council approval. · 

It is the intention of the Department and the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug 
Abuse Prevention, Treatment and Recovery (Governor's Commission) to ensure financial,' operational, 
and. technical assistance and training that Will support Recovery Community Organizations In each of 
the thirteen (13) Reg.ional Public Health Networks in the·state. There are not adeQuate funds available 
at this time to meet the Department's and Governor's Commission's full intentiOn to ensure the 
financial, operations and technical support and training te> supPort the Recovery Convnunity 
Organizations. Therefore, the vendor, through this contract. will contribute to the Initial costs for 
developing and deliVering Peer Recovery Support Services thcough ·subconltllcts with Recovery 
Comrn.onity OrganW!tions. 

Recovery Community Organizations will be expected to leverage additional public and private 
resources against the resources offe~ through the resulting contract, thereby increasing and 
sustaining the Peer Recovery Suppo'rt Services beyond those funded through the State's contribution. 



• Htr E:rcel ~~c). Govimor M1rg11et Wood Hauan 
ar\411\e Hooor.oblo Exe ... tive'Councll' • 

~3of3 

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not approve !hi$ request. !he Department's overaU 

stiafegy to respond to substance misuse issues will be negatively if!!pacted. · · 

Area Served: Statev.ide. · 

·· ~ource of Funds: 40% Federal F~s from Un~ed States. ~partment of t:tealth and Human 

Se111ice&, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Se111ices Administration, CFDA #93.959 FAIN 

TI0100,3S-15 and 47')'9 Other Funds from the Governo(s·Cornmisslon on Alcohol and Drug Abuse 

t>revention, lnt8111enlion'aild Treatment and 13% General Funds.. · 

In the e~~ent that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be 

requested to support this program. ' 

r 

Respectfully subrl)itted, 

~~2~ 
Kaija s. Fox 
Director 

""'"'"' .,.~111 •. 1J.Ju.... Jt;;A1~v:( ') 
· Commissioner 

Thf D.putmtntol Hc.Jth •11d Hum• n Sltvica' Mn3ionll 14;,ia tf1111mun.ithl • ad tlttJ.ilii.J 

ib providiAtOPpQrttJru'titl hrdtianl CD l cbW•• M.1/t.Ja tnd lnd#J»ndlnc.t 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and H.uman Services 

Office of Business Operations 

Contracts & Procurement Unit 

Peer RKC?Very S.upport Services 
(PRSS) 

Facilitating Oll!anlntlon 

RfAName 

Bidder Name 

1. 
Fe~p Reh.ab!lltotivo Services, In~. 

·2· Harbor Home~. Inc. 

' New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse 
3. Counselors Association 

-4. 0 I 

5. ~0 _ ____:..;,...___:___ ___ _ 

Summary Scoring Sheet 

ot6-0HHS-BOAS-GCF-RFA~2 

RFANumber. 

MaXImum Actual 
P05s/Fall Points Points 

600 3,2 

600 538 

soo 305 

600 0 

600 0 
-1-- -

•.· 

~-.•. 
• I 

Revlewer Names 

1· Utody Ke~. Adminlllralor I 

2· u. ... ~n OuMn. Program Speeall$1 rV 

3. 
ThOmas Grintey, Progrom Planner I 

4 · Peter Reid, Admlnlslralot Ill 

5. 

6. 

· 7. 

• 

• 
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Subject: riss FtQHtatjpg OtpgiptiM Smicea 

FORM NUMBER P-37 (mlloll 5/lllS) 

l::l2lS;. This ogrecmal apa all of its auachmeats C&U bccollll: public IJPOO Nbmiuion to Oovcmor aod 
Eaccutive CoWlCil fDr approval. Arly infonliaijoo 11>111 is private, coo.fid..,tial or propri<lary mwt 
be oleuly ickotilied to lbc •&eocy aad agJced to ia wrilin8 prior to si&nioa lbc coatncL . . 

. AGREEMEI\"T 
The State ofNcw Hampshire ILid tho Cootn.c:toz boreby aiUtuanyap-ec as follows: 

l . IDENTIJ'ICA TION. 
1.1 Slate ....... y IIIli: 
~of Health A Hum"" So:Mcu 

1.3 (A)acra«or Name 
IWlJor Homea, Lot. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.2 Slate Aacney Ad4ress 
129 Plcuao.t S~ct 
Coacor4, NH 03301 

1.4 Cantn.ctor A64ress 
4S Rip SU'C<I 
Nllll111, NH 03060 

..... :,...... 
1-' CaOIZI<t« Pboae 

NuD;Iber 
1.6 Ac<ow>t Number 1.7 ~mptclioa Date 

JliaeJO, 2017 

1.8 Pricol..lmltat!oa. 

(603) IU -3416 OS-o9S-49 l S I 0· 191!9000()..102-
49158501 

· OS~9S-491 SI0-29900000-1 02· 
491S6S01 

1.9 Caotn.ctiot Officer for Stat< A&ctl<y 
Eric D. Botrio 

1.1 3.2 . 

$1 ,500,000 

1.10 State AJcaey Tclcpbooe Numbc:< 
(603) 271-9SS8 

1.14 Stilt AaO!lCY J.IS Name aod Title o c Aaency Slptory 

J ~ '9:. 'PY O.to: ~ / .. ·I(# . · · 0 ;/' A"o-f'l>"'' N \-\ U ~ <f;j S: • 
1.16 Approval by the NJ{:0epl1mcot of ~Jtntioo. Divilion of PersciUH!I (If ~~ppliCtlblt) 

By: Director, On: 

~ -

B . Oo: 

Paae l ofS 



l. t.MPLO~ OF CO~CTORISERVTCESTO 
BE PWQAAfED. The Stole ofl'lcw Jlamp.lhn, actina ' 
llltoup !hcescooy ide.Uficd lD block 1.1 (''Sc.te"), ••a•an 
con!rtctot i~lilied io block 1,3 (''Contractor'') to pcrCor111, 
and lhe CootraciAX shall perConx>, the wod< or sale of sood$, or 
both, ldc:o11Ged and"""' panicu1arly ducn"bed in the atlacbed 
EXHIBIT A wbicil is ir.corponled herein by tefUCD<c 

("s.Mces"). 

3. EFFEC'TJV'E DA TEICOMPLtnON OF SI.RVTCES. 
3.1 Notwithltandina any provioloa.ofthis AsrccmeOIID tile 
oootrvy, ond oubjcctto lhc approvol of the Governor aad 
Eltoaltivc Co\lOCil oflht Stole of New Hampshire:, if · 
I!>Plicable, this Actccllle2rt. ud all oblipdoas of the parties 
bmf.md<r, Jb&JI become effective OCI Ih< dote llu Go...,_ 

1311 b<cllli..: Coomcil o:pprovc lhb A!r.ecmcnt u iodiu~ iD 
blodc 1.11, uolcss oo such approval is rQjuired. iD wbicb case 
lht ApmeDI mall become e!Tccdve OQ the dltelbe 
AgccmcDI is sip>ed by tbe State Ap,ttJJ:Y u sbowolo block 
1.14 ("Etrcclive D.ie") . 
3.2 If the Coob'Oelor c»a~D~eocos the Services .prior to tbc 
Etrcc!M Dote, all Scmcu performed by lhe Contractor prior 
to lhc ~., Dok shall be .pctfotmed at tbc sole risk of the 

Cootnclor, 1311 iD lhe tvut that this AsrecmCilt doca aot 
became cffoctiV<, the Sc.te.oboll have ao liobility to the 
Cootnctor, illcludillg without lilllitltioG, any Obllptioo to poy 
lht Ccillii'ICIOt fOf IDY cosu iDcurred or Servioq perfotmed. 
Cootrador ""'st camplote aU Services by tbt Complteioa Date 
s;><ciliod ill ~Del< 1.7. 

(. CONDmONALNATURE OF AGREEMENT. 

NotwithstiDdi.a& &DY provlsioa of this Agtectneat' to the 
ccn~rVy, all oblisalioaa oftbe Slate bcmmdcr,-iocludil>s. 
without limilatioa,lhe caat!nu&oec ofpaymeats ben:uadcr, a.rc 
cootiar<DI upoa the availability and continued appropriadoo 
olfililds. aad ill no e-. shall llteStolo be liable for IDY 
l'")'llltlita btrellllda ill ac:tS& of ouch •VI>'IIblc "''P"'J'JIaled 
tuo4L lo tile <VtOI ofa reductlaa ,..lmllimtioa of 
approprialed ~the Slate shall have the ricbt to withhold' 
paymeatWIIil such IIJads beeome available, if eva, tad shall · 
have the ript ID tennitlale lhls AJreemcatimmedi>tely upoa 
Ji.ma lite CoDlnctor aotice ohucb lmnill>lioo. The Stato 
Jllollo« be~ ltl~naskr Mldo ln>m 1Df otbcr ac:couat · 
ID the Acco<:a1 idcalilied ill biOdt 1.6 iD the cveot tl.oodo i.o lhat 
A<coonl ~ rtduted Of Wllvtilabtc. 

. . 

S.J The Stote rese<Vtl ibc risbl to offs<t ln>m 011y amo:u>IJ 

ocb<rwisc poyable 10 tbe Cootraclllr UDder lhla Aafe.,..,. 
thoatliquidal<d amOII.ou required or penni tied by Nll RSA 
80:? thtousl> RSA 80:7-<: or aay other provlsioa oflaw. 

S.4 Notwithsta.odina aay provisioo illlhl.s """"""'to ll>e 
eantnty, and ......,lcbltaodiog uocxpccted clrcwnstaaces, ill 
1>0 tV(l)t aball tbe total of oil pa.)mfots authorized, or actuallY 
DSide betW:Jdcr, eu:ced the Price Limil>tiao act roru. ia black 
1.1. . 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WlTIJ LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL E.MPL0\'1\Q:NT 

OPPORTUNITY. 
6. t lA coaacctioo wi1b U.c pcrfcimulcc of the Services, tbt · 
Cootncto< &hall eocrrply with all....,.teo, laws, n:auJllloas, 
and orders of fedcnl, alate, CO\ICiy Of lllllllicipal authorities 
which i~~~posc IDY oblicati.., or duty upon tbo Coalri<IOt, 
iocludin& hut CDI limited to; civil ri&htJ ood cq..-1 oppcr1WI.ity 
laws. This may wclude tbc !Cquirement to udlizeau.tii.Wy 
aida and services to <Dillie that pcr>OCIS with eaiiiJI>unieatiol1 
cliubil.ititS, iDC!uditla vioico. beoria& tad apcecb, ciD 
communicate with, reeelve info<D>IIion fiolil, lllld coovey 
i.aforrMiioa to tile CootnciD<. ll1 odditiOQ, tile CooiTII:tcr 
sbaU cccaply. witb alloppticablc copyr;ib1 lawt. . 
6.2 Duriuslh< tenn oflhls Apemen~ tbe Coalnelllrsb:dl · 
aof discrirnJMfe agailutcmplo)I<CS or appllCiall f01 · 

cacploymeol bt;ause or,.ee, color, rcliJioa, cn:cd, qc; sex, 
bODdieap, sc..W Orlca\olioa, or Dllio .. l O<ijia tad willlllte 
atr...-tive aclioa to prevcot oucb' discrim!DaliOfl. 
6.J If lila A~= at ia l'wxltd it11ny part by IDOllics oflhe 
Uo.i«d St&te>, the Coo-tor ah.U comply with aU the 
provision• of Executive Onler No. 111,46 ("Equal 

Emplo)'!IIODt Oppoi1Wiity''), u ·,..pptcaccnled by the 
n:cuJatioas of the Uo.itcd Statu Depanmeot of 1..abor 1•1 
C.f.R. P~ 60), and with a11y rules, re,Watio~ 10d l)liclditlel 
u the Slato ofNew Ho.mpsbire or the Uc.itcd States wuc ID 
lmple.,.ntlh«< reaulaboa.. 'n>< Coointl4r ftJnber 18JCC1 to 
pcnlllt lite Stale or Uaited Stiles acocu to aoy or the 
Cootraetot' a boo1cs, reeo~ and llCCOllnU ll>r tbc.pUJPCSC of 
uccttaiaiDg comp!i&oce with Ill rules, n:aulatiOGS and onlus, 
~d Ute covc:nanu, terms and cood.lti~ ofthi1 Apec:mmt 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7.1 The Coalne!or.oballat iu oW. ti)>CDscprovidc all 
pcrso-l oCCC$SC)' to pcrCorlll the Servicu. The Coolraaaf 
wamnu that all pcrtoone\ easagc:d .ill tile Services !ohlll be 

!. CONI'RACTPRICEIPRICI: LIMIT AnON/ qualified 10 perform tile Scrvicu, ODd sbsll be pzoperly 

PAYMENT. lieeosed ODd otbtn¥i•e aulh.crizcd to do &o Wider •U awlical>le 

S.l Tbc eoDirld price, metbod ofpoymetll, 1311 terms of Ia WI. 

PIJ'II"'Dt are ideal! !WI tad .a.m partiallady dutribed in 7.2 Unliu olhcnvi>e aulhotUed iD writ ill& durin& tbt ..,... or 

I!XIIliiiTB wiiJcb is incorporated beseil> byrd«a>U. lhla "-<=~ODd for a period o(rix (6) O>OOibs ol!er the 

S.l 'lb< ps~by \he S11te of !be coeuxtprieeaboU be tile · Compleboa Dlte in block \ .7, the Co11tnetor lhalll)()ihhe, 

ooly tad the COtllp!ete ~at lo tile Co.-tO. f<>< all tad !ohlll cot permit aay subcoalrKiotor other petS<~>. fum,.. 

<apeoatS, of wbotover aaturc iD<wred by the CoatraciAX ill tbe corpo,.tlon with wbom it is cApJed in • combiJled dl'ort to 

pcr(O<mal1ce bcr$)f, ODd aball be lhe Ollly and lbe complete perfonu.thc Services 10 hire:, aay pmoa who ioa Slllc · 

compe.osorioo 1o lhe CoctnctOr lOr tile Services. The Slate employee ot official, wbe is materially Involved ill the 

sball haveao liabill<y to the Coatractor othcrth&l1the coatnet procurcmen~ admiabtrllionorpcrCorm&nce aflhlo 
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• 
Acr.,.mcat. This proi.;sioo chaU survivetctmioation of this 
Alfr=et~l ~ 
i.3 Tbe~tling Olfjcer specified iD block 1.9, orbis or 
ber sue<=, sball b~ !he State's rcpruentaUve. lo the event 
of any dispute COilteriliog tbe iDte!pf<talion of this Ageemect, 
!he C<>ntraet!a& Oftioir's da:Uion sbaU be Doll for tbe State. . ·. 

I. EVENTOFDEF~VLTIREMEDIES. 
8.1 Anyoceor more of the fotlowina acts oromiSiioas oftbe 
Cootii<ICI cball C()~Wj~ an eveot of default bereu.oder 
("Eveot of Oefoulf'): : 
8.1.1 f~ to perfonn tbe Servic .. sotisfaetorily or oc 
sebcclu!e· . . 

8.1.2 Ia awe fu submit any report n:quired ben:undc:r; a.rullor 
1.1 .3 w1urc to perforin any other covenut, term or condition 
of this AP<=nt I . 
1.2 U'poo tbe o~ce ofanyEvent ofDefaul~ tboState 

. may tm any one.. or .l""ft. or al), of !he followin& oe~ons: 
1.2.1 give the C011lro¢or a written no<iee speeilyil>g tbe Event 
ofOefaultand rCI!uiri!ls it to be ~ed witllin, iD the · · 
abseoee of a great<r .lbesser speci6eation of time, thi!1y (30) 
days from tbe cia!< ofthellOtiGe; and i!llle Event ofDefiult is 
cot timely remedied, IO,t1lliaou tb.is A~ eli-ective two 
(2) days afler Bivin& tbe Coott~C~or notice of·lt1'llliD&tion; 
8.2.2 Hive !be Cootntior a•Tineo notice specifying tbe Eveot 
ofOefault·and $uspeljilioi all pl)'lllects to be m&de. uoder this 
At;twoullllld ordc#s"lbat tbe portico oftbe COCtrlttprice 
wbic;b.~d .. '\!11~ accrue to the Con!naor duriostbe 
period from !be' claic Of sueb ootice IID1il sueb time as !be State 
detumines tbat !he Cootrariorbas cured the Event ofD<fault 
$ballne= be paid to ih. Contractor: 
8.2.3 set otr aaainst .Oy olbcr obligatioos the State may owe to 
the C<>..,.ctor any damap the State auffen by reasoo ~f lillY 
Eveat ofDefault; aolllor · · · 
8.2.4 trcoi !he ~srceaienl ... bn:aebed an<! P\UOOe 1.11y of irs 
riax:dies •t law or iD equity, or both. 

· 9. DATAIACCESSI(;ONFlDENTlALilY/ 
PRESERVATION • . 
9.1 As Died ill this AgreeiDCDt, the ..,.nt "data" shaD mean all 
iofon:~~~tioo aod lhinp developed or obtaiDed cluriu, tbe 
periilrmance of, or acquired or developed by rcason.of, Ibis 
Alfeemtn~ iDcluclin&, but not limiud to; all studies, n:ports, 
Jiles, fOIIDU!ae, mrveya, tn.ip$. du.rts, sound rec<>rdili8J, video 
recordi.!lgs, pi<:toria) n:}><oduelions, dtawings, aoaly=, 
s:aphlc reprcsentatioai, oomputer programa, co<nputcr 
priDiou1s, o~s,letkrl> moiiiOiallda, papers, and doCU!Ileots, 
all wbelher &!shed Ot' om&nished. 
9.2 All clala and any p(_operty w!Ueb h.. been received from 
!he State or pun:based-..rith J\&Dds provided for thot pwpooe 

· Wider thi4 Apeemen~;sh&ll be the property of the SWe,·aod 
aball bt·rtlllrooclto the S..te upon ~odor upoo 
tcnniuatioo of this Aa:iument for lllyr..-soo. 

•• 
10. TERMll'IATION. In tbe event of. an early lemliDI!ioo or 
this Agreement for anyrcaso~ other thi.Dtbe completion of !be 
Services, !be C<>ntr,..tor sball deliver to the Cootroc;tio& 
Officer, not Ill"' thaD fifteen (IS) days aflcr the d&to of 
terminatioo, a report (''Termicatioo !~<port") dcsat'biD& in 
detail.aU Saviccs perfonned, aod the cootract price earued, to 
and ineludiog the dlte oftennJDatioo. Tbe form, subject 
maner,-eonteot, and nll!llber of copies oftbe Termina~oo 
Report shoU be idcl1liea.l to th~ or any Fioal Report 
described in !be attached EXHIBIT A. 

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATe. .Jo 
the pc;rf<>rliJOIIU ofthil ActCCIDCOI the Coo!nctor is iD oU 
I'CSp~ an in<!epc:ndcm c.ootnc:tor. a.od it ocithc:r aa ageot oor 
on employee of the State. ~ither tbe CoQtractoroor any ofiu . 
officers, employees, agents or membcti shall bavc outborily fo 
bind the State or re<:eive a.ay bc:ni:fits, \VOtlcen' compensation 
or Olber cmolumcDis provided by !be S10to to its employi:u. 

11. ASSIGNMENTIDELEGA TIONJSUBCONTRACIS. 
Tbe Contractor llWI not a"igD, or otberwise tra.>r.Cer IDY 
ill teres! in thls Aaz:=Dent without the prior writko notice and 
consent of the S~. Nwe or .!be SesviceubaU be · 
subeontncud by the Contr>etor wilboot ~prior writtco 
ooticc and c:onsco.t of the State. 

IJ.INDEMNIFICATION. The Coo!nctor Jball,defend, 
indeDIJli._fy and bold bisrml .. s the State, its officen and 
eatployees, froD> and aaai!U1aoy and oU looSI<o suffered by the 
State, its ofliee11 aJ><I"cmployees, and any a ad all ~. 
liabili1!CJ or penalties asserted a,p!nst IU Stato, iu ol!icers · . 

. &rtd employees, by or on behalf ofanypersoo, oa account o( , 
based or resultina fro!Do arWn& out of (or w!Ueb utJ.Y be 
claimed to arise out of) the let$ or o<llio:sioos of !,be 
Contractor .. No twitbstaodiogthe foregoina, ootbing ben: ill 
coctailled shall be de<)Ded to coostitoto a waiver of the 
sovereign immunity of the Stott, wbicb immuoily is bercby 
reser;ed to tlie State. This eo~t iD pangrapb 13 sboU 
survive the tc:rminaticu of this Agreement 

14. INSURANCE. 
· 14.1 The Conttac!ol shall, at lu sole cxpease, obta.iD ""d 

mainla.io ill force, and &l>all require lillY subeoDlnetcr or 
assipo .. to obaoin eod maiataiD iD fotoe, IU foUOwiD& 
insurance: 
14.J.I·cornprebClUive aenc.-.lliability iDsUJute •a•iut all 
claims ofbodily"iDjury, death or prapetty dazna&c, iD aJJIQW>Is 
ofootiW!bllll Sl ,OOO,OOOper oca.mo<e aod $2,000,000 
aa,art-pte ; end · 
l4.J.l special cause orloss ooveroac fcmncovtrinaaU 
propctty sub~t to wbparas:apb 9.2 ben:io, In onliiDOUIIt 001 
less !hiD 80% oftbo wbo_lbeplauma>t value of !he property. 
14.2 The poli<ies described ill sub(>ancrapb 14.1 bereiD sbaU 
be oo policy forma aDd endotsellltDt.s approved !Or use io the 
State of New Hampshire by tbe N.H. Depctment of 
ll>suruee, and is•ued by insurers lieeused iD !be State of New 

· 9.3 C<>alicleotiality of clala JobaU be &OVemed by Nli. RSA 
chop~ 9l·A or other cxisdng law. Dilclooun: of d•t.a 
requires prior wriat~ •,PI'fOv&l of the St\lc. 

,,..,,,~....... ~ 
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14.) Tbc CooiiictGr &ball furnlsh to the Cootncliug Officet 
ida>li6od in block 1.9, or his or bet successor, a ccitificot•(•J 
of illi\IIUCC fO< aiJ insuraDCC required under this Aj!r«O!eO~ 
Cootnctor sball aho fuml>b to the Cootnclina Officer 
ldc:cllfiod in blodt 1.9, or bis or ber auc<:cuor, <ertiticatc(s) or 
Wllrll>CC r ... all rcacwal(s) of .......... rcquin:d WJder this 
AIJ=IlCDl"" t.ta !hoo lbirty (30) da)'S priot to the cxpinrtioo 
dale orac:l) oftbo ~oe p61icia . 1be <Crtitical<(s) of 
iDKrucc aod ury ,_wals thm:orllball be arw:hcd llld ore 
"-jlontod bm:in by referco~ Eacb c:miJicat<(•) of 
illoo:taocc shill coo!Aia a douse reqll!rias the iiiSilm' to 
prcrvide the Colllll<liDa Ollicer idcotificd io block 1.9, or bis 

, or~ ouc:<CISOr, oo laalbao lbirty ()O) days prior written · 
ooticc of caoullatiOP Ot ft»diJ'icadoo o( f.be policy. ' 

IS. WOIUCI.RS' COMPENSATION. 
IS.I By11i;uiog this •creemeat, the Cootnctor ·~ 
oirtilics aod WB!'TOOII lbat tbt Coatnctor is in coOI)>IiiGee witb 
Oracmpl bom,·tbe RQiliRIIIeall ofN.H . .RSA cbaplcr 281-A 
jWorkn' C""'P'IWiiOII"). 
IJ.l To the aleatlhe Coo- iuubjcct totbt­
roquir....,ts of N.H. RSA cbptcr 211-A, Coo- shill 
~ 111d rcquiro ury oubconcr~or pr assignee to sccvrc 
omd auoiolain, payme~~t or Wartcm' Co~~~pcO>&tioa in 
CODIICCiion wi1h activities wb.icb tbe pusao p<Opooeslo 
lilldmaltc pum1011t to tbla A.,......,caL Cootnctor.shlll' 
tunWb-the Coatn<tina Officer ideutl6ed i.o block 1.9, or his 
orbcr&ucocssor,proafofWorken' Compen11tioo in the 
tii&DDCf described in N.H. RSA cbapta 281-A aod aoy 
~lc ,.,.wal(s) thm:o( wbich tbaD be a~od ooilare 
~ ber<io by r<feteoce. .'Jbe Slat< >ball aotbc 
rupoosiblctor paymmt of aay Work<n' Compcnulion 
pRUINms « for 111y otbcr claim oc b011C6t (or Comnctor, or 

.., ·-... •oviO)'CC or Coatnclll<, which misJ>t 
orix uada applicilk State of New H.ampshirc Workm' 
Compcwtioo laW> i.o <011aectioa wid! the pcrformaoce or the 
SaviusUDdcr this AIP'cemtDL · 

16. WAIVER OF Bll£AC8. No r.ilwe bythc State to 
mt'orcc my provisloas hereof oftu aoy Eveot of Default sball · 
bedamala wai..,ofitt ri&bla wltll rcsard to lhatEva~t of 
Dd'alll~ or ury Nbscquall Eveot or Default No Clprcu 
'Wiurotoecforcc aoyl!wo>t of Default ab411 be dccmod a 
wtiva,ofthe ri&bt oflhc Slate to c<llom: each aod all oflh~ 
p<V'Iioi0111 batof._ lilY fllllller oro«llcr Event oroerou~ 
oalhc port oflh< COOirt<tor. 

17. NOnq:. f',!1y ootice by a putyherctoto the od!c:r pitt)' 
IILIU be deemed to bavc bOCO> duty ~livered or gi.,.o at lbe 
time or mailing by ca1i6ed mai~ """"'"prepaid, in a Uoited 
Suca Post Office addnasod to tho puti .. at the addm<u 
"""'in blocl<s !.hod 1.4, bmi.o. 

11. AMUIDMENT. Tbis Aa:r«IDCIII may be smtodod, 

..iva! ord~ only by .. w!Nmalt io -· oipod 
by tbo: patties bm:to aad oidy aAcr opproval of I1ICb 
aiiiCidme->t, waiver or cliscblrac by tJoc ~and 
E.aoculi.e Council of the Slate ~'New Hampshire Wlkss DO 

ouc_b opprova\ is rcquind under the cite\am$taoc<l pursuaotto 
Stolt law, rule oq~oliey. · 

19. CONSTRUCTION Of AGREEMENT AND TERMS. 
This ~emootlhall bo coostNod in aocotdlnce wid! the 
laws of die S~ofNew'HampsiWc, and Is bindiD& ~ aod 
inutcs to tbc bcoc6t ofc.hc putia aod tbclt rcspccti't< 
I>I<C<ISOJS aod assipo. Tbc woolinB usa! iD lhiJ ~....,r 
ia lhc wordin& cbcsca by the parties lo apre:os tbcit IDiltuol 
in« at, &Dd DO ruk or CON!Nc:lion >ball be oppliod qaiaot Of 

i.o Cavot or aoy potty. 

10. THIRD PA.IlTCES. !b• porti<J bc~to do oot i.o.,.ocllo 
bcocfit &DY third puth'O aod thU Airc:cm<nt sball not be 
construed to confer aoy IUCb'beoc6t. · 

' l t. READINGS. The b .. dillaa throuput the AJ<'<ca>ent 

ore for refem~te plliJ)OieS ooly, tad tbt warda coolaiood 
tbcrei.o abaU in oo way be b<ld to coplaiA, tDOCii!y, 1111pliJy or 
aid io lhe icwpnoatioa, COI>IInlcsioa ot ......,;,, or the 
provitioas or !his Acree!DCat. 

ll. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, Additioaal provitiOliS let 

ronh in the atlochcd EXHIBIT C 11< ioc'o~pontcd bcreio by 
reCereocc. 

n: SEV'£RA.BlLITY. Ia the ev.ot ony or the provilio01 of 
thla AaJccmcot are bdd by a cowl or .-pctc:Dt jurisdictioo to 
be COGtrll'y tO JJ:J'1 IUU: or (i:dcraii11W1 the ~~ 
provisioos oflhis AgociDCDt will rcaalo io &II fo:ee aod 
dl'ecL 

1<1. ~TIRE AGR.E£M.ENT. Tllis Asre-. whicb may 
be eucutod io a I1Ull:lbcr of COIIDI<op&rt>, a::h of wliicb 1boll 
be deemed .. onpool, coutll\llcs the mt~ Asrecmcot'"" 
IIDdcrshndios bctwcco the p..UC.. llld ~~all prior 
AaJcemoats ood 1111demaodmaa reiJtiJI~ bercto. 
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PRSS f~cllltating Organlullon Servlcu 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

· 1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

1.1. 

1.2. 

1.4. 

1.6. 

. . 
The ConiTactor wnl subm~ a detailed description of the language assls1ance 

services they will provide to p.ersona with limited English proficiency to ensure 

me!Jnlngful aceess to their programs and/or services .within ten (·10) days of the 

contract effective date. 

The Contrador agrees that, to t/l8··eXIent futUre legislative adlcin t)y the New 

HampshiAI General Court or federal or slate court orders may have an lrr1lact on 

the Services descriled herein, the State Agency has the right to .modify Service 

priorities and e)CpendltuAI requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve 

compliance therewith. · 

For the purp~s of this contract. any reference _to days shaU mean consecutive 

calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as bu_Kiess days. . 

For the purposes of this contract. any reference to business days shaU mean 

Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holidays. 

Tlie aelected ·Vendor must conduct an assess merit of Recovery Community 

Organll:ations (RCOs) to determine the level of readiness for each RCO to 

become accrecf!ted accordn g to the standards set forth by the Council on 

Accreditatlon ot Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS). 

1.6. The selected Vendor must collaborate with the CO\Kicll on Acaeditetion of Peer 

Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) to provide each RCO with assistance to 

' · meet aca-editation standards set forth by the CAPRSS. 

1.7. The selected Vendor must collaborate. with other PRSS teclhnlcal assistance 

assets to assess the capeclty of each Reo relative to the core and optional 

&tandanS, defined by the Counce of Acaaditation ot Peer Recovery SuPPOfl 

Services (CAPR.SS). 

·1.8. The selected Vendor must wor1< with the Department and RCOs to. determine 

C1JIIurally approprlate process and outcome data collection and analysis. 

1.9. The selected vendor mu~t ptovlde program management and overSight as wab as 

implement a quality improvement process. · 

2. Scope of Services 
2.1. The Contractor shall complete an accreditation readiness scan of all known 

Rei:overy Communly Organizations (RCOs), statewide. The ContractQr shall: 

2.1.1. Determine each RCO's ability to a9liew Council of Accreditation ot 
Peer ReCOI(&ry Suppa! _services (CAPRSS) accreditatlon. 

2.1 .2. Detennlne eaCh RCO's al;lilitY to open.a Recovery Center. 

2.1.3. Determine each RCO's capacity to provide Peer Recovery Support . 
Services. · 

Scq>ed......_ 
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PRSS flcllltatlng OrgantzaUon Services 

Exhibit A 

2:1.4. Determine each RCO;s commitment to becoming a Medlcaldprovider, 

upon approval from the Center for Medicaid and Medicare Servloes 

(CMS) of the estabUshment of a 'Recowry Community Organization' 

provider type'under the New Hampshire Medicaid program. 

2.1.5. Provide a written determination of RCO readiness to the Department 

Within 5 business days of compleUng the final RCO readiness .scan. 

22. The Contractor lhaU enter Into contract w1th a minimum of flve (5) Recovery 

Community Organaations (RCOs) in five (5) different Pi.bi'JC Heal th Regions (See 

Appendix D - Regional Publlc Health Networits), as . approved by the 

Department. In order to Increase capacity for Peer Recovery Support Services 

(PRSS) Within each of the selected rrve (5) Recovery Community Organlzatlqns. 

The ContraciOt shall: 

2.2.1. Ensure ead1 Recovery Community Organization (RCO) represents a 

.different Public Health Region (Seil Appendix D - Regional Public 

. · Healih Networl<). 

2.2 .2. Proll!de a copy of each exacMad RCO contract to the Department 

wl1hin five (5) days of COI1trae! execution. 

2.3. The Contrae!or shali collaborate with Peer Ret9very Support SerVices (PRSS) 

leciYlical assistance assets, Including, but not l imited to, CAPRSS, to assess 

ead1 Reo for accreditation readiness In accordance with the standards set fotth 
by the Council of Accreef~ation of Peer Recovery .Support Serll!ou (CAPRSS) . 

.The Contraelof shall: 

2.3.1. Complete a ¥Kiti'en ass!fssment of each RCO that indicates the ROO's 

capacjty to provide PRSS serll!ces and current operational stendanls. 

2.3 .2. ..Develop a .v.ritten plan with each RCO that lndudes, bulls not limited 

lei:. 

2.3.3 . . 

2.3.2. 1. Timeframes to meeting CAPRSS accreditaUon standards. 

2.3.2.2. Goals that must be attained by each RCO in order to meet 

CAPRSS accredftatlon standards. 

2.3.2.3. ·Technical assistance needed for each RCO f1 order to meei 

CAPRSS goals, time frame and ted1nical asslstanoe 

a.~italion requireme!'ls. 
• • ... ,f 

Ensure training .and 'tecflnlcal ·asslstanca Identified in Sectlon 2 .3.2.3 is 
provided to ead1 RCO, as needed. 

2.4. The Contrae!or shaV c:onaborate. w1th tlie Council on Ao::redltatlon of Peer 

Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) to provide assistance to each RCO to 

ensure each of the fiye (5) RCOs meet accreditation standards set forth by 

CAPRSS. The Contractor shall ensure assistance Includes, bu11s not limited to: 

2.4.1. Personnel With the elq)81tise necessary to doGver high .quaUty training. 

2.~ .2. Tedmicalassistance, as needed. 

2.4 .3. Organl:aUonal coachlf111. 
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2.4.4. Capacity development consultation. 

2.4.5. Admlnls1rative support !unctions. as needed. 

2 .5. The Contractor Shall collaborate with the Center for EXa!llence to develop and 

provide training as weU as·technicel assistance to RCOs In order to: 

2.5.1. Assist RCOs to attain acaed~ation. 

2.5.2. ProVIde technical assistance to RCOs to enrolr in Medicaid upon tile 

astabllshmel)t of a "Peer Recovery Program' provider type by the New 

H&JT9Shlre Medtcald Program bued on Fede{al Center for Medicaid 

and Medicare Services (CMS) and other Federal and State 

requirements, which Include: 

2.5.3. 

2.5.4. 

2.5.5. 

2.5.2. 1. 42 CFR, Subpart B ( ht!D:/Jwww.edr.gov/ooi­

bjnlretrieveECfR?g!F&SID=2a147022bdQe989f2elf021Qb84 

01830&mcetrue&n=pt42.4.455&r=PAAT&tv=HIML*sD42.4. 

- ~). '··. . 
2.5.2.2. 42 CFR, Subpart E ( ht!D:/fwwW.edr.Qov/CQi' 

b!nlretcieyeECFR?go=&S!D=2a141022bdOe989f2efi'0210ba4 

01830&mc=true&o=sD42.4.455.e&r:S UBPAAT&tv=HTM!. ). 

2.5.2.3. 45 CFR, 164.51 

Ensure personnel pro\'lding Peer Recovery Support sei"JJces (PRSS) in 

RCOs are Certified Recovety Support Workers (CRSW) and meet the 

CAPRSS recovery coachlng standards. · 

Assist RCOs to expand capacity to Include Peer Recovery•Coaching 

end I elephone Recovery Support Servi~. 

Assist RCOs wi1tt elq)Btlding capacity to lnclllde back otrice support 

!unctions. 

2.5.6 . Assist RCOs In esta~llshlng ·and a plan to sustain Recovery. Center. 

2 .6. The Co~ractor shan utilize logistical support proVided by the Center for 

Excellence to facilitate a Community rl Practice that allows RCO administrators 

and leaders to establish and strengthen collegiality, cooperaUon, coUaboratlon 

and lnfOITTial menloring 'among RCOs. The Contractor shall: 

2.7. 

2.6.1. Organlm regular on-going RCO regional meeUngs with RCO 

administrators and leaders. 

2.6.2. Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCOs, atstewfde. 

2 .6.3. Ensure !hat each subcontracted RCO engaQe$ in Its local Regional 

Public Health Network (RPHN) to partlclpaie In continuu·m of care 

development work. 

The Conlr8clor shall assess the ability or each RCO to open and sustain a 

Recovery Center. The Contractor shall: 

s._d ­
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2.7.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCO that indicates each RC\)'s 
readiness to open and sustain a ·Recovery Center, that includes, but is 
not limited to: 

2.7.1.1. The current organizational structure of the RCO's Recovery 
Center or the RCO's readiness to open a Recovery Center, 
as appropriate. 

2.7.1.2. · The .number of people that can be served by the RCO's 
Recovery_ Cefiler. · 

2.7.1.3. The RCOs financial viability to support a Recovery Center. 

2.7.2. Work with. each RCO to develop a written plan to open a Recovery 
Center. · · 

2.7.3. En~ure training and technical assistance is . avallable to Recovery 
Center staff, which may include but is not limited to: 

2. 7 .3.1. Customer service training. 

2.7.3.2. Peer Recovery Coaching SeNices. 

' 2. 7 .3.3. Telephooe Recovery Support Services. 

2.7.4. . Asslst..RCOs to secure funding from other public and private sourCes to 
ensure ongoing sustainab~Hty ·of servtces. 

2.8. The Contractor shall assist RCos with performing back office functions that may 
Include. but_ are not limited to: · 

2.8.1. Human resource functions, 

2.82. Financial lunclions such as accounting, bookkeeping and payroll. 

2.8.3. · Billing functions. 

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure billing services are available to each RCO until such 
time RCOs can perfonn bnling functions on their own.· Billing functJons shall 
include, but ·are not iimil!!d to: 

2.10. 

2.9J. AcG8pting RCO invoices for PRSS services.prov!ded to clients. 

2.9.2. Submitting invoices to the Department lor client services that are 
provld.ed by the RCO and covered by funds in this grant for 
reimbursement. · · 

2.9.3. Submitting PRSS client servtces covered by Medicaid to the appropriate 
managed care organization (MCO). 

2.9.4. · Disbursing payments reeeived from MCOs to the appropriate RCO. 

2.9.5. Accepting RCO invoices for operational costs. 

2.9.6. Paylng.RCOslor operational costs on a cost reimbursement basis. 

2.9.7. · Submitting RCO operational cost Invoices to the Department for 
reimbursement. 

The Contractor shell collaborate wfth the NH Center for Excellence to: .. j ' 
H&J1>or Ho,.., Ire. Sa>pc r1 So.-.1~ Con-lnllf•:~ 

Pqe• ol9 ~te- S'IL/Ib 
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2.1 0.1. Identify data evaluation cr1tet1a. 

2.10.2. Implement an evaluation process in each RCO. 

2.11. The Contractor shari ensure technical assistance is available to each RCO In 

order lo collect, analyze and utilize data, for the evaluation process In Section 

2 .10.2., which shell Include bu11s not limited to: · 

2.11.1 . Demographics, which indude but are not Dmlted 'to: 

2.11 .1 .1. Gender 

2.11.1.2. Age 

2.11.1.3. Ethnicity 

2.11.2. PrinJarydrugolchoice 

2.1i .3 . :SAMHSA • National Outcome Measures 

lhtto:lt.vwwdasls.ssmbsa .gov/dssls2[nomsJnonis altctJ1 .pd{), which 

iocluda:· · ". ''' ~·1J~:_-.· .. 

2.11.3.1. Abstinence 

2.11.3.2. Crime and Crfmlnal Justice . . 
2.11.3.3. El'(lploymenVEdut:alion 

2.11.3.4. Stabllty in Housing 

2.11.3.5. Social Connectedness . 

2.11 .4.. Referral Souroe 

2.11.5. Client Finandallnformation 

2.11.6. Heatthc:are Coverage lnf01m8Uon 

2.11 .7 .. Substance Use Disorder treatment history 

2.11 .8. Substance Use Disorder or Co~ocurring Disorder recovery needs 

2.11 .9. Pa~iclpatlon In Community Se111fces 

2_. 11 .1 0. Recovery capital 

2.12. The ContraCtor will wor1< with the Department to identify the neld cohort of RCOs 

to prepare them for CAPRSS accreditation. 

3. Reporting Requirements 

3.1. Report on readiness for all considered RCO, that Includes but Is not Umlted to: 

3 .1.1. Accredltatlon readiness. 

--... IIIC. 

3.1.2. 

3.1.3. 

3.1.4. 

RecoY&ry center capacity 

Capacity to provider PRSS 

Commitment to enrolling in Modlcald, upon approval .from the.Center for 

'Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) of the establishment of a 

·'Recovery Community Organization' pravider type under the New 

HampShire Medicaid program. 4\V 
Sccpo <ls.r.lct• ~trillllr_lY__ 

Data: 5'/~(14 



'New H1111pa)IJ111 Department' of Health and Human Services 
PRSS Faelllullng ~rganlz.ttlon Servlcn 

Exhibit A 

3.2. The Contrador shal provide quarter1y reports tt:tat lnc:lude but are not lirrited to: 

3.2.1. Progress on each RCO's woik plan components. 

3.2.2. Information on RCO trainings conducted, including but not limned to, 

't~ qf training pro'lided and number of attendees. . . 
3.2.3. Information regarding RCO meeijngs that O<nJmtd, as described in 

Section 2.6, including but riot limited to, venue; number of attendees 

and methods used to advertise m11et1ngs. 

3.2.4. ·Beck office support provided, as desCribed In Sedlon 2.8. 

3.3. The Conlrac:tor shan submit a frnal report to the Department that lnckldes, but Is 

not 6mited to: 

3.3.1. fnformaUon.on each of the five (5) RCOs Including. the numtier or 
Individuals served during the 3 months prior to subcontracting with the 

CoJ11rBctor in cOmparison to the number of Individuals served by. the 

RCO fromAp/111, 2017 to .Me 30, 2017. 

3.3.2. How many end what type of trainings were provided over the term of lhe 

eon tract .. 

3.3.3. · ... The number of RCOs that are accradited by the CAPRSS. 

3.3.4. The number and location of eac:h Recovery C!!nter that opened as a 
resuR of contracted seNfces. 

3.3.5. The type of PRSS services deDvered by eac:h RCO. 

3.3.6. · Information regarding clients served, which shall include but not be · 
limited to: • 
3.3.6.1. Analysis of c6entda18 referenced In 2.11 by individual RCO. 

3.3.6.2. Analysis of aggregated client data 

3.3.7. Beck Office functions performed lor each RCOs, Ykllch may Include but 
Is not timlted ID: 

3.3.7.1. Human Resources. 

3.3. 7 .2. Financial. 

3.3.7.3. Client biling to other funding sources not In this contracl 

3.3.8. All contraciOr ..orillhat has slarted and any progre$5 toward CAPRSS · 

eccnaditallon for the second cohort of RCOs Identified to the 
Department. 

4. Dellverables 
4.1. The Contractor shal provide copies of the exec:uted contracts deseti>ed in SectiOn 2.2; 

to the Department Within frve (5) business days of fullY l!Xeculing the docunents. 

4.2. The Ccintractor shall complete an assessment, as described In Section 2.3.1, for each 

0( ~e RCOs- for a minimum of five (S) asse~ments. wlthl':l ninety (90) days of~e · 
contract effective date. 

. . . --ioc. ~ds..- Cootnoctct-.: · 

P•IJO edt !!otr.' 51L/ I' 

. ···. 
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. . 
4.3. Tho Contractor shall provide a copy of each a.ccreditation plan described In Section 

2.3.2., within one hundred-twenty (120) days of the contract etrectiVe date. 

4.4. The Contractor shall proVide a written Recovery Center assessment, as described In 
Sedion 2.7, for eacn RCO, within one hundred-eighty (180) days of the contract 
etractive date. . 

4.5. The Contractor shall provide the billing process and payment' tlmatrames for providing 
the serviCes In Section 2.8. within one hundreo.twentx (120) days of the contrad 
elfec:live date. 

Milestones and Activities . 5. 
\ 

MIIJM Pe~on Re,sponslble Date of Potantlal Plan to . 

Milestones . Completion, Barrie,.. to Oven:oma 
an·d Actlvftlaa . In days arter Achievement Barris,.. to 

contract Achievement 
effective data . 

Milestone 1: Project Director 60 Days· No major Peter Kelleher 

Report on the berriel'll (President 

degrn of anticipated, as ~CEO) will 

readiness of this Is primarily a oVerSee this 

aacnRCOin salt-managed first step of 

ihe State of FO.Iilsk. One the project 

NH (See potential barTier woriting 

Section 2.1 ). ... Is if the pei'!IOn closely with . 
selected to fi II CCAR. 
the Project " 

Director role Is 
not able to start 
on thle. 

MBestone 2; ·Project Director and 90 Days Readineas/abllity Contractor 
lnMiel CCAR in collaboration of RCO to enter shall prollicte 
assessment of withCAPRSS Into a T A to fa cllitAite 
each subcontract the coritrad 
subcontracted agreement neg0085ons • . 
RCO 

t.Cilestone 3: Project Director and: ... 1?0 Days II any of the Thora Is li<ely 

Developing 8 . CCAR In ConaboratloO' ,-: ........ above to be a 
written plan withCAPRSS milestones take minimum sal 

for longer tl]an of plan 
accreditation anticipated, this componenla 

milestone may. applicable to 
occur at a Ieier an RCOsthat 

can be in tp --...... Sc.ope dSer.ICD I eo.- !rita · ~V 
Plogo 1 dl o- (/(./(L 

. . 
~· 
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date. occur as a 
) 

. . .. :~;" ~active, 
prior to fOn'Tl<ll 
completion of 
the individual 
plans. 

' 

Milestone 4: CCAR, 'Harbor Homes, Within 90 days The Contractor The 

Providing Welcoming Light, NH but upon shall begin Contractor 

training and Carter for Excellence Subcontract providing shall utilize 

technical and CAPRSS. TA El'fectlva Date TA/Inunlng from web-based 

assislance to proWled by CAPRSS will (and during the beginning of and in-person 

RCOs · be at no cost to Harbor the the procurement Individual and 

Homes or the RCOs. subcontracting process. Specific gro'up 
process, as tiainlng(T A trainings to 

needed) required for ensure 
throughout the acc:reditatlon acc:esslbiflty 

funding period. may be dl!layed Issues are 
if any of the eliml~ated. 

above ·on-site (within 

I 
!fllestones are theRCO} 
delayed. tralnlngs/TA 
Additionally, \'All also be 
there may be provided 
aocesslbBity 
Issues that 
prevent some·of 
the RCOs from 
at1ending 
trainings. 

Milestone 5: Project Director and Wllhln 180 
Initial CCAR days, BT)d 

a~sessment I ongoing 
for Recovery thereafter ln 
Center accordance 
readiness with individual 

plans 

-:.· ; . ' 
· .'Mllestone 6: Project Within 120 NH's 

' 
None -this Is 

T~inirig Coordlrietor/Adminlstrator Days and implem4tntatlon a barrier we 
RCOs billing. and HHI Backend Staff ongoing plan· of related . have no 

fundic?ns therearler Medicaid benefit conlrol over. 
However, v.e 
will workwiJ 
81 State· 

Hlttlot tfofNt, h:. ~tiS....... ~ .. ,;,AY 
\ 

P~loiO 
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Milestone 7: Project Director, NH 

Initial Meeting 
Center for 6xcellence 

of~CO 

Community of 
Praclice 

Exhibit A 

Within 60 
Days (prior to 
the 
proaJrement 
process) 

Seop• d s.Mce.s 

Pop 8 al8 

' 

Primary Care 
' Association to 

provide public 
po(qWO(k 
related to this. 

None None 

. 
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Method ~nd Conditions Precedent to Pavment 

I . Tllis contract is funded IMth funds. from the Governor's Commission ori Alcohol and Orug Abuse 

Prewntlon, Treatmem and Recovery as weD as the Catalog of Federal Domestii: Asslstllf)ce (CFOA) 

1193.959, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health 

Sel'o4ou Administration, Sub.tance Abuse Bloc:k Grant In pro.tding cervk:es pursuant to EIINb~ A, 

So:>pe of SeMc<=. The conllliCtor egreer lo provlc:lethe ser;lces in E>hlblt A. ScoPe ot Selllk:es In 

conpliance with funding' re<~uirementa. · · 

2. The SIIIIAI at\1111 pay the Contractor an emount not t.o o•cead the Price LlmtiAitlon on Form 1'37, Blod< 

1.8. for the a81Vices provided by the Contractor pursuant to Emba A. Sci>pe of Services. 

3. Pa~MI for expenses shal be on a cost re!mtusement basis only for aCW.I expendiWru. 

Elq)end~uru shall be In acco<dance wtth the approved r"" 1\em. budgels atoown In Elchi'bila &-1 . . 

4. Pa)!llent lot services shall be made as fellows: 

4.1. The ContraclOI must aubmh monthly Invoices tor reimbursement tor services spec:Med In Exhlbil 

A. Scope ot SeMces. The State shaU make pa)ment to the Contractor 'Mihln thirty (30) days or . 
recelpt of~ Invoice for Contractor services provlded pursuant to this Aora.ement. 

4.2. The fno.olcas must 

4.2.1. Clearly ldanlify the amount requested and the services p..rormed during that period. 

' 4.2.2. lndu.- a detailed account or lha work performed, and a 11st or deliverable& completed 

during 111111 prior monlh, as outfined In Exhlb~ A, scope of l?ervices. 

4.2.3. Separatel)r ldenllfy·any wot1c and amount or atll1butable and performed by an approved 

aub-cont111Clor, if applicable . 

4.3. Invoices .and reports muat be submitted lo: 

NH Deportment or HNIIh and Human Senrice& 
Financial Manager 
Bureau ot Drug and Aleohol Servlcei 
129 Pleasant Street 
Concord, NH 03301 

5. Pa)'menta may be \Oo1thhold pending reoelpC oi required repolla or documentation as Identified In 
Exhblt A. . . . 

6. A final P&)mOnt request ahaB be albmlaed no later !hall sixty (60) days alter the ContraCt endt . 

. Fai\Jre to submk the lrwolce, and accompanying doaJmentaUon could res VII in nonpa)menl 

7. ~tanding anyllllng to the contrary herein,' the Contractor agrees thai funding under thl3 

. CCI\ tract may be ~held, In v.tlole or In part, tn the event or noncompliance wilh any Slife Of Federal 

law, Nle or regt.latlon applicable to lhe services provided. ex If the said services haw not been 

eotnpletod In accordanca with the termt and cond'tlions or this AgreemenL 

8. Nor.Mlstandlng paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, on ern.ndment limited tO the 

adjustment of !he amounts be-n budget line llama or EKhl~ 8·1 . and releted lt.ems. can be. made . 

by- written ag~ement of both parties and do not raqui<ed additiOnal e,pptQVal of the Gov.mor and 

Executlw Council. 

-Hom&c, Ire. 

I 

ElliN8 

Pogo1 ol1 
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

Conlr3c:tcrs Obligations: The Conlractor covenints and agret$ thAI all funds received by the Contractor 

under the Contract shall be usad.only as paymet1t to the Contractor for services provided to eligible 

Individuals and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and 

agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Fecteraland Sbot.e Lowa: If the Contractbr le permilled to determine the ellgiblily 

.of ~ali such ellgl>lity detetmi11<1Uon lhaJI be made In IC(IO(dance w!lh applcable f!ldereland 

a1ale laws, Atgulatlona, onSera, guideline&, poll~les end procedures. 

2. Tlme ond Monner of Detarmlnallon: ELigibility deti!ITT\In8tlona shall be macle on form• provided by 

the Department lor that putpo1e and shaD be made and remade at such times as are lirescribad by 
the Oepat1ment. · . 

3. Doc:umanUIIon: In addition to the.detennlnatlon forms required by !he Department, the Contractor 

shall maintain a date ftle on each recipient of services h-under, v.hlch fila alwlll include aU . 

Information necessary 19, support an eliglbiiKy determination and such other lntor:matlon as the 

Department N(!Ut$15. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with at forms and d~umentation 

rogard!'19 eilgl'bllly detennlnatk!m that the Department may reque$1 or.'require. :. • : '~. :~ -:/• 

•. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that an applicants lor services hereunder, as mea . 
lnclv1duals declared ineligible have a right to a fa!r hearing regarl!lng that determinaljon. The 

Conlrector hereby covenants and agrees that all appScanta for services aha II be permlned to, flll out 

an applleatlon form and that eacn app!'~eant or ra.appllcant shan be Informed of hl~r right to a lair 

licaring In ICCOrdance v.Oth Department regulations. · 

5. Gra!ultles or l<lckbac:ks: The Conlreclor agrees thalli Is a breach of this Cortraet to Bocejlt or 

make a payment, gratuily or offer of employment on be haW of the ContractOI, lilY Sub-Contractor or 

the Stele In order to lnlluence the performance of the ~pa of WOlle detaUed In Exhibit A of this 

Contract. The State may terminate this Contract' and any sut>-conlr3ct or aut>-agreement W ~Is 

determined that pa)mM!s, gratuitle$ or effete of employment of any lrind wero offeted or received by 

any olllclals, cllioers. employeu or agentS of the Callrae1or 01 SUI>-Contrae!Ol. 

e. Retroactive Payments; Notwithstanding an)'thing t.o the contrary Contained In the Contract or In any 

other documen~ contract or understanding, It Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties 
hel'llto, flat no payments wll be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor lor costa lnamed lor 

any purpose or tar lilY a.etvteas proll!ded to 1ny lndi)lldllel pr1or to the Ef't'ec:tlve Dale of the Conlrac:t 

and no pa)INnts shall be mide for expenses incutrad by the Contra clot, for CJY setvlces provided 

prior to the dlla on wlllch the Individual applies for ae:vlces or (except as otherwise pr'Oio{ded by the 

federal raguleUons) pnar to • determination that the indill!dual Ia eligible lor auch &IMees. · 

. . 
7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contan.d In the Cormoct, no~ 

henoln ~d shall be (jeemed 10 obligato 01 reqvn the Department to purchase sar4cos 

heR~Jnder ole rate wtllch relmbuiMs lhe Conractor in excess d the ConllaCIOIS CO$!$, It 1 rate 

which eXceeds the amounta reasonable and neeeuaoy to 111ure !he .quellly ot such setvtce, or ala 
rata ...tllch exceed$ tnel'llte charged by the Contractor to Ineligible lndivtduala or other third patty 

fun<lers for ouch oervk:e •. lf at any lime <lUring the terl)l cllhla Contract orallor rec:elpt'of the Final 

Elcpendltura Replllt hereunder, the Department shall delermlne 111811he Contrac:IOr has used 

~ts '*'under 10 re1'nllutsa llama of expense olher tllen such coats, 01 hu received payrnent 

In eliCeSs of such costs or In excass of such rates eh~ by the CCnlr.lclor to lneigible inc!M<klals 

or «her third patty funders, llle Oepartm«ll mey .elect to: : 
7 .1. ·Renegcllete the rates for payment hereunder, In ...tllch avant n- rates shall be established; 

7.2. Oed~d from any future payment 10 0'11 Conlrector the amount of any pr1or raimbursamenJ' 

exuss of costs; e.t.llll c - Spodol""""- ~ "':: ~ V/ 
Ml1'14 P1Gt1ofS -~ 
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In v.llich event failure to make 
such repayment shall oonstlwte an Event of Default hereunder. When tha Coillractor Ia 
perm iliad lo determine the eligibility of Individuals for siiiVI~. the Contractor agrees.to 
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services 
PfOV!ded to any individual who Is found by the Department to be l~eUgible for such servioes at 
any ~e during the p ... iod of retention at records established herein. 

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY: 

B. Maintenance of Raconds: In add~ion to the eligibllfty reccrds spadfied above, the Contra<;tor 
covenants and agrees to maintain the fotlowing rscords during the Contract Period: 
8.1. · Ascat Recordo : books, records, documents and other d!lla evidencing and ;enectlng all ~&Is 

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance or the Contract, and ail · 
lnoome received or collected by the Contractor during the Coli tract Period, said record• to be 
maintained in accordanoe wi1h accounting procedures and practlcos v.lllcf:l suffJCienlly and 
properiyrefi,ect an su~ costs and eXpenses, and ..nich are acceptable to the Department, and 

. to include, without llmltation,-allledg~. books, reoords, and or_iginal evidence of costs such a5 
·purchase requisitions and ordels, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of 
ln·kind cantnbutiona, labor time c:ards, paYJ-olls, and other records requesteq or required by the 
Department · 

8.2. Slatistlcal Reoords: Stati&Ucal, enroll men~ attendance or visit records for each redplent of 
seNjces during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all reoords of appOca~on and. 
ellglb!lny Qncluding all forms required to determine eligibil~y for each such rliclp!ent), records 
regarding the provision of serv!oes and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain 
payment for such &el'\lices. · 

8.3. .Medical Rfioords: Whore appropriate end as prescribed by the Department regulations, the 
Cormlctor st\allretain medical reooitls on each patlenVreciplent or services. . 

9. Audit: Con.tractor shall submit an anrlual audit to the Department ,.;thin 60 days aftsr the clOS<!'Of the 
agency fl5c;al year, It Ia recommended that the report be prepared In accordance wtth the provision of 
Oftlca of Management end lludgefCiraJiar A·133, 'Audit& of States, Local Governments, and Non 
Prorrt Organil:ations' and lhe provisions of Standards for. Audit or Governmental Organizations, 
Programs, Activities and Functions, Issued by the US Genera! Accounting Off1011 (GAO standards) a:s 
they pertain to nnanclal compliance audits. 
9.1. Aucfrt and Review: Our1ng the term of this Contract and.the perlod lot retention hereunder, the 

Department, the Un~ed States Department of Health and Human Sel'\llces, and any of their 
deslgna1ed repreisentatlves. shall have access to all reports and records n)alntelned pursuant to 
the Contract fcir purposes of auci~ examination, exoerpta and ttanic:ripts. 

9.2. Audij LliibDitleS: tn a<ldition to and not In any way. In limitation at obligations of the Contract, it is 
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Con.tractor &tiall be held liable for' any state 
or federal audH exceptions and shall retum to th~ Oepertment, all payments made under the 
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been dlsanowed because of such an 
exception. · 

10. ConfldenUellty of ftcecords: All information, reports, and records mainlained hereunder !'r collac:tsd 
In oonnedioo wfth the performance ofthe strvloas and the Contract s~all be confidenHal.l\fld s~an not 
be disclosed-by the Contractor, provided l'towever. that pursuant to sial'! lews and the r~gulatl~ of 
the Department regarding the U1e and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to · 
public ofllcials requiring such Information In connection wah their official d,u~es and for.purposes · 
dlredly conne<:ted to the administration of the S*Vlces and the (;;ontract; and provided further, that 
!lie use or cisclowre by any party or anY Information concerning a re~lent for any purpose not 
dlrecUy connectad with the administration of the Department or th8 Col\tr.icto(s responsibhities with 
respect to purcl>a&ix:l services heteunder Is prohl>hed exoept on written consent or tile raclple(l~ hla · 
attorney or gua-dian. 

e01114 
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Nolvollhslandlng anything to aie 'eontrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In 
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract lor any reason whatsoever. 

11. R11>0rts:· Fiscal and StallsUcal: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at·the following 
ames if requested by tile Department. ; 
11,1. lnte<1m Fln~ciBI Reports: Written Interim financial repotts CO(llal!'"!9 a detailed description of 

all costs and non-anov,oable expenses lncviTed by tile Contractor to:tlill:date·.of the rep<l!t end 
containing 54ch other lnformalion es shall be deomed saHsfactoryby tile Department to 
justify the rote~ payment hereunder. Such F\nanc:i•l Reports'shall be submitted on lila form 
designated by the Department or deemed saUsfaclory by the Department. 

11.2. Final Re~: A final repo~ sheD be submitted 1Mthln thirty (30) daya after the end of thllterm 
of lhls Conl7act. The flnol !Upon shan be In a form oatiofa~"'Y to the o_.unent and shall 
contain a summary statement of progress tDWard goals and objectives stated in the Proposal 
and other Information required by the Oap~nmenl · · 

12. Completion of S~rvlces: Disallowance of Cosb: Upon the, purchase by the Department of the 
maximum number of unils provided lor In the Coni/act and upon payment of the price UmltaUon 
haratinder, th4! Corlnlct and all the obligations of lha parties hereunder (except such obllgadons as, 
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after 1118 el)d of the term of this Contract a ndlor 
eurvlve the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the · 
Final Expenditure Report the Department shalt disallow any expenses ctatmed by the Contractor as 
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the nght, at Its dillcretlon, to·deduct the amount d such 
expenses-as ere disallowed or to recover' such sums from tile Conlractor. . . 

13. CreditS: All documents, n01ia!s, praas releases, researdl reports and other materials prepared 
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following 
statement,: 
13.1. The preparation of this (report, documant etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Sta)e 

of New HamP.shire, Department of Health and Human Services. with funds pro..tded In part 
by the State or New Hampshire and/or sud! other (undlng sources as were avaHable or 
required, e.g., the United States Department or Health and Human Services. 

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written • .;deo, audio) pnoduced or 
purcl\ased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before pt1nUng, production, 
distribution or use. Tha DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and aU original mate<1als 
produced, Including, but not timfled to, brochures, resoute01 directories, protOc:ols or guldeRnes, 
posters, or repons. Ca~tractor shall not reproduce any materials prodU<:ed under the oonlrac:t without 
prior wrillan llpll<(>Val from DHHS.' 

15. OpereUon of FaciU!Ies: Compliance with laWll and Regulations: In the opetation of any facilities 
for provtdlng services. the Conlractor 'hall comply v.1th all laws, cinders and reg~ations offederal, 
state, oounty and muricipal authorities end with any direcUon or any Public Offar or olflcare 
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an or del or duty upon the contractoi' ·with respect to the 
OpBIBtion of the faciUty or the provision of the serviCeS at such facility. If any govemmentellicense or 
permit lhan be required for tha C!PeraUon of the said fac:iUty or the performance of the 88ld aervlces, 
the Contraclor >Mil procure said llc<!nso or penni~ and will at all Urnes i:omply with the terms al)d 
conditions of eadl such license or parmll In cannecUon with the foregoing requirements, the 
Contrador hereby oovenanto and a;nies that. during the term or INs Contract the fecllities shall 
coniplywih all rules, orders, regUiatlons, and requirements of the Stale Office of the Ffre Marshalahd 
the local rora P<otection agency, and sha!l be In oonformance with local buUding and zoning cod". b)'­
laws and regulations. 

18. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (£EOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment 
Oppot1Unity Plan (EEOP) to the Office ror Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). n h has 
recelwd 8 single awa.U of $5~,000 or more. tf the reelp!ent recalves$25,000 Of mor118nd has vor 
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men employees, it w!D maintain a C<J,.ent EEOP on !Ve and s.Jt.nlt an EEOP Cenitlcatlon Form to the 
OCR, certi~ng that its EEOP Is on ftle. For recipients receiving less than S2s.ooq. or public grantees 
with fewer than 50 employees, regard~s ol the amount ol tha award, the reclplant wtll pro\llda an 
EEOP Certiftcatlon form to the OCR c'ert~ytnglt Is nol required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non­
prollt organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical end educational instltutions are exempt from the 
EEOP requirement, but are required' to submit a certificaUon fomn to tile OCR to claim \he exemption. 
EEOP Certification Forms ere available at: h~p1/Www.ojp.usdoj/abouUoa/pdfslc:er\.pdf. 

'11. Limited English Proflclency(LEP): As clarltled by Executive Order 13166,1mprovlng Acceu to 
services fer persons with Lim~d English Proficiency, and resulting agency g<Adance. natlo"al origin 
cfoscM1inallon Includes cflscr1mlnatior1 on lt11 basis of llm)ted English protlelancy (l.EP). To ansure 
ccmflllance wte. the Omnlbua Crime ·Control and Sate suuts I'D. of 1968 artd .Tille VI of !he CM . 
Rlg.ts Ar:J. o/1964, Contradors milS! tab reasonable steps to eilsure that LEP persons have 
meanhgtul access to lis programs. · 

18. Pilot Pn>gram for Enhancement of Contractor Employee WhlstleblowarProtecUons: The 
folowtng sllaiJ apply to all contrac:ts that exceed !he Sltr4lllfted Acquisition Threshold as dell ned In ~8 
'CFR 2.101 (a.m~y; $150,000) 

COHTAACTCI\ E!AP!.ovrt WHlSTl£B!.OWER RIGHTS ANO RfQUIR£11ENT To INFOIU.I EMPj.ovus 01' 
WHIS'l\.EBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) 

(a) This ca~lnlcf and employees workl~g,on thla contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights 
and remedies In the pttot program 01'1 ~onlractor employee whlsUeblower protectlons u .tablilhed at 
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National De rente AulhortzatiOtJ Act for Flacal Year 2013 (Pub. L: 
112·239) and FAR 3.908: 

(b) The Contractor stlall WOnn ill employ-In wr'tlng, In the predominant language of !he woMorce, 
of employee wl>istleblower rights and ptolectlons under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described In section 
3.908 of the Federal AcquiSition Regulation. 

(c) The Contradllr shall Insert the substance of lt4s doiuie, lncludilg this paragraPII (c), In 1111 
.ubc:oob'acts OYtS tile simplified ac:qulslfon lhreshold. · 

I 9. Subconlnlc1ors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor m•y choose to u&~ subcontractors wtth 
gre~~ter expefl!se to parfomn cerlaln heallh care se/VIces or fUnctions for effoclancy ot convenience. 
but the Contractor sllall retain the responelbllny and aocountabllity ror !he function(s). Prior to 
sUbcontradlng, the COntrac:toc stlatl evaluate the subcontraeto(s abllly to perform the delegated 
fl.ndlon(s). This is ac:oomplis~ed through a IOYi~an agraementthatopeclfies adh.ltlea and reporting 
respomlbiiiUes o1 the suboontractor•and prollldes for revoldng the delegaUon or lmpo&lng sanctiona n 
\he subcontractor's parfomnance is not adequate. Subcortractors are subject to the same contractual 

· conditions as the Contractor end lhe Cantrador Is responsible to ensure subconlnlclor complltlCe 
with those <Dldlions. · · 
When· the Contractor delegates a functiorl to a subconlnlctor, !he Coruractor shaD. do !he folowtng: 
19.1. EYU.Iate tile prospecllve subconlnlctof a abllty to perform !he activities, before de~ 

lhafWiction · 
19.2. Have a wrl!ten a{lreemenl >Mth the suboontactor thai spacif•s aciM!Ies al>d.raportlng 

responslbllllles and how nnt~lonslrevocatlan will be managed If the sllbconlractor'1 
performance Is flO! edequate · 

19.3. Monllor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis 

E-C-Spedol,.._, 
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors. delegated func1ions and 
responslbilales. and when the subcontracto( s performance waJ be reviewed 

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its diacretion, review and approve all subconiraas. 

II the Conlnlc1or Identifies deficiencles or areas lor lmpiovement are identified, the Contractor shall 
take correctiYe acHon. 

DEFINITIONS 
1'4 used In the Contract, the foll~wlng terms shall have the following meanings: 

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items of eJ<pensa·datetmlned by the Department to be · 
anow•bte and reimbursable In accordance wllh cost and accounting prtsidples establislied in acooidance 

. .,.,;th sll!te enc;l ladera) laws. regulations, rules and orders. · 

DEPARTMENT: NH Department" of Health and Human Seflllces. 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is 
eritiUed 'Financial Management Guidelines' arid which contains the regulations governing the.flilanclal 
actiVIties of c;ontractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds. · 

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contrac1or on a fonm or lonms. 
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible 
lndi'Jiduals by the Contractor ln.accordance wah the terms and conditions of the Contract arid setting fcirth· 
the total cost and sou TillS of revenue for each service to be provided.iJnder the Contract. 

UNIT: fOtl;lch 68fllice that the Conttector is to j)rovide to eUglble Individuals hereunder, shall mean that 
period of tlme 0< that spedt'ied actillfty detenmlned by the Departmenl and specified in Exhibit B 0( the 
Contract. 

FEDERAl/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulatio~, n.~los , orders, and poTides, etc. are 
referred to In the Contract, the said referenoe shaU be deemed to mean all such Jaws, regulations, etc. as 
they may be emended 0< revised from the time to Ume. 

·CONT.RACT.OR MANUAL: Shall mean that docull)enl prepared by the NH Departmenl of Administrative 
·~cea: ~t:j#olng a compilation cf all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire . 
Adniinb.ttetlV)I .. P~~":'!l'J,Ac;!. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of imptemenUn11 Stale of NH and 
facleral ne!JUI&tiais pf6mu~~~'thereunder. . 

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this 
Ccntract w!Q not supplant any existing federal funds avel able for these services. 

..., .. E""bk C - Spodal P""""'"" 
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•• 
REVISIONS TO GENERAL ·PROV!SIONS 

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisl011s of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agn~81l1enl, Is 
replaced as follows: 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provisiqn. of this Agreement to lhe c:Ontrel)', all obr.g~~tl!>ns ol the State 
hereunder, including v.ithout ·uiJ!Itation, the eon!lnuance ol payments. In whole or In part, 
under this Agreement er~ ea~Ungont upon continued appropriaUon or availability ol fundi, 

•. induding i10y ·~~e:guent chengea to the apptopriatlon or evallabHity of Nnds -'!ectad by 
1J1!f state or federal legislative or executi.,., action thai reduces, eliminates, or otherwise 
modll!es lhe appropr!aUon or avdab)ll!y of fynding for tl\ls Ag~ement end lhe Scope ol 
Selviee$ provided In EJ!hibh A. Scope of Services, In whde or In part. In no evert shal the 
State be llal:le lor any payments hereunder In' exc:e" d appropriated or avalal>le IW!dl. In 
the event d a reduction, tennlnal!cn or modificafon of appropriated or avaUable funds, the 
Stale Wll have !he right to withheld payment Wllilsuch funds become avallabja, If ever. The 
State shsD have tile right to red\Jce, terminate or modify s«W:es under this Agr .. ment 
immodia!elyupon giving the Conllac:lor notice ol such reduction, termination or modiftc:.allon. · 
The State shall not be reqUired to vans fer lunds from any olhet source or eocount lnco the 
Ac:coun((s) JcienUfted in block 1.6 ollhe Genoral Provisions, Account Number, or any other 
accoun~ In the event funds are reduced« unavailable. 

2. Subparagraph 10 olthe General Provisions of this contract, Termination, Is amended by adding the 
following language; 

10.1 The State may terminate ttie Agreement et any lime lor any reason, at the sole disctelion or 
·the State: 30 days after gMng the Contractor wril1en notice that the Slate Ia exercising Its 
option to terminate the Agreement. 

10.2 In tha event of earlY termnatlon, tile Contractor shall, within 15 days of notJoe ol ea~y 
termination, develop and submll to tile Slate a Trenslllon Plan for serlliees under the 
. Agreement lncluding but not limited to, identifying the ~nsent 1111d future needs ot d lents 
reoeMng services under the Agreement and estabishes a.process to meet those needs. 

10.3 The Contractor shall July COOper81e Whh the State and sllal prornpUy provide detaDed 
lnlormaliallo S\llli)OI! the T18nsl1lon Plan ilctudiflg, but not rrnhed to, any lnlonnation or 
date requested by !hit Slate related to lhe termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan 
end shea provide ongoing communlca~on and 111visions of the Ttan$Hion Plan to the Stele as 
requested. ' · 

10.4 In the evenlthal sef'llces under the Agreemen~ induding but not limited to clients receNing 
serVIces under the AgrOGmentaro trandioned to having sef'llcos delivered by another onlity 
including conlracU!d providers or tile Stele, the contractor shell provide a process for 
unmlenupled dellveJY of services In the Transllion Plan. 

10.5 The Conlfactcr ahall establish a method ol nO)tlrylng clients end other affected Individuals 
about the transition. The Contractor 1hall include the pmposed communlceUons In Its 
Translllon Plan S<Ji:mittad to the State a~ described above. 

3. The Oepar1ment rese<Ves tho right to renew 1t1e contract ,for up to lour (4) additional yearc, 
subject to !he continued avellablity of fundi, oaUstaetory parfonnance of ser.tces and appn>val 

·by the Governor and Executive Council. 

E.llhlbit C.\ - Re~tlons to StancJitd Provltbns 
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CERTI!'lCATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

The Conlractorldentffied I~ Section 1.3 of the Gen.,ral Provisions agree$ to comply with the.prollislons or 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub: L 100·690, Tble V, SubWe D; 41 
U.S.C. 701 et seq,), and furlher agrees to have the ConlractOI's representative, as ldentifted in SectiOn a 
1.11 and 1.12 oflhe General Provisions eneu1e the follOWing Certification:· 

ALTE!!NAnVE 1- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATiON- CONTRACTORS 
US DI!PARTMI!NT 0~ AGRICULTURE ·CONTRACTORs 

This certification is requlred.by the regulations implem.,nting Sections 5151:5180 of f/le Orug-Frae 
Worl<p!ace Aet qf 1988 (Pub. L 10().$90, Title V, SubtiUe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as P.arlll of tile May 25, 1990 Federal Register (peges 
21681-21891), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and oub­
conlradolll), prior to award, thallhey wiD maintain a drug .free w0f1<place. Secllon 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a. gran lee (and by Inference, sub-g111nteea and sut>contract!)<S) that Is a State 
may elect to make one certification to. the Department In each federal fiacar year In !leu of ce~iftc:atea for 
ead! grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certifiCalion. The certificate set out below Is a 
material repre$enlation offset upon Which.reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False 
certiflcallon orviolalion of the cerliflcatiori shall be g(Ounds for suspension of payment.s, suspension or 
termlnallon of grants, or government wide suspen&ion or debsnnent. Contiactora using lhls fonn should 
send~ to: · 

CanmisaiOner 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 
·129 Pleasant Street, 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

1: The grantee ce~111es that n will or will continua to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
1.1. Publistllng a sletement notifying employees that tlio unlawful manufactura, diatribuUon, 

dlopenalng, pouesaion or use of a controlled substance Is prohlbtted In the grantee's 
workplace and spOcilylng the actions that will be taken agalnst employees for violation of such 
prohibiiion; . 

1.2. Eatabllshlng an ongoing drug-free awareness pnogram to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace; · 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of malntainin·g a drug-free wOfl(j:Jiace; · 
1.2.3. Any avaRable drug counseling, rehabilitatiOn, and employee assistance programs; and 
1.2.4. The penslties that may be imposed upon employees fO< drug abuse viobilions 

occurring in the workplace; 
1.3. Making n a requirement that .each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
1.4. Notifying the empiQYM In the •latement required by pa111graph (a)·thil, as a condition of 

employment under the grant, the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the lenns ofUle statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction tor a violation of a criminal dnug 

statute occurring In the woikplace no later than fNe calendar days afler sucn 
convtctJon· 

1.5. Not;iying the llgency In wriUng, within ten calendar days after receMng notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receMng actual notice of such co!Mc!lon. 
Employero of conllicted elTllloyees must proolde notice, lndualflg position tiQe, to every grant 
offiCer on wtiose grant. ac:tivHy the convicted employee waa woodng. unless the Federele~ 

ExllibllO-CeMiullon~rdlng OrulJ Froe CanttKiorlrOIIII~ 
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has deslgnaled a central point tor tile reoelpl of suc:h noti~a. Notlc. shaU Include the 
ldentitlcetiori nlmberjs) of each affeeted grant; 

1.6. Tlklng one of the following actions, withln $0 e.lendar day• of receiving noUce under 
•ubparagt11ph 1.4.2. wlh reapect to any employee who is so convicted · 
1.8.1. Tlklng ~roprlaie pefSonnel action ~alnst wch an employee, up to and netuding 

tef~M!atlon, consistent wth the requirerner'U ol the RehAblbtlon Ad ol 1873, as 
emencled; or 

1 .6.2. Requiring auc:h employee lo parlldpale &atisfactorily in a drug abuse essiiUinte or 
rehabllilatlon'program apprCNed for 5Uclli'U1!oses by a Federal, State, or local heaJh, 
lew enforcemen~ Ot other appropriate agency; . 

1.7. Making • good faith etrort to continue to maintain • drug-f""' workplace through 
Implementation ol perugraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1,3, 1.-4, 1.5, and 1.6. 

2. The g1antee may Insert in tfle spac:e provided below the •ile(l) for the parlonnance olwor1< done in 
connection with tile tpecif~e granl 

Place ol Pertctmlll<t (-a.ddress, city, county, 511tt, zip code) 01&1 each loc8tlon) 

Ched< D lfthera are wetlcplecltl on file that are not identified here. 

EloNbl 0-Cc-,.a<rdi'G Dr\lll FtH 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYJNG . . The Contredor ldenOOed in Section 1.3 of !he General Pro-.isions agrees to comply "'"th the piOIIIslons of Sedion 319 ofP..t.lic Law 101-121, Goverrmenl wide Guidance for New Rulrictiona on lobbying, and . 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to haw the Contractol's representative, as ldentlfted In SecUons 1.1 1 and 1.12 ofthe General Provlalons execute the following Certlncatkln: · 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANO HUW.N SERVICES· CONTRACTORS US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ·CONTRACTORS US DEPARTMENT OF AGRtCUL TURE ·CONTRACTORs 

Program• (lnd~e eppliceble program eo-.d): 
'T~orary Assistance to Needy Famities under TiUe IV·A 
'Child Support E~ Program undl!! Title IV-0 
'Social Servfca Block Gtant Program under nr. XX 
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX · 
"Community Services Block Grant underTl'Je VI 
'Child Cere Oellelcpment Block Grant under TrUe IV 

The undersigned certlllet, (o the best of.his or her knalllledge and belle!, thlt. 

.· 

1 .. No Fi.lorralappropriatlld runds have been paid or .wal be paid by or on behalf of the under.tljjned, to any person for Influencing or atlemptlng to llllluence an ~r or employee of erry agency, e Member of Congresa, ail offteet or employee·of Congress, or an emplo)"H de Member of Col!llres& In comedlon. wllh the -lltdlng of any Federal cCI'Itrect, continuation, renewal, amendrr.e11t, or . modifiCitiQII of. any Federal contract; grant, loan. or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 'ub-grantee or •u~x:Dntractor). 

. 2. If artY lUnda clher-lhan F4tderallpl>fopriated funds have been paid or wiN be paid to any petton for lnftuenclng or attempUng' to Influence an olftcer or employee of any agency, a Member ol ConQreu. an ol!icer or employee of Congress., or an employee of e Member of Congress In c;onnedlon w!lh tlllo Fedn eonttld, gran~ loan, or cooperalllleag~ent (and by specifrc: menUon sub-grantee or aui>­O!lf11111clor), the underalgned ahan complete and·submh Stend;rd Form Ltl., (DiscloSure F.orm to Report Lobbying, in eccotdance with Its lnatructions, atw:hed and Identified u Slllndard Exhibit E-t) 
3. The underaigned shaR require that the language olthls ce·rtil'lc:l!iOn be Included in the award document fOf aub-awanh at aU tlera (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under granto, loan a, end cooperaliw ~t~~reemenl£) and that aU sub-fecJpienta ahal c:etllfy and diKiose accordingly. 
This cer1lfic'ation Ia a material representation of feet upon which tellence was Pieced when this transaction was made ·or entered ln!o. Subrnlaslon of lhls certification Is a pre~uis~e for making or entering into thts transadlon tmpo.ad by Sedlon 1352, T& 31 , U.S. Code. Any peraon who fells to Gle the required certifiCIIlon shall be Slbjed to a c:MI penalty of not less than $10,000 and nat more than $100,000 for each such flllure. 
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The Conlractor idenllfoed kl Sacllon 1.3 of !he GeMral Provitlons agree$ 1o comply with lhe pt0111$lons of 
ExeaJI!IIe Olliee ot the Preaident, Elteet.Cive Ordet 125<4~ ,and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarmenl, 
Suspensbl, and Olhet ReaponslbcTrty Malle!$, and furlhet agrees to have !he Conltadot'a 
represenlidlve, aside~ In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of lhe General Prolotsions execule tl\e folo\Wlg 
Cl!ltilicaticn: ' · 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATIO.N 
1. By signing and aubmlttlng this propoul (ocnlract),the prospective'ptimaiy participant Is prollidlng the 

· cert111catlon set ovt below • 
. • . 

2. The inabllly of a !)el'$00 to pro.'lde the c:ertll\aJtlon reqlllred belq,y will nol necesaertly result In denial 
. of peltidpation In lhls CO'Itrod llansaetlon. If necessary, lhe prospectNe participant aheD oubtnll an 

e>J>Ianalion of why I e.nnot provide !he certilic:allon. Tho oertlli~ or explanation wm be · 
consideted in conneetlon with the NH Oepallment of Health "id Human Setlllces' (OHHS) 
dellennination whether lo enter Into tlis transac:tion. Hcwevet, fail<te of the ptospective ptimary 
partldpanl tp t .. nlsh a certlllcalicn or en eJCI)Ianatlon shall disqualify such pel$00 from p~pa!lon In 
this transaction. 

3. The oertificalion klllila clause Ia a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when OHHS delelmlned to enter inlo this transection. II K is later determined thallho.proapect_ive 
pmary participant knowingly "ndered an etroneous c:et\lfie.lion, In addition to other remedies 
avalablo to tho Fed~al Govemmen~ OHHS may terminate !his tran.action lot cause or def81Jfl 

4. The Pi'oapectlve primaty pattlc:tpant shaW provide immediete written notice to lhe DHHS agency to 
M1om thts propotel (ocntract) Is submitted " at arry tlme the prospective primary per1kipent le!lms 
thllt II certif!Crion wea erroneous When submitted or hes become etf09eOUS by reason ol ebanged 
aa.mstanees. 

S. The terms ·covered lrlnJaellon." "deberred," ·suapanlfed." 1nelglble," ""'-tier covwed 
'trllnsactlc!n," "partldpenl, • ·person; "primary covered transaction," 'prnapal. • ·proposal: and 
"Vccuntarily excluded:" as used In this clause, hsve the meanings set out in the Defin~fons and 
Covera~e sectlona cf the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Pall 78, See the 
ettaehed·dellnltlons. 

6. The prospective primary pert!~ant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai. thould' the 
ptoposed coveted tranudlon be entered lntc, ~ ablll not knowingly ent.Bt lnlo eny 1<1Ner tier eoveed 
tranaeclion with a person who Ia deblfred, suspended, dedared ineigitlle, 01 volururily I!Xduded 
from partlc:lpatlon In tills covered ltansaction, unleuaulhorized by DHHS~ 

7. The ptOSpactiYe primery pa111cipant turthet agrees by aubmllting this prq>OSal th.el tt IM!l lncklda the 
clause ~'lied ."Certlfocatbn Regarding ~armen~ SUapenslon, lneigiblity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lo-Tier Coveted Tllln&ecllons; provided by DHHS, wllh~ modifiCIIIion, in· all lower tier COYerad 
transactions end In all sollcllatlona for lower Uer covered transactions. 

8. A pa!lielpant In o c<Neted transaction may rely upon a cetllficatlon. ol a prospecllve participant in a 
IDWIII' tier covered tranaac:tion thall Is nol d!'barred, auapended, Ineligible, or lnvolunlerily eJCduded 
(iom U\a OCMtred tranaacllon, unless ~knows lhet the certiflcation Is erroneous. A partlclpallt may 
decide the method end frequency by which ~determines the etigibfty ot Its princlpall. Eech 
pat!icipan\ may, but Ia not required to, check !he Nonptocurenianl Ust (ot exduded periJ• I· 

9. No'ling contained In lha IO(egoing shall be constrvod to require estal>Gshmont of a oystem of~ 
In cnler lo renderIng~ faith '!'a oer11tlc:ation reqvltad by this c!auo8. The knowledge end . r v 

ElHbll F-c.rtilcallon Rrf&"'ne Dobalmott. Sllspenslon Conlto<'orllliiiiA ~ 
And ou.u RaJp.,.,!bll'.c)' MoiW> d '/'' OJOH/t\CPU Paet t ol2 0•• ;q}t4 /b 



• New H&mpslln Department of Heallll and Hum en Stl'lllces 
~lbltF 

• 
Information of a partldpanl is net required to exceed !hal w!lleh Is nofTTlaliy possessed by a prudent 
pet$00 ln the Ordinary C:OUI'SO Of bvsfneu dt8lingS. 

10. Except for transacllons authortzed vnder paragraph 6 d these lnslludions, W a participant in a 
eoYeted trens.action k,_-jngly enters l!rto e lower tier COO/ered transaction ...Oih a pe<,son v.+!o Is suspended, debarred, lrle!~. or volunlerlly ududtd ftom pertlc;lpalion In tha transaction, In addition to other remedles available to the Federtll QO~~etnmenl. DHHS may terminate thls transaction fr:ir cause or defaull. • . . 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, . . t 1. The pr01~ prWT1ery patlic:ipant certifies to the be$1 or its knoMeclge &nd·betief, lhat it and ils pr.ndpela: 
11.1. are not presently debarred, auspended, proposed for debannent, deoelared in.Ugible, or 

voluntarily excluded from eo~ transactions by any Federal department or agency; 1 1.2. tuM! not -Mth'rl alhrei:·)'BJ!r period pre<:edlng this propotal (eontnld) be.n convicted of or had 
a cMI judgment rendered evalnst ttiom for eommiUion or fraud o: • ci1minal offense In connection with obla!ni119, a!lempmg to obtai\, or performlnQ. 8 JKJI>Uc (Federal Stllo or tocaQ transaction or a cot~tract under 8 public transaction; viollllon of Federel or Stale antltrust · llalutes or commission of embezzlernen~ theft, forgery, bribery, falalfCBtlon or'dostruclion of . records, maldng false lltllemeniA, or r~ng stolen property, · 11.3. are ncl presently lndlcted for -olherwl&8 criminally or cMJly charged by a governmental entity (Federal. State or local} wlth commiSsion of any of the orrenses·err.nnera:ed In pareg,..ph (l)(b) 
d tills eertlficatlofl;, and . 

11.4. have not wlthln a three-year period preceding this applict~llonlpropoul h'ad one or more publlc transactions (Federal State or local) ti!milnatecUor c&U!,~ .c( d.efiNII. · 
·~th~l· 

12. Whete tie prospective pm,ary perticipert is unable to'certify to 81\Y of tile ste1ements In this certJ:gtion, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
13. By slgrWig and oubmllllng tills lowar tier propoJal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant. as def,.d In iS CFR Part 76, eer1Jfoes to the best d lalcnCM4edge Sid belief that II and its prinl:ipals: 13. t. are ncl pres..,dy debaned, ouapended, proposed for debarment, decr.red ineligible, or 

volunt;arily excluded from participation in thlo, transaction by any federal department or agency. 13.2. where the prospective lower Uer participant Is unable to etrtlfy to any of !he above, such 
pros~e partlclpanl thaQ attach an explanation to tills prcposal (contraCt). 

1-4. The prosper;:tlve lower U. participant fiJrthar agrees by submltling this proposal (contract) that l ...OU include this clau.se entnled "Certl~eatlon RAigardlng Debarmen.t, Suspension, lnefiglbl!lty, and Voluntary Elo:lu&loo • L..,..r Til1' Covered Transaclions.' without mod<fication In all ~r tier covered 
transactions and in allaolicla!lons for lower tier covered tranaaellons. 

~F-c:on-lonRq ..... -...~~ 
And Othel ~·~ ...,.,. 

Pogo2ol2 · 



. . 
New Hampshire DepeJtmenl or Health end Human Services 

EXhlbHG 

The Contractor identltied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
reprueniatlve as tdentilled In SecUons 1.11 and 1.12 of !he General Provlsion~. to exeoute the following 
certification: 

Con~edot will comply, and will requite any aubgranteea or subcontractors to comply, with any oppUeable 
federal noncfl5aiminalion r~ments, wlllch may Include; · 

• the Omnibus Crlme COntrol and s..ro Streets Act ol 1988 (-42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) wlllch prohlbkt 
~*:~plants of federal funding under thiS statuw from discrtnilatlng, ellher In employment pradioes or In 
1IWI dallwwy ols~ or benefits, on the basis of reoe, color, raligion, national origin, and aax. The Act 
requlles celtain ~tO produce an Equal ~ent Opportunity Plan;· 

·Ill• Jullellle Justic8 Delinquency Prevention Ad of 2002 (o42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) wlhlch adopla by 
raltnnee, the cMI righla obliga'i>ns of the Sefe Streets Ad. Recipients of federal !undJng under lh!l 
sleiUt. ara prohibfled from disalmlnating, either In employment practicas or In the 'delivery of aeNfces or 
.benefits, on the basts ol race, color, religion, national origln, end sex. The Act includu Equ~ 
·Emplo)OY!ent Ol>potlunky Plan requirements; 

·the CMI Rights Act of 186-4 (-42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, wlllch ptOhlbits recipients or federal nnanclal 
as~iatance from discriminating on .tho basis of race, color, or national ortgln In any program or adlvlly); 

·the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 79-4), which prohlb"s recipients or Federal f111anc:lal 
essiatance from disa\m.lnating on the basis or dlsabU!ty, In regard to employment and the dellllery of 
181VIces or banents, In any program or activity; 

· the Americans with Oisabtities Ad ol1990 (42 U.S,C, Sectlop.s 12131-:M), which prohibita 
disafmlniUon and ensures aQIJal opportunity lor persons with disabilities in emplo:;ment, State end locolll 
govemm~ setW:es, public accommodations, commen:lal faclities, and trans_potlation; 

·the Education Amendmen.s ol11172 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86). wt-kh ptoNbita 
dlscrimWdlon on the besis or sex In ladeullly esslslad education f)fograms; 

·the .Age Oiscrrntnation Act ol 1975 (42 U.S.C. Seetlons 6106.07), Which prohib"' disctVnfMI!on on the 
bula of age In programs or activities receMng Federal nnanclal 8$$1stance. It does not Include 
.rnpiO)OY!ent dlscrimlnaUon; • · 

• 28 C.F.R. pl 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pl-42 
(U.S. Department or Justice Regl.daliom - Nondlscrfrrinatlon; Equal Employment Opportun~y; Pollcles 
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal prolectlon or the laws for fehh·based end community 
organizations): Exeoulive Onler'No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and pollcy·maklng 
criteria lor pannershlps with faith-based 81\d nelgt'bortlood organizations; 

• 28 C.F.R. pl 38 (U.S. Oapartment ol Justlc. Regulations- Equal Treatment for Fel1h-Based 
Org1nb:ations); and Whlstlablower protections -41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Dalense Authorization 
Ad (NOAA)Jor Fiscal Year2013 (Pub. L 112·239, enaded Jaooary 2, 2013) the Pilot Progr~m lor 
Enhancement or Conlrad Et11>1oyee Whisdablower Protedlons, wlllch protects employees against 
rapUallor certm wNstle blow1ng ac:llvitles In conn~on with federal grants and oontr.c:to. 

The cer1iflcale aet out below Is • material represent.lfon or fad upon which. reliance is placed when the 
egency 8Wllrds the granl False certi1'1C81lon or viol&Uon ol the oef1!1'0C<I!ion shall be grounds for 
suspension or payrnenb, 5USpenslon Ol tetmilation of grents, or gawmmenl wide auspenaion or 
deb.-ment. 

.. 



• • 
New Hampshire DeP.artrnent of Health and Humon Sarvlc .. 

EJrhlblt Q 

In tho event e Federal or Slate~ court or Federal or Slate administrative agency ma1<es a flndlng of 
disc:rlmina~on after 1 due proc;ess hearing on the grounds of race, color, refig!on, national origin, or sex 
against a rectptom of fllnds, the recipient 'NiO forward a copy of the fll'lding to the Office for Civil Rlghls, to 
the appieable conlteeting agency or division wi!hln the Deplrtment of Health and Human Services, and 
to the Oepart'nenl of H~alh and HUman Services Ol!lce of the Ombudsman. 

The Ccr1trilcto< Identified In S_edion 1.3 of the GenOII&l ProiAslons agrees by signature elf the Co!Vactor'a 
represen .. !lve as Identified In Sec:lions 1.11 and 1.12 of tho General Provisions, to oxacute the folfo\olng 
certl!la!tion: 

t. By signing aild.aubmlttlng this pnoposol (contl'llct). lh4. Con !lector agrees to comply with the P,ovillons 
Jndlcaled above. · 

5/~/llo 
Date ' , 

·· -

Poge2at2 G!Utf> 

. ~ . 
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N.w Hampshire Department of H&~lth 8lld Human Services 

, '· . Elthlblt G 

In lhe el(enla F~liral or S~.CQ!Wt or.Federal ot staui admln!Sinlilve ag11119Y makes a flnding of • 
dlscrinJl"l!lior\ '~ere 4ue.pr~ heari':'9 on the ~rounds of race, Cl;l!Q.I', rel'lglon, national origin, ot: sex 
egalnsll,l reclple'nt of fur)4~. lhe .r~plenl wiU,fO!WIIrd a copy ollh_e.fmding lo lhe Omce for CIVIl Rlghla, lo 
lhe applicable oorilnlcling.agency or division wilhln lha DeJ?artment pf Heallh and Human Services, arid 
1o lhe Qepartmel\1 of ·Health ,nl! Human Servlc~ omce of lhe Ombudsman. · .· . . . 

The Cqnl,racl.or ldetllined in S~Uo.n 1,3 of lhe Generei .Proyfaions agrees by slgnalure d lhe ContractO~a 
.representallve as Identified In Sectiona·1.11 and 1' ..1 2 of lhe General Prcwlsiona, lo execula the follciw!ng 
cierti11catlooi: . • 

I. By aigning and.aubmltting this prpposal (oon~) the Contractor agrees to oomply Wllh lhe provisions 
lndk:aled above . 

. 5/~/)r., 

', 

I 

I 

-


